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Happiness m is the “five-dimensional happiness service system” created by Shinsun Property through insight and
exploration of the service needs of urban families, adhering to the brand concept of “personalized happiness in
every sense”, covering five core service contents: happiness tribe, happiness space, happiness community, happiness
service and happiness neighborhood, and is dedicated to providing customers with an all-age, all-cycle Shinsun-style
happiness life experience
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (the “Company” or “Shinsun”,
which together with its subsidiaries, is referred to as the “Group”)
is a a fast-growing, large-scale, comprehensive real estate developer
in the People’s Republic of China (“China” or the “PRC") focusing
on the development of quality residential properties in select regions
in China. Headquartered in Shanghai and deeply rooted in Zhejiang
Province, the Group has established a leading market position
in Zhejiang Province through over 20 years of development. The
Company was successfully listed (the “Listing”) on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
18 November 2020 (the “Listing Date").

Adhering to the vision of becoming a “happy life operator,” the Group
offers different series of properties to cater to the varying needs of its
target customers, from first-time purchasers and first-time upgraders
to subsequent upgraders and high-net-worth customers. Through
years of research and development, the Group has developed four
series of residential properties, including Arbor series (%) targeting
first-time purchasers, Mansion series (fF%) targeting first-time
upgraders, Cloud series (23R &) targeting subsequent upgraders,
and Top series (Top&) targeting high-net-worth customers seeking
luxury lifestyles with high degrees of privacy. Leveraging the Group's
brand and experience in developing quality residential properties, it
has also built a growing portfolio of diversified commercial properties,
covering office buildings, shopping centers, community businesses and
hotels. The Group has also developed its “Shinsun Town" (£ 4 /N E)
model under which it designs featured projects comprising residential
and commercial properties based on the motto of “living-friendly,
business-friendly, tourism friendly and retirement-friendly” (E/& + B

¥ HE ER).

The Group adopts a proactive and standardized approach to its
property development processes and has established a three-tier
organizational structure, including its headquarters, regional
companies and project companies, as well as a set of standardized
operational protocols covering each process from site selection and
land acquisition to property delivery and after-sales customer services.
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CORPORATE PROFILE

The Group adopts a “1+1+X"” expansion strategy pursuant to which
it bases its development in Zhejiang Province, deeply penetrate into
the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region, and expand into other cities with
high growth potential outside the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region,
such as Jingmen in Hubei Province, Hengyang and Changde in Hunan
Province and Hohhot in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region. The
“1+1+X" strategy also represents the Group’s determination to
accelerate the expansion of its property development business scale.
It is believed that after nearly 20 years of development, the Group
has accumulated sufficient experience in project development from
site selection to after-sales services, as well as abundant connections
with suppliers, contractors and business partners which are necessary
to carry out the acceleration of its expansion plans. Its historical
operating history and capabilities, quality property portfolio and
proactive and standardized operational protocols have all attributed to
the Group’s rapid expansion, and will continue to play critical roles in
helping the Group execute its “1+1+X" expansion strategy, improve
its competitiveness and achieve sustainable growth in the future.

Looking forward, the Group will continue its “1+1+X"” expansion

strategy and strives to become a leading real estate developer offering
quality products in the PRC.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Guoxiang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Hongni (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Yao Xiaozhen (resigned on 5 February 2021)
Mr. Zhao Leiyi

Mr. Han Bo (appointed on 12 March 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason

Mr. Ding Jiangang

Mr. Ma Hongman

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason (Chairman)
Mr. Ding Jiangang

Mr. Ma Hongman

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Ding Jiangang (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Hongni

Mr. Ma Hongman

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chen Guoxiang (Chairman)
Mr. Ding Jiangang

Mr. Ma Hongman

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. Tan Mingheng
Ms. Chen Chun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Chen Hongni
Mr. Tan Mingheng

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR
Maxa Capital Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC
Building 5

Henderson-CIFlI Centre South
Minhang District

Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
40th Floor, Dah Sing Finance Centre

No. 248 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited Zhuji branch
China Minsheng Bank Ningbo Cixi branch

Bank of China Tiantai Count branch

Ping An Bank Hangzhou West Lake branch

WEBSITE
www.shinsunholdings.com

STOCK CODE
02599
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1 BN FRESBRFE [ XEE 1. Zhitong Finance: The 5th Golden HK Stock Annual “Best Real
NGl Estate Company”

2 EMEE : 2020F R EEBBRESR S 2. EH Consulting: Top 23 Super Product Power of Real Estate

TOP23 Enterprises in China in 2020
32020 F — P B FE M EKRE) : 3. 2020eYiMagzine China Real Estate Glory List: “Growth Potential
2020 [FERRENRE] Enterprise of the Year” in 2020

4 BEK (202090 B+ KHEFE 4. Leju Finance: “2020 China’s Top 10 Property CEOs of the Year” —
CEOJ T 15 IR SR BT TR AR L R 5A (7 Chen Hongni, Chief Executive Officer of Shinsun Holdings Group
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5 FEBRR: [200FEFERERSEMT 5. China Times: “2020 CSR Pioneer Award for Corporate Social

it 3 Responsibility”
6 EER®W : [2020FEXE NHHEmIE ] 6. China Times: “Influential Property Brand of the 2020 Year”

7 miflkm  FFAETEIRR | EE2020F 1 7. CRIC: Shinsun's “Cloud Series” was awarded “Top 10 Light Luxury
AREEREmEmRR ] Products Series in 2020"

8 FmMinm: HEEES 2SR |55 2020 8. CRIC : Shinsun Zhanjing's “Xing He Ying” (£&#) was awarded
FHRBE+RmEEm] “China Top 10 Quality Products in 2020"

9 - A : [20204F IPOFT 54k | 9. Hexun.com: “IPO Emerging Role Models 2020"
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

SRIEEBAORARE
Contracted sales amounted to approximately RMB

78,168. 1.

BREAFREERL
increased by approximately 2 5 E 1 %ﬁ

as compared with the corresponding period
in the previous year

FRBEMOB/ARE
Profit for the year amounted to approximately RMB

3,053.450%

REFREPTELD 4 8
decreased by approximately . %
as compared with the corresponding period
in the previous year

HEER(EE)ERAT —T-TFFR

W BB RARE

Total revenue amounted to approximately RMB

46,638.4 i

WEFRBAERL
increased by approximately 3 1 5 3 %ﬁ

as compared with the corresponding period
in the previous year

EMDNBARE
Gross profit amounted to approximately RMB

3,434 .8

REFRETRELD O 5
decreased by approximately . %
as compared with the corresponding period
in the previous year
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

..................................................................................... @ . @
ARREBANBEEFNOBARE BEFEBELER
Profit attributable to owners of the Company —E—hE+-_FB=+—HH
amounted to approximately RMB Net gearing ratio decreased from 3 6 1
%

2 646 AETT as at 31 December 2019 to
7 . million

TREZF-FF+_A=1+—H0m 1 3 6
REFRBERL as at 31 December 2020 %
increased by approximately 1 4 5 4%
as compared with the corresponding
period in the previous year

..................................................................................... @ . @
& MIRITRBRLY B AR EEEESER
Cash and bank balances amounted to HE—_ZT-_TF+_-_HA=+—H

approximately RMB LIEHBFER KRR B AR

24,304.7 G seciare il aviend of ics Q). 2 O

per share for the financial year ended

£ FE A BRI R4 31 December 2020
increased by approximately Z 49 - 1 %ﬁ

as compared with the corresponding period
in the previous year
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development projects as at 31 December 2020.

The following table sets out details of the Group's major property

{5
Bpg BB/
rEE fEER [ BRI
ER EfEs LB (25X (FHK) TRz R
Equity
interest Actual/
attributable Total estimated
to the Occupied  attributable completion
Project Group Location area (sq.m.)  GFA (sq.m.) Land use date
HERETNERE 100% FEEMUR DETIAR 37,414 282,071 = 12/25/2025
VO34 3R B ] Ak B 3t EES
WA
Shanghai Shinsun The project is located at the eastern side of Residential,
Hongkou Project Siping Road and the northern side of commercial,
Tianshui Road, Hongkou District, office
Shanghai City
MMEERHER 100%  FEBMUATMTHTE 67,137 208363 (T EE 10110/2019
SNELARFRRERE
Hangzhou Shinsun The project is located at the northern side of Residential,
Qunxian Mansion Chonghang Street and the eastern side of commercial
Zhangjiagiao Road, Yuhang District,
Hangzhou City
Rl e LABEE 100% HEBURALTESR 189,488 418997 HE W% 8/13/2020
AMEABI RGBS ERE
Zhoushan Shinsun The project is located at the northern side of Residential,
Nanshan County Garden Xincheng Avenue and the eastern side of commercial
Gangdao Road, Dinghai District,
Zhoushan City
RARLBRMN 70%  HERUAFMTRER 70,000 203782 f% @% 7/16/2020
NEREAAR BRI
Taixing Shinsun Guantang The project is located at the southern side of Residential,
Mansion Wenchang East Road and the northern commercial
side of Xingnan Road, Taixing, Taizhou City
BHEEBRR 80% HERMREINTRHER 81,827 204225 (% EE 713112020
EERBELMERER
Quzhou Shinsun Guantang The project is located at the junction of Residential,
Mansion Huayuan Avenue and Gutian Road, commercial
Kechengxi District, Quzhou City
gtk 1 100% FEEBURAMTRETATE 57,622 151,968 {I%E 712412020
R
Wenling Shinsun Jinlin The project is located at the southern side of Residential
Mansion Zhonghua Road, Taiping District,
Wenling, Taizhou City
TERERTR 100% ZEEMRAEDLER 87,783 21835 fH=E 9/15/2020
2RABI AR ZLERE
Shangyu Shinsun Mingyue The project is located at the northern side of Residential
Mansion Liangzhu Avenue and the eastern side of
Wangshan Road, Shangyu District,
Shaoxing City
HEER(EE)BRAR —T-TFEFR
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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Chairman

CHEN GUOXIANG

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd., | am pleased to present the
Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
"Relevant Year").

MARKET REVIEW

Looking back to the beginning of 2020, China's economic
development faced severe challenges due to the sudden outbreak of
the COVID-19 pandemic, the lockdown of social operations in many
places, and Sino-US trade frictions. However, even in the face of the
global pandemic and the complex internal and external development
environment, China’s economy has demonstrated strong recoverability,
and the favorable long-term fundamentals of China’s economy remain
unchanged, with the economy growing steadily.



REBFE  BEFITHERZTE  1E
FHETS [ BEN | OEMBRGHRE -
TECTEREMEFEBRE MBAL R
B TEHEERTEREE [~ H—
R —Db—% —8-F| BRETER
RIE BEE RBEEN=RIBZ-

TEREREFE T _TFHREEHET
BETHFREREERETRANTIER
A ¥ FHREEEEr—TRBELR
Bl MTH¥FRERBEESFSIERIEHT
BAEIIE - BEBETRBEIBRG B A MHE
B —E_EFRRERREHEHEmMENR
WARMI736EET B MRESEA
AR®E17.3681ET - KREEA17.611EF
K BITEEHS - RILRED R AE8.7%
M2.6% c EATBIBEHKRERAT - F
BT EHETISREIEE ML

E 3 3C1)

AR EIBTIEEEEAROTE
AEERF[ERETELH | LEEM - N
RABREAFENRERREEESRES - U
[MHER - ELEE AT RE AR
W REEERTH  EREEHISETE
HWEHIER o

BREUTEESNMBRBEEBNICE
FAXEBEEREAEBEL FHERRE
BR - MH1+X I BRERRT  LREEE
Bt EmBREERTR  ABRBEHE
BoHe/mEXB/ LAk

BE—RR  THALMS E-T-_TfF
HARRERRRNERE - — TG+
— A\ B2 F R 15 B R B % B AR
T BEESFEANIS BT  BAES
Mg — ST BEMARTAREETEY
BEN -

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

During the Relevant Year, even with the impact of uncertainties, the
positioning of the PRC real estate market of “housing is for living
in, not for speculation” has not changed. In 2020, the real estate
regulation and control policies were more refined and structured,
constantly implementing the primary responsibility of cities and
the models of “one city, one policy”, “one enterprise, one policy”
and “one project, one policy”, to ensure that the property market
achieves its goal of stabilizing land prices, housing prices and market
expectations.

Affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, the PRC real estate market
in 2020 showed different market situations in the first and second
half of the year, with commercial and residential sales suffering to a
certain extent in the first half of the year, while the market continued
to recover in the second half of the year as the COVID-19 pandemic
was gradually brought under effective control. According to the data
released by the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the transaction
amount of commodity properties in 2020 was RMB17.36 trillion
and the transaction area was 1.761 billion sq.m., with a year-on-year
increase of 8.7% and 2.6%, respectively, reaching a historical high.
Under the main keynote of “stability”, the overall real estate market
of cities at all levels was stable and improving.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the face of the challenges of the times and external uncertainties,
the Group adhered to its corporate positioning as a “Happy Life
Operator (@4 EEER)". With the vision of becoming a healthy
and sustainable quality benchmark enterprise and the management
policy of "market-oriented, quality-made, talent-first and win-win
cooperation (M35EM « ELEE - AT RE - G1ELR)", we
actively face the new pattern of market and industry.

With a good grasp of industry trends and policy evolution logic,
the Group achieved capital structure optimization, steady growth
of results, thorough implementation of the “1+1+X" strategy,
optimization of land reserve structure, iteration and upgrade of
products and services, organizational structure renewal and change,
and a new level of social welfare undertakings during the year.

It is worth mentioning that the tapping into of the capital market is
a milestone for Shinsun to achieve its capital breakthrough in 2020.
The Company’s shares were successfully listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 18 November 2020, with net proceeds of
approximately HK$3.51 billion. The further broadening of financing
channels has significantly enhanced the Group’s competitiveness in
the industry.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.
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In terms of performance, the Group achieved revenue of
approximately RMB46.64 billion in 2020, representing an increase of
approximately RMB11.12 billion from approximately RMB35.52 billion
in the same period of 2019, net profit of approximately RMB3.05
billion, with year-on-year decrease of approximately 4.8% and
core net profit of approximately RMB3.10 billion, with year-on-year
decrease of approximately 3.2%.

With the continuous promotion of new urbanisation, the development
of urban clusters will continue to be a major trend, and the strategy
of focusing on and deeply rooted into metropolitan circle of core
urban clusters will help enhance the competitiveness as well as the
ability of resisting risk of the Company. The Group has always adhered
to the development strategy of focusing on regionalization and deep
cultivation. Since 2016, the Group has implemented the "1+1+X"
expansion strategy, under which it insists on operating its business
based on Zhejiang Province by deeply rooted into the Yangtze River
Delta to selectively build a layout in cities with high growth potential.

In terms of replenishment of land value, the Group insisted on
efficiency first and the strategy of deep cultivation and selective
expansion. The Group obtained 46 new land bank in 2020, with
a total land area of 2,740,232 sq.m. and total attributable GFA of
6,962,402 sgq.m.. We entered cities such as Hefei, Nanchang and
Nantong in 2020, further deepening the nationalised layout of the
Group. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's attributable total
land bank was 23.3 million sqg.m., including 9.0 million sg.m. in the
Pan-Yangtze River Delta region and 11.2 million sg.m. in Zhejiang
Province.

Products and services are fundamental to the development of
enterprises. Only by providing consumers with high quality products
and services will enterprises be able to take advantage of the fierce
competition in the industry. In 2019, the Group took the initiative to
launch a new iteration of its product lines. Based on the original seven
residential product lines and through experience integration, research
and development innovation, demand matching and deep exploration
of corporate genes and connotations, the Group iterated and
upgraded four product lines, including Top series (Top &), Cloud series
(E1E XR), Mansion series (FFZ) and Arbor series (#.%), and achieved
the coverage of “all-cycle, all-territory, all-age”, which ensured that
our products were adaptable to different regions and different needs
of our customers. In December 2020, the Group won a number of
awards for its commitment to product quality, including the “Top 23
Super Product Power of Real Estate Enterprises in China in 2020"
by EH Consulting, a professional real estate research institute, and
the “Cloud series” of Shinsun Holdings won the “Top 10 Residential
Product Line Brand Value Power of Real Estate Enterprises in China in
2020", the “"Mansion” series of Shinsun Holdings won the “Top 10
Residential Product Line Architectural Craftsmanship Power of Real
Estate Enterprises in China in 2020 “, and eastern region of Zhejiang
of Shinsun Holdings won the “Top 10 Regional Product Penetration
Strength in China in 2020".
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

At the same time, the Group further focuses on contemporary
customer needs and market changes, and iteratively upgrades
its service system. Through inheritance and innovation and by
advocating return to the original vision of happiness to upgrade the
“Happiness+" service system and by building “Happiness 1" (services)
and “Happiness i” (products) as the two major dimensions for
implementation, the Group is committed to bringing more happy life
experience to more property owners and providing more families with
more comprehensive and thoughtful happiness services.

The real estate industry has developed so far, the dividends of land,
population and finance are gradually weakening. In order to ensure
the healthy corporate development, it has become an important
direction to seek benefits from management and earn management
dividends. The Group has also been optimizing, adjusting, and
changing its organizational structure according to the current situation
of corporate development, which has been developed in the northern
and eastern regions of Zhejiang.

In organizational management, the Group continued to adhere to the
organizational setup of”strengthening the smallest operating unit” to
achieve flat management and streamlined processes. For cities that
it continues to deeply operate, the Group will build a comprehensive
functional platform for resource integration through regionalization
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to enhance efficiency. For the cities into which it newly expanded, the
Group will adopt an organizational management model with a simple
structure and sound functions to make steady progress while meeting
its business needs.

The Group is aware that the development of an enterprise cannot be
achieved without the support and protection of the society. All along,
the Group has insisted on giving back to the society and conveying
corporate goodwill to the society.

The Group continuously focused on the development of public
welfare, proactively joined in public welfare practices, and insisted
on doing “warm things”. On 1 June 2019, Zhejiang Shinsun Charity
Foundation (I & AERZESLE) was officially established and
kept pace with launching the “Clover Plan” of charity brand project
of Shinsun to advocate “hope, dedication, love and health”. In 2020,
the four charity projects under the Shinsun Clover Plan was upgraded
and implemented, including the Clover Plan — Health Fund, the Clover
Plan — Children’s Dream Fund, the Clover Plan — Education Fund and
Clover Plan — Sharing Fund, which focus on social needs to carry out
the precise poverty alleviation.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has been
supporting the frontline of fighting against the pandemic by donating
money and goods, reducing related property rent and so on, and
actively cooperating with the government in the strict prevention of
the pandemic. The Group has cumulatively donated more than RMB12
million to support Hubei, Inner Mongolia, Jiangxi, Shandong, Jiangsu
and other regions for public welfare activities of fighting against
the pandemic. In addition, in order to develop with its tenants and
overcome the difficulties together, the Group has reduced the rent
and property fees of its tenants by over RMB5 million.

From 2019 to 2020, the Group donated a total of RMB2 million to
two poverty alleviation projects supported by Shanghai for the road
construction project from Longwan to Longhou Village group for
Longse Village (a deeply impoverished village), Gula Town, Funing
County and the Huashitou Bridge project of Zhongzhai Village
committee in Jijie Town, Xichou County in Wenshan Prefecture,
Yunnan Province to improve infrastructure construction and help
achieve poverty alleviation.

In 2020, the Group's efforts in the field of philanthropy were
recognized by the community and it obtained several awards, such
s “Outstanding Contribution to the Fight against the Pandemic in
2020" by the CSR Promotion Association of Zhejiang, “Outstanding
Contribution to the Prevention and Control of the COVID-19
Pandemic” by Wuhan Charity Federation, and “2020 CSR Pioneer
Award for Corporate Social Responsibility” by China Times and China
Disabled Persons’ Federation.

OUTLOOK FOR 2021

As the opening year of the 14th Five-Year Plan, 2021 is a new phase
and a new beginning. At present, the external environment is still the
greatest uncertainty for China’s economic development, with the risk
of recurrence of pandemic, the long-term trend of the competition
between China and the United States remains unchanged, and the
global political and economic landscape remains complex and volatile.
However, the Group always has firm confidence in the stable and
positive development prospect of China’s economy and its real estate
sector.

Looking ahead to 2021, the capital will remain reasonably abundant
at macro level, the economy will maintain a promising trend, and the
overall real estate control will remain continuous and stable, insisting

n “houses are built to be inhabited, not for speculation” with the
implementation of localised policy to ensure the stable development
of the market.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In this context, the Group will continue to grasp the macro trend.
Staying true to its original vision and adhering to the craftsmanship
spirit, it will deeply implement the “1+1+X" investment strategy to
consolidate the advantages in the deeply-rooted regions and further
explore the opportunities in regions with growth potential. With the
brand philosophy of “Pursuing Happy Life”, the Group will continue
to contribute high-quality real estate projects in the industry and
create happy life scenes for thousands of families.

In the wave of China’s urbanization, residents’ consumption is
constantly upgrading and people’s pursuit of a better life is increasing.
It will always be the Group’s mission to demonstrate the urban value,
promote the upgrading of residence construction and create a happy
and beautiful life scene through its own development in this era.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The achievements of the Group in 2020 cannot be achieved without
the support and trust of all shareholders, customers and partners, as
well as the hard work and dedication of all employees. On behalf of
the Board, | would like to express our most sincere gratitude to all of
you.

In 2021, the Group will hold firmly to its mast of sail, and relentlessly
strive and move forward with dedication to create higher value for
shareholders and investors, provide better products and services for
consumers, and practice public welfare and deliver positive energy to
enhance social well-being.

Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd.
Chen Guoxiang
Chairman of the Board
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REXEMR

SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS

BEZ+-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-THF —E-NF EFaid-L)
Change in
2020 2019 percentage
ERHE D Contracted sales Mt D
EBRASEERNSNHEE Contracted sales attributable to
(AREEFJT) (WD the Group's interests (RMB'000) Mote ™ 78,168,082 62,496,930 25.1%
EBASEERN Contracted gross floor area (“GFA")
EEARRERE sold attributable to the Group’s
(MEmE]) CFFXK) interests (sq.m.) 5,672,190 5,531,982 2.5%
EBASEERN Contracted average selling price (“ASP")
BHRTHEE ([FHEED attributable to the Group's interests
(ANR¥E /FJ7kK) (RMB/sg.m.) 13,781 11,297 22.0%
BRENEE Selected financial information
W (ANRETFT) Revenue (RMB’000) 46,638,413 35,519,538 31.3%
EF(ARETFT) Gross profit (RMB’000) 8,434,839 8,480,111 -0.5%
FREN(ARETT) Profit for the year (RMB’ 000) 3,053,371 3,208,955 -4.8%
TR ) (N REETFT) Core net profit Mot 2 (RMB’ 000) 3,097,156 3,200,890 -3.2%
RNEHEA AEE T Profit attributable to owners of the
(AR®FT) Company (RMB’000) 2,646,006 2,312,283 14.4%
FE R (%) M= Gross profit margin (%) Nete3 18.1% 23.9%
U BT 3 (%) ) Core net profit margin (%) Nete 4 6.6% 9.0%
BRAEN (EXRETE) Earnings per share (basic and diluted)
(AR®ES) (RMB cents) 107 96
TRz LEF) (AR REE) Core earnings per share
(AR¥E5) (basic and diluted) (RMB cents) 109 96

REZR(EMAERLT —T-THEER
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R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—ECEF —Z-NEF ERalsd=t)
Change in
2020 2019 percentage
wEE(ARETT) Total assets (RMB’000) 159,739,582 130,627,692 22.3%
Re RIRITAER Cash and bank balances
(ARBEF L) s (RMB'000) MNote5) 24,304,747 6,962,481 249.1%
BEfsasE (AREF ) (e Total indebtedness (RMB’ 00Q) (Note & 46,176,558 28,527,374 61.9%
EmaE (ARETIT) Total equity (RMB’000) 16,037,036 5,975,116 168.4%
KNEHER AEEER Equity attributable to owners of the
(ARETFT) Company (RMB’000) 8,431,555 4,617,425 82.6%
BEEFEEELE (%) M=) Net gearing ratio (%) Mote?) 136.4% 360.9%
INHE 19 B R AN (%) HE8) Weighted average costs of
indebtedness (%) (Note 8) 9.1% 9.3%

FH&E

(1)

BHHEERERASERENANHEE - 61
HERBRALCERIREAEENBENRE -
ERBEZSHEANBRT FESRTHER
= ZERNOEEERERKEESE -

RO REFIE M R E M E MR A A ARER
SHMEENNFEEE  EHRKR BRERLET
B SR HIBR IR B IR AOAL R -

EMEDREBEFANEFBRAFE RN - BRMN
100% T EEH -

A% O T SR TH AR IR A AR O A I BR BAE S
BIRLA100%EHHESH ©

ReMRITHBEEZRFIRE 2 BAFTA
RREFREEED -

ERGBEEIRET S RITREMER
AEFREEBRTESEE -

BERE 2
BEFEABRLEDRBEFREBLERES R
RITREHHR AR REFEBFRA100%HHiSH -

T IEB ARSI RFEERAAAREE
ETSE INHEF IR E KA o

Notes:

(M

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

Contracted sales include contracted sales attributable to the Group's interests.
Contracted sales data is unaudited and is based on internal information of the Group.
Contracted sales data may be subject to various uncertainties during the process of
collating such sales information and is provided for investors’ reference only.

Core net profit represents the net profit excluding changes of fair value of investment
properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, foreign exchange

gains/losses and listing expenses, net of deferred taxes.

The calculation of gross profit margin is based on gross profit for the year divided by
revenue for the year and multiplied by 100%.

The calculation of core net profit margin is based on core net profit for the year
divided by revenue for the year and multiplied by 100%.

Cash and bank balances comprise restricted cash, pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents.

Total indebtedness represents total interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior
notes, corporate bonds and asset-backed securities.

The calculation of net gearing ratio is based on total indebtedness less cash and bank
balances divided by total equity at the end of the year and multiplied by 100%.

Weighted average cost of indebtedness is the weighted average of interest costs of
all indebtedness outstanding as at the end of each financial year.
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MERBEREE

BRHE
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NENARYEE2,496. 9FE T HIN25.1% -
FTEHRZR-ARE (RELEM - I
B IWRA RRERIAEE - BTEEN
TERFEME) HEERR  HEHEE
hne

RERFE  AEBERBAEEEZNAD
HEREEIEA5,672,190F X &=
— 5,531,982 F FKIEM2.5% » &
EE-_Z_ZTFHNANTHEBAEARYE
13,7817t/ K R-TE—NENARE
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HAEER _Z_ZEFANHELBND
68.7% ~ 22.8% [28.5% °

HEER(EE)ERAR —T-TFFR

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND SALES

Contracted Sales

During the Relevant Year, the Group achieved contracted sales
attributable to the Group’s interests of RMB78,168.1 million,
increased by 25.1% from RMB62,496.9 million in 2019 mainly due
to the rapid growth in sales and increase in the number of projects in
the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region (a geographical region in China
including Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu Province, Shandong Province,
Anhui Province and Jiangxi Province, but excluding Zhejiang Province).

During the Relevant Year, the contracted sales in GFA attributable
to the Group’s interests amounted to 5,672,190 sg.m., representing
an increase of 2.5% from 5,531,982 sq.m. in 2019. The Group's
contracted ASP in 2020 was RMB13,781/sq.m., representing an
increase of 22.0% from RMB11,297/sq.m. in 2019.

Contracted sales attributable to the Group's interests from the
Zhejiang Province, Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region and Other Regions,
which represents regions in China other than Zhejiang Province and
the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region, including Hubei Province, Hunan
Province, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, Fujian Province and
Liaoning Province, contributed to approximately 68.7%, 22.8% and
8.5% of the Group’s total contracted sales in 2020, respectively.
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The following table sets forth the details of contracted sales
attributable to the Group's interests by geographical location for the
Relevant Year:

BEAEE HENHE BEAEEER

EENENHEESE HEHNES L WEEEE EHTHIEE
Contracted

sales Percentage GFA

attributable of total attributable to
to the Group’s contracted the Group's Contracted
Ei Region interests sales interests ASP
(AR¥T ) (%) (EAK) (AR FEHK)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
43 8 Shaoxing 15,303,405 19.6% 983,250 15,564
M Hangzhou 14,542,796 18.6% 564,261 25,773
= Ningbo 5,459,916 7.0% 198,519 27,503
pagAl Wenzhou 4,419,332 5.7% 198,916 22,217
I R0 545 Hohhot 4,394,693 5.6% 446,341 9,846
g Nantong 3,544,105 4.5% 114,783 30,877
5= Jiaxing 3,328,014 4.3% 191,134 17,412
a M Taizhou 3,188,852 4.1% 214,315 14,879
SN Huzhou 2,934,021 3.8% 246,962 11,880
B Ji'nan 2,488,884 3.2% 334,558 7,439
I Wuhu 2,040,688 2.6% 223,218 9,142
A Hefei 2,029,752 2.6% 102,981 19,710
Bk Lishui 2,002,383 2.6% 145,600 13,753
BE Ji'ning 1,415,501 1.8% 209,644 6,752
=81 Xuancheng 1,196,313 1.5% 161,627 7,402
Hith Others 9,879,428 12.6% 1,336,081 7,394
et Total 78,168,082 100% 5,672,190 13,781

T i EE Land Bank

REBFE  AEELWEIcEHE - B
SEEHA2,740,232F K » EIGHEESE
M7156,962,402 F 75K - BUEEHE IR A F 15
AL BEFHKARE4,837C (REER

Zf+k~
=g
Bal=) °

TREIAKERE BFEI B IROF

% :

During the Relevant Year, the Group acquired a total of 46 land
parcels with a total GFA of approximately 2,740,232 sgq.m. and a total
attributable GFA of 6,962,402 sq.m.. The average cost of land parcels
acquired was approximately RMB4,837 per sq.m. (calculated at the
GFA).

The following table sets forth details of the Group's newly acquired
land parcels during the Relevant Year:
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H1 75 &5 B 1 & 22 2] A B % Developed by the Group’s subsidiaries
¥4
TR
[k Efk (RE%
F#  mm W/ EEER TiRR EEER BEEEE THEE HEHE)
Average
Total land cost
Occupied attributable Attributable (in terms
No. City Name of the land/project Land use area GFA land cost of GFA)
(AR%T,/
(FH%K) (Fr%) (AR¥BEBR) FHXK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million) (RMB/sq.m.)
iips
Zhejiang
1 i MNEERABRAE EETRE% 57,139 163,478 1,438 8,796
Hangzhou  Hangzhou Shinsun Guangheying Apartment  Residential and
commercial
2 i MMEEEERAE EETRE% 66,440 276,502 1,869 6,759
Hangzhou  Hangzhou Shinsun Xingheying Apartment Residential and
commercial
3 M EBHERKELE ETRE% 30,163 102,594 790 7,700
Hangzhou  Fuyang Shinsun Chenguangyue Apartment Residential and
commercial
4 i M ETILE ETRE% 79,617 292,406 2,096 7,168
Hangzhou  Hangzhou Shinsun Jiangshanyun Yuenan Residential and
Mansion commercial
5 i TN £ DI E IR ETRE% 57,309 204,509 2,402 11,745
Hangzhou  Hangzhou Shinsun Jiangshanyun Yuebei Residential and
Mansion commercial
6 i MMTD KSR 16551 EERE% 40,031 139,317 1,709 12,267
Hangzhou  Hangzhou Xiasha College Town North Residential and
Plot 16 commercial
7 i mMREEaE EE3 19,052 21,106 48 2,274
Hangzhou  Hangzhou Pingyao Harmony Garden Commercial
8 ER ERFHIER = 70,321 215,252 2,461 11,433
Ningbo Ningbo Shinsun Yuehaitang Residential
9 ER ERFEXBEBN EERE% 65,854 179,292 1,592 8,879
Ningbo Ningbo Shinsun Bright Jinlin Mansion Residential and
commercial
10 mE REFEES = 62,700 159,208 2,080 13,065
Shaoxing Shaoxing Shinsun Yunjing Residential
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¥4
T A
[k ik (REE
F¥  # Wit/ 1BE AR TR EHEE BEEER THEE ERiTE)
Average
Total land cost
Occupied attributable Attributable (in terms
No. City Name of the land/project Land use area GFA land cost of GFA)
(AR#RT/
(FHK) (F7K) (AR¥EER) FHR)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million) (RMB/sq.m.)
11 e FEHEREER FE 29,664 73,649 375 5,092
Shaoxing Zhuji Shinsun Tang Arbor Residential
12 e FEEERHER FERkEE 72,388 142,285 652 4,582
Shaoxing Zhuji Shinsun Qunxian Mansion Residential and
commercial
13 aEE HEFEHLERA FERkEE 36,486 84,476 361 4,273
Shaoxing Zhuji Shinsun Happy World West Residential and
commercial
14 B M ELGER FERkEE 21,191 52,264 648 12,399
Wenzhou  Wenzhou Shinsun Hongyang Garden Residential and
commercial
15 B M EREE FEREE 28,763 124,800 1,347 10,793
Wenzhou  Wenzhou Shinsun Park Avenue Residential and
commercial
16 an EEREERTE FE 38,907 127,125 591 4,649
Taizhou Linhai Shinsun Cloud Garden Residential
17 AL FHLEEBHMPIE FEREE 19,759 58,502 288 4,923
Zhoushan  Zhoushan Shinsun Ocean Arbor Mendi Residential and
commercial
T
Jiangsu
18 g HREEES FE 47814 177,695 2,063 11,610
Nantong Nantong Shinsun Yunjing Residential
19 B BERARAME FERkEE 57,244 169,602 392 2,311
Sugian Sugian Shinsun Oriental Arbor Residential and
commercial
20 G TEEFERER FERkEE 90,007 304,432 781 2,565
Sugian Sugian Shinsun Mansion Garden Residential and
commercial
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¥4
TR
ik FEfk (%
F# HE Wi/ EE AR TR hE R BEEEE TR HEHE)
Average
Total land cost
Occupied attributable Attributable (in terms
No. City Name of the land/project Land use area GFA land cost of GFA)
(AR#T,/
(FH%K) (Fr%) (AR¥BER) FHK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million) (RMB/sq.m.)
WE
Shandong
21 ] EEEEIRNREZE = 161,114 269,338 339 1,259
Ji'nan Jinan Shinsun Rose Heyuanxin Garden Residential
22 ] EBEERAH EEREE 130,879 525,831 255 485
Ji'nan Jiyang Shinsun Oriental Arbor Residential and
commercial
2R
Anhui
23 i BEEEER = 71,217 195,975 1,450 7,399
Hefei Hefei Shinsun Yujing Residential
24 i HEEMER = 97,953 169,670 1,106 6,519
Hefei Shinsun Luzhou Cloud Residential
25 3] HlEEEERE = 59,908 96,151 152 1,581
Wuhu Nanling Shinsun Haitang Bay Residential
26 B EESILGRR/ N EES 37,275 26,219 52 1,983
Xuancheng  Guangde Jishan Hot Spring Town Commercial
27 M ERAKM EEREE 69,652 322,653 140 434
Chuzhou Dingyuan Future Arbor Residential and
commercial
28 M RAREEEREHT EEREE 60,604 161,039 200 1,242
Chuzhou Tianchang Shinsun Changjian Jinlin Mansion  Residential and
commercial
29 B EMEEZHHEE EEREE 96,872 281,372 456 1,621
Suzhou Suzhou Shinsun Yunhu Yue Garden Residential and
commercial
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¥4
T A
s ik (REE
F¥  # Wit/ 1BE AR T R& EHEE BEEER TR ERiTE)
Average
Total land cost
Occupied attributable Attributable (in terms
No. City Name of the land/project Land use area GFA land cost of GFA)
(AR¥7R,/
(FHK) (F7K) (AR¥EER) FHR)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million) (RMB/sq.m.)
PN
Jiangxi
30 EE BEHAR FEREE 47,302 130,354 949 7,280
Nanchang ~ Nanchang Shinsun Mansion Residential and
commercial
31 M EMEEHE ) ENEE FEREE 60,935 170,093 11 653
Fuzhou Fuzhou Shinsun Foling Town Hefeng Residential and
Home commercial
i
Hubei
32 fllitk itk A AT 8 FEREE 64,417 184,271 129 700
Xiantao Xiantao Shinsun West River Arbor Residential and
commercial
LEE
Inner Mongolia
33 A MR R e AT L FEREE 112,083 315,171 678 2,151
Huhhot Hohhot Shinsun Jiangshan Arbor Residential and
commercial
34 A AR AR = 44,980 126,595 241 1,904
Huhhot Hohhot Shinsun Oriental Arbor Phase Il Residential
35 A MR R i AR A FEREE 62,832 189,453 389 2,053
Huhhot Hohhot Shinsun Yunhu Arbor Residential and
commercial
36 A MR i AR A FEREE 61,664 176,895 360 2,035
Huhhot Hohhot Shinsun Lanting Arbor Residential and
commercial
37 A RS KRR [EES 82,208 67,090 162 2,415
Huhhot Hohhot Shinsun Water Park Commercial
Nt 2,312,744 6,476,664 31,152 4,810
Subtotal
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rEBEETL¥ENBE NFIFHEER Developed by the Group’s joint ventures and associates
¥4
THRA
ik Efk (RE%
F#  mm i,/ EEER TR EEE BEEEE THAE & E)
Average
Total land cost
Occupied attributable Attributable (in terms
No. City Name of the land/project Land use area GFA land cost of GFA)
(AR#RT/
(FH%K) (Fr%x) (AR¥BEBR) FHXK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million) (RMB/sq.m.)
jipa
Zhejiang
38 M TN £ GE 44,442 136,650 739 5,408
Hangzhou  Hangzhou Shinsun Center Commercial
39 e FEHETENE GE 129,248 77,549 79 1,019
Shaoxing Zhuji Shinsun Yunxi Jiuli Commercial
40 e FEHEERTEIEE GE 33,327 27,816 34 1,222
Shaoxing Zhuji Shinsun Spring Breeze Project Commercial
41 nE FHEFEHEURR FEREE 71,708 60,586 279 4,605
Shaoxing Zhuji Shinsun Happy World East Residential and
commercial
42 B mMEEE-22a FEREE 18,145 32,016 336 10,495
Wenzhou  Wenzhou Longwan E-22a Residential and
commercial
43 3 REEERARR FEREE 33,430 48,427 273 5,637
Jiaxing Jiaxing Shinsun Jinyu Garden Residential and
commercial
44 3 REAMN04311R FERE%E 21,276 31,549 203 6,434
Jiaxing Jiaxing Xiuzhou Plot 043 Residential and
commercial
45 M TN R+ A2 5% FERE% 40,498 44,148 282 6,388
Quzhou No.2, Tutianpu, Kecheng District, Quzhou Residential and
commercial
46 tE ESEEEREER FEREE 35,414 26,997 298 11,038
Jinhua Yiwu Cuiyu Mansion Project Residential and
commercial
Mt 427,488 485,738 2,523 5,194
Subtotal
ECHY 2,740,232 6,962,402 33,675 4,837
Total
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2020, the total land bank attributable to the
Group, taken into account the total land bank of projects developed
by subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, was 23.3 million sq.m.,
among which, 3.0 million sq.m. were completed properties available
for sale/leasable, 16.2 million sq.m. were under development and 4.1
million sq.m. were for future development.

The following table sets out a breakdown of the total land bank
developed by the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of the
Group attributable to the Group by geographical location as at 31
December 2020:

Developed by the Group’s subsidiaries

AL E rEE hAEE
EIREE L LY EERE KRB FEfR FE{E + i
W HEHE CxRIEEHE EEEE FAMEEEE THREERE RELEFSH
Completed Percentage
GFA available Estimated Total land  of total land
for sale/ Planned GFA for bank bank
Number of available for GFA under future attributable attributable
City Projects lease development development to the Group to the Group
(FHK) (F7HXK) (FAXK) (FHK) (%)
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (%)
p/ipan
Zhejiang
A 14 7,630 1,953,261 139,318 2,100,209 9.0
Hangzhou
T 4 15,205 394,544 - 409,749 1.8
Ningbo
R 39 575,711 2,255,911 84,476 2,916,098 12.5
Shaoxing
BN 4 - 631,437 - 631,437 2.7
Wenzhou
a M 9 459,514 1,205,205 - 1,664,719 7.1
Taizhou
i 5 139,487 - - 139,487 0.6
Jiaxing
N 6 76,529 647,874 - 724,403 3.1
Huzhou
FHL 4 157,531 167,731 - 325,262 1.4
Zhoushan
&I 6 71,790 187,552 - 259,342 1.1
Quzhou
BK 4 - 357,345 440,079 797,424 3.4
Lishui
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AR E rEE HEEE
GRS il EERE RARBAE FEfR FE{h L ith
W HEHE CxIEEERE EEME FEAEEEE TFEELEE RELEFSH
Completed Percentage
GFA available Estimated Total land  of total land
for sale/ Planned GFA for bank bank
Number of available for GFA under future attributable attributable
City Projects lease development development to the Group to the Group
(FFHK) (F73K) (F73K) (EFHK) (%)
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
RRZA
Pan-Yangtze River Delta
i 3 31,866 58,822 223,249 313,937 1.3
Shanghai
RN 2 15,971 - - 15,971 0.1
Suzhou
M 1 - 205,321 - 205,321 0.9
Yangzhou
Eap il 3 21,890 177,695 - 199,585 0.9
Nantong
e 2 98,289 - - 98,289 0.4
Lianyungang
B 1 - 222,159 - 222,159 1.0
Yancheng
5i& 3 24,199 474,034 - 498,233 2.1
Sugian
ZM 6 403,372 19,354 - 422,726 1.8
Taizhou
S 5 82,211 584,240 645,033 1,311,484 5.6
Ji'nan
BE 3 119,233 219,304 504,095 842,632 3.6
Ji'ning
I 1 - 132,676 - 132,676 0.6
Liaocheng
ahe 2 - 295,306 70,338 365,644 1.6
Hefei
O 5 16,695 482,717 29,528 528,940 2.3
Wuhu
= 10 160,624 720,317 200,226 1,081,167 4.6
Xuancheng
SR 11 138,986 447,639 161,543 748,168 3.2
Chuzhou
Bzl 2 - 248,937 - 248,937 1.1
Ma’'anshan
HEER(EE)ARAR —T-TFFH
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AR E rEE HEEE
GRS il EERE RIREE FEfR FE{h L ith
W HEHE CxIEEERE EEME FEAEEEE TFEELEE RELEFSH
Completed Percentage
GFA available Estimated Total land  of total land
for sale/ Planned GFA for bank bank
Number of available for GFA under future attributable attributable
City Projects lease development development to the Group to the Group
(FHK) (FHK) (FEAHXK) (EFHK) (%)
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
B M 2 - 542,108 - 542,108 2.3
Suzhou
ma 1 - 130,354 - 130,354 0.6
Nanchang
T 1 - 208,887 - 208,887 0.9
Jiujiang
N 4 45,413 300,008 170,093 515,514 2.2
Fuzhou
Hit &g
Other Regions
EWE] 4 14,272 - 67,293 81,565 0.3
Wuhan
Il 5 85,672 199,405 155,034 440,111 1.9
Xiantao
Eill 1 7,277 136,612 182,201 326,090 1.4
Jingmen
FIM 3 22,194 - - 22,194 0.1
Jingzhou
&5 1 - 231,560 - 231,560 1.0
Hengyang
w5 1 5,918 245,371 - 251,289 1.1
Yueyang
BiE 1 20,373 121,276 125,805 267,454 1.1
Changde
I 0 4 45 6 - 840,059 243,985 1,084,044 4.6
Hohhot
¥ 1 51,131 19,624 300,000 370,755 1.6
Nanping
10 3 48,058 - - 48,058 0.2
Anshan
NeF 189 2,917,041 15,064,645 3,742,296 21,723,982 93.1
Subtotal
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Developed by the Group’s joint ventures and associates

W E rEE HEEE
T it FE #Y EERE RIREE FEfR FE{h L ith
A HEHE CxRIEEEE EEEE FEEEREEE THREELRE RELEFIH
Completed Percentage
GFA available Estimated Total land  of total land
for sale/ Planned GFA bank bank
Number of available for GFA under for future attributable attributable
City Projects lease development development to the Group to the Group
(FFHK) (FEFHK) (FHK) (FHXK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
T
Zhejiang
A 3 - 303,530 - 303,530 1.3
Hangzhou
B 1 17,953 - - 17,953 0.1
Ningbo
g 7 4,316 176,043 165,950 346,309 1.5
Shaoxing
BN 1 - - 32,016 32,016 0.1
Wenzhou
= 4 - 254,396 31,549 285,945 1.3
Jiaxing
PN 2 2,833 104,910 - 107,743 0.5
Huzhou
&I 1 - - 44,148 44,148 0.2
Quzhou
i 2 - 87,523 26,997 114,520 0.5
Jinhua
ZR=A
Pan-Yangtze River Delta
AR 1 - 72,943 - 72,943 0.3
Nanjing
T 1 - 42,525 - 42,525 0.2
Zhenjiang
Z=MN 2 8,790 - - 8,790 0.0
Taizhou
BRI 2 41,198 16,463 - 57,661 0.2
Chuzhou
ZE 1 - 28,866 39,382 68,248 0.3
Anging
& 1 29,658 71,729 - 101,387 0.4
Shangrao
NeEF 29 104,748 1,158,928 340,042 1,603,718 6.9
Subtotal
wst 218 3,021,789 16,223,573 4,082,338 23,327,700 100.0
Total
HERR(EM)ERAT —T-TFEFR



=

ERE YR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AR E rEE HEEE
EHA GRS il EERE RIREA R EL PE{E £ 3
HE CRIEEERE EEME FEAEEEE TFEELEE RELEFSH
Completed
GFA available Estimated Total land % of total
for sale/ Planned GFA bank land bank
Number available for GFA under for future attributable attributable
of Projects lease development development to the Group to the Group
(FHK) (FHK) (FEAHXK) (EFHK) (%)
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
ZihEE D
By regions
AT 116 1,528,499 8,727,262 964,533 11,220,294 48.2
Zhejiang
wR=A 76 1,238,395 5,702,404 2,043,487 8,984,286 38.5
Pan-Yangtze
River Delta
o[ 13 26 254,895 1,793,907 1,074,318 3,123,120 13.3
Other regions
et 218 3,021,789 16,223,573 4,082,338 23,327,700 100.0
Total
FIEHENER T Y Completed properties held for sale

FIEHENERTITMERERSRSHRIDAK
MR E R TREmME - WRKARAZE
FEMREEIIR - HEHENCRTIYE
BV ANHE AR W E A ROARRIRC AR o

RZE-_ZF+-_A=1+—H A£BEHESS
EERIWEERE ERFELENERT
MEBARBA2727BEBT B-_Z—h
F+-—A=+—BAR¥5,393.4881LE
Bl o« REBE B THAZLEEmEA16.68
BYHKk BZZE-NAF+-A=+—80H

1598 EFIRBAIGN -

Completed properties held for sale represents completed GFA
remaining unrecognised at the end of each reporting period and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of the
completed properties held for sale refers to the related costs incurred
attributable to the unsold properties.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 88 completed property
projects with completed properties held for sale amounted to
RMB4,272.7 million, representing a decrease from RMB5,393.4 million
as at 31 December 2019. The Group's total completed GFA amounted
to 16.6 million sq.m., representing an increase from 15.9 million sq.m
as at 31 December 2019.
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Projects under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion. Properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost, which comprises land costs, construction costs, capitalised
interests and other costs directly attributable to such properties
incurred during the development period, and net realisable value.
Upon completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 97 property projects under
development with properties under development amounted to
RMB105,840.9 million, representing an increase from RMB92,688.5
million as at 31 December 2019. The Group’s total GFA under
development amounted to 16.3 million sg.m., representing a decrease
from 18.0 million sq.m as at 31 December 2019.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Relevant Year, the Group derived its revenue from
five business lines, namely (i) property development and sales; (ii)
management consulting services; (iii) property leasing; (iv) hotel
services; and (v) property management services. The revenue of the
Group was primarily derived from the sales of properties in the PRC.
The following table sets forth the details of the Group’'s revenue
recognised by business line for the years indicated:

BE+T-A=+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

—E-EHF —E-NEF B
Change in
2020 2019 percentage

(AR¥F ) (AR¥EFT)

(RMB’'000) (RMB'000)

Wz Revenue

VIR REE Property development and sales 46,487,347 35,372,157 31.4%
EIRTEARTE Management consulting services 83,383 23,893 249.0%
MERE Property leasing 39,191 12,619 210.6%
B IE AR 7% Hotel services 16,408 107,088 (84.7%)
MEEIRRTE Property management services 12,084 3,781 219.6%
#Ast Total 46,638,413 35,519,538 31.3%

REZR(EMAERLT —T-THEER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue from property development and sales
The following sets forth the details of revenue and GFA recognised for
the years indicated:

BETZA=T-HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December

ZECEF —E-NE
2020 2019

[R (28 BER E®R
g BEER THEE Wogs BEEE THER
Recognised  Recognised Recognised Recognised
Revenue GFA ASP Revenue GFA ASP
(AR%7R (NEETR
(AR®F) (£5XK) JEER) (AR®EFT) (EHXK) VAT
(RMB'000) (sq.m.)  (RMB/sq.m.) (RMB'000) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
T Zhejiang 28,517,643 1,789,071 15,940 22,110,680 1,626,748 13,592
wR=A Pan Yangtze River Delta 16,990,106 2,207,621 7,696 12,709,570 1,766,502 7,195
@5 Other regions 979,598 190,430 5,144 551,907 95,130 5,802
@t Total 46,487,347 4,187,123 11,102 35,372,157 3,488,380 10,140

RITZZTF  AEENMEREREER
HHBAREAG,487 3EE T 0 FLHLIE M
31.4% » TEARECBREEMBER T —
NEHENN20.0% @ FINIEEBRFEHE
B ARME13,5927T, FHKIEBME AR
15,9407C / FFHK °

TR A AR W

RZZEZZTF AEEMNEEHARS
WA B ARES3 AFE T BHEMN
249.0%  TEZHRBMREEERBARSE
MRERIEB HEZIMATH

MEBE WS

AEER-_ZT_TFNNEHREREZHOA/A
R¥39.2887  AHLEM210.6% T2
MR E MR E XA BB INAEL -

B JE AR ik

AEER _ZF_TENEERBREORBA
R¥16.488T AL 84.7% @ EEH
REEBERGIEREM—EIME -

The Group's revenue from property development and sales in 2020
amounted to approximately RMB46,487.3 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 31.4%, primarily due to an increase of 20.0% in
the recognised GFA as compared to 2019, as well as an increase in
the recognized ASP in Zhejiang Province from RMB13,592 per sqg.m.
to RMB15,940 per sg.m..

Revenue from management consulting services

The Group’s revenue from management consulting services in 2020
amounted to approximately RMB83.4 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 249.0%, primarily due to the increase in the
content and number of projects for which we provided management
consulting services.

Revenue from property leasing

The Group's revenue from property leasing in 2020 amounted to
approximately RMB39.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 210.6%, primarily due to the increase in investment property
leasing business projects.

Revenue from hotel services

The Group’'s revenue from hotel services in 2020 amounted to
approximately RMB16.4 million, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 84.7%, primarily due to the disposal of the hotel business as part
of the reorganisation.
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Revenue from property management services

The Group’s revenue from property management services in 2020
amounted to approximately RMB12.1 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 219.6%, primarily due to the increase in business
management income from commercial plazas, partially offset by the
decrease in revenue from property management services provided to
residential property projects.

Cost of sales

The Group incurred the vast majority of its cost of sales in its property
development and sales business. The Group’s cost of sales increased
by approximately 41.3% from RMB27,039.4 million in 2019 to
RMB38,203.6 million for 2020. This increase is primarily due to an
increase in the number and area of projects delivered in 2020.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB8,434.8 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.5%, primarily due to higher
unit price of land for the projects in second-tier cities recognised
during the year and the increase in the recognised ASP per square
metre mainly due to the overall increase in residential property market
conditions for the projects recognised in 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the gross profit margin was
18.1%, representing a decrease of 5.8% as compared to 23.9% for
the corresponding period in the previous year due to the recognition
of higher land costs for projects.

Finance income

Finance income primarily consists of interest income from bank
deposits. The Group's finance income decreased by 50.1% from
RMB151.9 million in 2019 to RMB75.8 million in 2020, primarily due
to the decrease in interest income recognised from associates and
joint ventures in 2020.

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income and other gains primarily includes (i)
subsidy income; (ii) investment income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss; and (iii) gain on disposal of joint ventures.

The Group's other income and gains increased by 13.9% from
RMB95.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB108.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily due to the
increase in gains from wealth management products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by 15.5%
from RMB1,073.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to RMB1,240.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
primarily due to (i) the increase in marketing facilities expenses as
we increased our investment in marketing facilities to upgrade the
interior decoration of such facilities; and (ii) the increase in advertising
expenses.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 0.6% from
RMB1,125.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
RMB1,132.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Other expenses

The Group’s other expenses primarily consist of (i) donations to
non-profit organizations and local communities for purposes of
poverty elimination, tuition sponsorship, infrastructure construction,
disaster relief and elderly care, among others; (ii) compensation for
delayed delivery of property projects; (iii) asset impairment losses
which represent impairment on amounts due from third parties,
other receivable and other deposits, as well as impairment in long-
term investments in joint ventures. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group’s other expenses decreased by approximately 49.2%
from RMB199.4 million to RMB101.2 million as compared with the
corresponding period in the previous year, primary due to decrease
in donations and decrease in impairment in long-term investments in
joint ventures.

Fair value gains on investment properties

The Group’s fair value gains on investment properties decreased
by approximately 79.4% from RMB22.4 million in 2019 to RMB4.6
million in 2020.

Finance costs

Finance costs mainly consist of (i) interest on loans and other
borrowings, asset-backed securities, senior notes, corporate bonds
and lease liabilities; and (ii) interest expense arising from revenue
contracts which represents interest expenses recognised for the
significant financing components included in contract liabilities
during the period from the receipt of sales proceeds to the delivery of
underlying properties, less capitalised interests.

The Group's finance costs increased from RMB777.6 million in 2019 to
RMB1,113.4 million in 2020, primarily due to the total indebtedness
increased by approximately 61.9% from RMB28,527.4 million in 2019
to RMB46,176.6 million in 2020.
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Share of profits/losses of joint ventures

The Group recorded share of loss of RMB54.6 million in 2019 and
share of profit of RMB2.0 million in 2020. In 2019, most joint
ventures projects that the Group co-developed were not delivered and
therefore did not generate significant revenue. The Group recorded
share of profit of joint ventures in 2020 in relation to the profit from
joint venture projects in Zhejiang, Jiangxi Province operated by joint
ventures.

Share of profits and losses of associates

The Group recorded shares of profit of RMB11.5 million in 2019 and
share of loss of RMB19.8 million in 2020, because most projects
that the Group co-developed with associates were not delivered and
therefore did not generate significant revenue.

Profit before tax

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's profit before tax was
RMB5,018.9 million in 2020, compared to its profit before tax of
RMB5,530.3 million in 2019.

Income tax expense

The Group's income tax expense decreased from RMB2,321.4 million
in 2019 to RMB1,965.5 million in 2020, primarily due to a decrease in
LAT as a result of a decrease in gross profit.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group operates in a capital-intensive industry and property
development requires substantial capital investments for land
acquisition and property construction. As at the date of this report,
the Group has funded its operations, working capital, capital
expenditure and other capital requirements primarily from cash
generated from its operations, mainly including proceeds from the
pre-sales and sales of properties, receipt of property lease income
from its investment properties, management consulting service fees,
and property management service fees, as well as bank and other
borrowings, asset-backed securities and senior notes. The financing
methods of the Group vary from project to project, and are subject to
limitations imposed by PRC regulations and monetary policies.

Cash position

The Group’s cash and bank balances, comprising cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, time deposits and pledged deposits,
amounted to approximately RMB24,304.7 million in total as at 31
December 2020, of which RMB21,016.1 million, RMB1,706.4 million,
RMB1,582.2 million were denominated in RMB, HKD and USD,
respectively (31 December 2019: approximately RMB6,962.5 million),
representing an increase of approximately 249.1%.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total borrowings, comprising
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, asset-backed securities
(which were fully repaid by 30 April 2020), corporate bonds and
senior notes, amounted to approximately RMB46,176.6 million (31
December 2019: RMB28,527.4 million), representing an increase of
approximately 61.9% as compared with 31 December 2019.

Details of the borrowings are set out in notes 30 to 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Net current assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to RMB34,120.8 million (31 December 2019: RMB17,670.3
million). Specifically, the Group’s total current assets increased
by approximately 22.8% from RMB125,055.6 million as at 31
December 2019 to RMB153,557.4 million as at 31 December 2020.
The Group's total current liabilities increased by approximately
11.2% from RMB107,385.4 million as at 31 December 2019 to
RMB119,436.6 million as at 31 December 2020. The increase in the
Group's net current assets was primarily attributable to (i) increase in
properties under development of RMB13,152.4 million as a result of
business expansion and increase in the number of properties under
development; (ii) increase in cash and bank balances of RMB17,342.3
million as a result of increase in pre-sales and net proceeds from the
Listing; (iii) decrease in contract liabilities of RMB 9,110.3 million as a
result of increase in recognised revenue; (iv) bank borrowings, senior
notes and corporate bonds issuance increased by RMB10,684.2
million.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings were secured by
the Group's assets of RMB71,391.8 million which include investment
properties, properties under development, pledged deposits (31
December 2019: RMB52,838.7 million), primarily due to the increase
in the amount of the Group's loans.

Financial risks

The main risks arising from the Group’s activities are: interest rate
risk, credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the
Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk management. To
keep the Group's exposure to these risks to a minimum, the Group
has not used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to its interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge
interest rate risks. The Group manages its interest costs using
variable rate bank borrowings and other borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Credit risk

The Group classifies financial instruments on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics, such as instrument type and credit risk ratings
for the purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and
calculation of impairment. To manage risk arising from trade and
bills receivables, the Group has policies in place to ensure that credit
terms are made only to counterparties with an appropriate credit
history and management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the
Group's counterparties. The credit period granted to the customers
is generally six months and the credit quality of these customers is
assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience
and other factors. The Group also has other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue receivables.
In addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
trade and bills receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with cash deposits at banks since they are substantially deposited at
state-owned banks and other medium or large-sized listed banks.
Management does not expect that there will be any significant losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group also makes periodic collective assessments for financial
assets included in prepayments and other receivables and amounts
due from related parties as well as individual assessments on the
recoverability of other receivables and amounts due from related
parties based on historical settlement records and past experience.
The Group has classified financial assets included in prepayments and
other receivables and amounts due from related parties in Stage 1 and
continuously monitored their credit risk.

The Group expects that there is no material credit risk inherent
in the Group's outstanding balance of financial assets included in
prepayments and other receivables and amounts due from related
parties.
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Foreign currency risk

The Group primarily operates its business in the PRC. Therefore,
the Group’s businesses are principally conducted in RMB, which is
the functional currency of the group companies. Foreign currency
transaction included mainly receipts of proceeds from the Listing,
proceeds from senior notes and payment of professional fees which
are dominated in HK$ or US$. As at 31 December 2020, major non-
RMB assets are 2,027.5 million denominated in HK$ in the amount
of RMB1,706.4 million. Major non-RMB assets are 242.5 million
denominate in US$ in the amount of RMB1,582.2 million. Major non-
RMB liabilities are 519.5 million denominated in US$ in the amount of
RMB3,390.0 million. Fluctuation of the exchange rates of RMB against
foreign currency could affect the Group’s results of operations. The
Group currently does not engage in hedging activities designed
or intended to manage foreign exchange rate risk. The Group will
continue to monitor foreign exchange changes to best preserve the
Group's cash value.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash through internally
generated sales proceeds and an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet its operation needs and commitments in
respect of property projects. The Group’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group reviews
its liquidity position on an ongoing basis, including review of the
expected cash inflows and outflows, pre-sales/sales results, maturity
of its borrowings and the progress of the property projects in order to
monitor its liquidity requirements in the short and long terms.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no plan for any material
investments or capital assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
significant investments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Other than the reorganisation which was completed on 20 May 2020
as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 October 2020
(the “Prospectus”), there were no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Mortgage guarantees

In line with market practice in the PRC, the Group has arrangements
with various banks for the provision of mortgage financing and
where required, provide its customers with guarantees as security for
mortgage loans. The terms of such guarantees typically last until the
issuance of the real estate ownership certificate upon the completion
of guarantee registration or satisfaction of mortgage loan by the
purchaser. As a guarantor, if the purchaser defaults in payment, the
Group is obligated to repay all outstanding amounts owed by the
purchaser to the mortgagee bank under the loan and have the right
to claim such amount from the defaulting purchaser.

The total outstanding mortgage guarantee amounts provided by the
Group to banks amounted to RMB27,241.5 million as at 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: RMB37,028.8 million).

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year ended 31
December 2020 in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage
facilities granted to purchasers of its completed properties held for
sale.

Financial guarantees

As at 31 December 2020, the Group guaranteed certain of the bank
and other borrowings made to its related companies up to RMB943.6
million (As at 31 December 2019, the Group guaranteed certain of
the bank and other borrowings made to its related companies and a
third party up to RMB4,137.5 million).

Legal contingents

The Group may be involved in lawsuits and other proceedings in its
ordinary course of business from time to time. The Group believes
that no liabilities resulting from these proceedings will have a material
and adverse effect on its business, financial condition or operating
results.
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COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitment of
RMB27,016.9 million in relation to the signing of a construction
contract or land contract that is being or will be performed (31
December 2019: RMB27,194.6 million).

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Current Ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the current ratio of the Group was 1.3
times (31 December 2019: 1.2 times). The Group's current ratio was
relatively stable and the increase was mainly due to the increase in
current assets.

Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by
the total current liabilities as at the respective dates and multiplied by
100%.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group was 90.0%
(2019: 95.4%), mainly due to the increase in net assets as a result of
revenue recognition. This ratio is calculated as total debts divided by
total assets as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

Net gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net gearing ratio decreased
to 1.4 as compared with the net gearing ratio of 3.6 as at 31
December 2019 (which was calculated based on total bank and other
borrowings, asset-backed securities, corporate bonds and senior
notes less cash and bank balances divided by total equity as of the
respective dates), which was primarily due to the increase in net assets
as a result of revenue recognition.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AND
ARRANGEMENTS

Except for the contingent liabilities disclosed above, the Group has
not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments
to guarantee the payment obligations of any third parties and
related parties. The Group does not have any variable interest in any
uncombined entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or
credit support to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

NET PROCEEDS FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on the Listing Date. The net proceeds from the Listing (including
the full exercise of the over-allotment option), after deducting
the underwriting commission and other estimated expenses in
connection with the Listing. which the Company received amounted
to approximately HK$3,514.0 million. The Group intends to utilise
the net proceeds raised from the Listing according to the plans set
out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the

Prospectus.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the utilization and
proposed utilization of net proceeds as at 31 December 2020:

BRERER
i &
FrERETRE
Allocation of
net proceeds
as described in

R-E-EF
+=ZR=+-H
HEBA
FERERE
Utilised net
proceeds as at
31 December

R-B-EF
+=ZR=+-H
HAREF
FERERE
Unutilised net
proceeds as at
31 December

ERRBA
P uE RN
RERBER

Proposed schedule for
use of unutilised

FRNERENREER R net proceeds the prospectus 2020 2020 net proceeds
BEBT HEBT BERT
HKS$ in million HKS$ in million HKS$ in million
REEEMHEAN To finance the 2,108.4 537.0 1,571.4 —E--55-FEZ
ERENES development of the “E--FE=EE
Group's property First quarter of 2021 to
projects third quarter of 2021
ERAEERAAR To repay a portion of 1,054.2 1,054.2 - -
HIEARZEAREH existing trust loans
BAEFER of the Group which
are used for its
project development
purposes
—REBLERLERD For general business 3514 85.3 2661 C—E-—HRE-T--F
operations and working 2021 to 2022
capital
@t Total 3,514.0 1,676.5 1,837.5

R-ZZE-ZF+-A=+—H LtWAAEL
TARBAMASRIBD FRORNRT

As at 31 December 2020, all the remaining unutilised proceeds from
the Listing had been deposited with banks.
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EMPLOYEE, REMUNERATION POLICY AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 3,488 full-
time employees (31 December 2019: 4,528). For the year ended 31
December 2020, the staff cost recognised as expenses of the Group
amounted to RMB900 million (31 December 2019: RMB903 million).

The remuneration policy of the Group is to provide remuneration
packages, including salary, bonus and other cash subsidies. In general,
the Group determines employee salaries based on each employee’s
qualification, position and seniority. The Group has designed an
annual review system to assess the performance of our employees,
which forms the basis of our determination on salary raises, bonuses
and promotions. As required by PRC regulations, the Group makes
contributions to mandatory housing funds and social insurance funds.

The Company has also conditionally adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”)on 20 October 2020 to recognise and
reward the eligible employees for their contributions to the business
and development of the Group.

The Group has also incorporated mentorship, assessment, feedback
and evaluation processes into its various training programs, which the
Group believes will facilitate its employees to better learn and grow.
The Group believes that its training programs, combined with on-the-
job learning, facilitate advancement of its employees.

The Group has a labor union which represents the interests of its
employees and works closely with its management on labor-related
issues. As at 31 December 2020, no labor dispute had occurred which
materially and adversely affected or was likely to have a material and
adverse effect on the Group’s operations

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of this report, the Group did not have any other
significant event subsequent to 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Guoxiang (BREI#), aged 70, founded the Group in 1995.
Mr. Chen was appointed as Director on 13 December 2019 and was
re-designated as executive Director and appointed as the chairman
of the Board on 21 May 2020. Mr. Chen is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall business direction and strategic development
of the Group. Mr. Chen has been the chairman of Shinsun Property
Group Co., Ltd. (a company established in the PRC with limited liability
on 4 January 1995 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Xiangsheng Industrial Group Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng
Industrial”) (a company established in the PRC with limited liability on
7 July 1995 and owned as to 99% by Mr. Chen Guoxiang and 1% by
Mr. Chen Hongni, the son of Mr. Chen Guoxiang) since January 1995
and July 1995, respectively. Mr. Chen also serves as a director of our
various subsidiaries. From November 2014 to December 2018, Mr.
Chen successively served as a director and the vice chairman of the
7th board of directors and a director of the 8th board of directors of
Great Wall International ACG Co., Ltd. (R EEshH2BEERNDBREA
&]) (formerly known as Sichuan Great Wall International ACG Co., Ltd.
(7)1 =3k B B8 352 B AR B PR 2 &) and Sichuan Shengda Industrial
Co., Ltd. (WIIBEEERHARAE])), a company engages in the
animation industry, whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000835.5Z). Mr. Chen is the father of Mr. Chen
Hongni, the executive Director, chief executive officer and president.
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Mr. Chen has over 28 years of experience in the PRC real estate
industry. Prior to founding the Group in January 1995, Mr. Chen
established Zhejiang Zhuji Xiangsheng Enterprise Development Co.,
Ltd. (I ABEMFLEEEREMENQF]), a company engaged in real
estate property development in Zhejiang Province of the PRC, in June
1993 and acted as its chairman and general manager.

Mr. Chen obtained the qualification of senior economist from Zhejiang
Zhuji Personnel Bureau (#) T & # B A= /3) of the PRC in December
2003. Mr. Chen has successively served as a council member and an
executive council member of the 7th and 8th Council of the China
Real Estate Industry Association (FFEIEHE 2 #E) from May 2014 to
December 2018 and from May 2019 till now, respectively. He was also
appointed as the vice chairman of the New Urbanization Committee
of the General Association of Zhejiang Entrepreneurs (iff 42 #73
EEXEZEG) in April 2019 and the honorary chairman of Zhoushan
Charity General Association (FFLUTZZ44E) in June 2019.

Mr. Chen has received multiple awards in recognition of his experience
in the real estate industry. He was named as one of the “Top 10
Leading Persons in Residential Property Industry in Zhejiang Province”
MIAEEEETAEEAY) in 2004, 2008, 2010, 2011 and 2014
and was awarded the “Outstanding Economic Contribution in Zhuji
City of Zhejiang Province” award in 2006, 2007, 2019 and 2020. In
2008, Mr. Chen was recognised as one of the “Top 100 Outstanding
China Real Estate Entrepreneurs in 2008” (2008F Bl A &EFEH
ENMZER) by All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce (&
HEMEMEHE). He was awarded the “2012 Shaoxing Charity
Star” (BEIMZEZ 2 2) by Shaoxing City Charity Federation (#A£
MAEZ4E) in 2012 and “5th Charity Award of Zhejiang Province”
CIMTIEAFEREATEEZ) by the People’s Government of Zhejiang
Province (3T/Z& AERBF) in 2016. Mr. Chen was also awarded the
“Economic Development Merit Award” (£ % EIH 81 4%) by Shaoxing
Development Conference (AA#125fE K &) and the “Golden Narcissus
Award” (& 7K{ll2€) by 2019 World Zhoushanese Congress (20191t 5%
FAKRE) in 2018 and 2019, respectively.

Mr. Chen was a director of Zhuji Fuerda Clothing Embroidery Co.,
Ltd. (FEEMEBERERNFEER A A]) (“Fuerda Clothing”), a company
established in the PRC. On August 16, 2005, the business license of
Fuerda Clothing was revoked. Mr. Chen confirmed that, to the best
of his knowledge and belief, Zhuji Fuerda was solvent as at the time
when its business license was revoked and as of the Latest Practicable
Date, no claims had been made against him and he was not aware of
any actual or potential claim that has been or will be made against
him as a result of the revocation of license of Fuerda Clothing.
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Mr. Chen has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 20 October 2020, and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the service
contract, Mr. Chen will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration
(including salary, allowances and benefits in kind) of approximately
RMB1.35 million for his role as executive Director, which is determined
by the Board upon recommendation from the remuneration committee
with reference to his qualification, level of duties and responsibilities
undertaken in the Company and the prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Chen Hongni (FR5A{%), aged 38, was appointed as the executive
Director and chief executive officer on 21 May 2020. He has been the
president of the Group since January 2019 and is primarily responsible
for overseeing the overall business management and operations of
the property projects of the Group. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Chen Hongni is the son of Mr.
Chen, our founder, a Controlling Shareholder, an executive Director
and the chairman of our Board.

He has over 8 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry. He
joined the Group in November 2012 as the general manager of the
hotel management company of Xiangsheng Industrial Group Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries (“Xiangsheng Industrial Group”), where he was
responsible for overseeing the overall operations of the hotels. From
November 2014 to December 2017, Mr. Chen served as the chairman
of the branch company in Zhuji City, where he was responsible for
overseeing the operations and management of the Group’s project
companies in Zhuji area. From December 2017 to January 2019, he
served as the executive president of Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd.
(“Shinsun Property”) (a company established in the PRC with limited
liability on January 4, 1995 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), where he assisted the president in the overall business
management of Shinsun Property.

Since July 2016, Mr. Chen Hongni has served as the vice chairman of
the Zhuji Young Entrepreneurs Association (EEZMHERDERH D)
of the Zhuji city in the PRC. Mr. Chen Hongni obtained a bachelor’s
degree in general studies (business management) from Fort Hays State
University in the United States in May 2010.

Mr. Chen Hongni has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 20 October
2020, and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant
to the service contract, Mr. Chen Hongni will be entitled to receive
an annual remuneration (including salary, allowances and benefits
in kind) of approximately RMB4.7 million for his role as executive
Director, which is determined by the Board upon recommendation
from the remuneration committee with reference to his qualification,
level of duties and responsibilities undertaken in the Company and
the prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Zhao Leiyi (&%), aged 59, was appointed as the executive
Director on 21 May 2020. Mr. Zhao has over 13 years of experience
in the real estate industry. He joined the Group in August 2007 as its
vice president and he is responsible for overseeing the management
of key property projects of the Group.

Mr. Zhao graduated from Zhejiang Open University (I TEEE
HAE) (majoring in finance) in the PRC in August 1986. He has
completed a degree course in legal studies provided by China
Agricultural University (REIZ%AZ) in the PRC in January 2005
through distance learning and the Senior Marketing Professional
Managers Training Course (= AR5 42 I%RIE) provided by Tsinghua
University (B2 AZ) in the PRC in April 2006.

Mr. Zhao has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 20 October 2020, and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the service
contract, Mr. Zhao will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration
(including salary, allowances and benefits in kind) of approximately
RMB2.5 million for his role as executive Director, which is determined
by the Board upon recommendation from the remuneration committee
with reference to his qualification, level of duties and responsibilities
undertaken in the Company and the prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Han Bo (3§), aged 47, was appointed as the executive Director
on 12 March 2021. He joined the Group as vice president. He was the
president in Suwan region where he was responsible for overseeing
the daily operation in Suwan region from July 2018 to February
2020. Since January 2020, he has been responsible for overseeing the
construction and contract center of the Group.

He has over 23 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry.
From November 1998 to December 2014, he served as an executive
general manager of Greentown China Holdings Limited (%E3k A Bl4%
BB AT, a real estate development company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 03900),
where he was mainly responsible for overseeing daily operation of
the group’s products and projects. From January 2015 to July 2018,
he served as the regional vice president of Sunac China Holdings Ltd.
(stock code: 01918) (Tianmao Properties (Nanjing) Limited), where he
was mainly responsible for overseeing the group’s regional business
operations.

Mr. Han is a qualified civil engineer as certified by Economic and
Trade Commission of Zhejiang Province (T E&KEZE HEEE) since
December 2002. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from

Zhejiang University (41T K2 in the PRC in July 1996.

Mr. Han has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 12 March 2021, and is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the service
contract, Mr. Han will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration
(including salary, allowances and benefits in kind) of approximately
RMB2.5 million for his role as executive Director, which is determined
by the Board upon recommendation from the remuneration committee
with reference to his qualification, level of duties and responsibilities
undertaken in the Company and the prevailing market conditions.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason (E£#3X), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 October 2020.

Mr. Wong has over 27 years of experience in fund management and
capital market investment. From December 1992 to May 1993 and
from January 1989 to September 1992, Mr. Wong was employed as
a senior accountant Il by Ernst & Young in Hong Kong and a senior
auditor by Clay & Co. CPA in the USA, respectively. From May 1993
to February 2000, he served as a financial consultant of Transpac
Capital Limited, one of the largest and oldest private equity funds
and venture capital funds in Asia, where he was mainly responsible
for financial due diligence, financial risk management and investment
management. Since March 2000, he has been the managing director
of Fortune Capital Group Limited, an investment company, where
he is mainly responsible for corporate investment business planning,
investment project evaluation and investment management. Since
April 2013, he has served as the founding shareholder, director, and
investment committee member of Whiz Partners Asia Limited, a
company which manages the fund investment strategies of companies
in Japan and other Asian countries, where he is mainly responsible
for investment project evaluation and formulation of investment
strategies.

Mr. Wong has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (formerly known as the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants) since February 1993 and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since June 1992. Mr.
Wong served as a member of the Jiu Yuan District, Baotou City, 8th
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
the PRC from November 2012 to November 2016 Mr. Wong
obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration (majoring in
accounting) from the University of Hawaii at Manoa in the United
States in December 1988.

Mr. Wong has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 20 October 2020, and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the service
contract, Mr. Wong will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration
(including salary, allowances and benefits in kind) of approximately
HK$0.24 million for his role as independent non-executive Director,
which is determined by the Board upon recommendation from the
remuneration committee with reference to his qualification, level
of duties and responsibilities undertaken in the Company and the
prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Ding Jiangang (T #Hl), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 October 2020. Mr. Ding
has approximately 31 years of experience in the media industry. From
November 1985 to April 1989, Mr. Ding was the teacher and leader
of the teaching and research group of building structure of Zhejiang
Construction Industrial College (#T/T& 25 T #E4%), where he was
responsible for teaching building structure courses and management
of the teaching and research group. From April 1989 to September
2008, he was the journalist and producer of Zhejiang Radio & TV
Group (HT/EE BG4 E), a group engaged in publication and sales
of newspaper, magazines and videos, where he was responsible for
production of property programs. From September 2008 to February
2013, he was the assistant supervisor of the economic department
of, and the vice chief editor of the website “Live in Hangzhou" of,
Zhejiang Online News Website Co., Ltd. (I EMALER
‘A\]), a company engaged in online news publication, where he
was responsible for researching financial properties and providing
commentaries. From March 2013 to May 2014, Mr. Ding was the head
of Hangzhou Joint Founder Information Technology Co., Ltd. (/N
P EEERHEAR AR, which is engaged in the provision of market
analysis of real estate industry, and was responsible for research on
real estate policy and real estate market. Since January 2019, Mr.
Ding has been an independent non-executive director of Dexin China
Holdings Company Limited (B EERBR A 5]), a PRC property
developer whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2019). Since 21 February 2019, Mr. Ding has
been an independent non-executive director of Binjiang Service Group
Co. Ltd., a property management service provider whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3316).
Since May 2014, Mr. Ding has been the dean of Zhejiang Daily Media
Real Estate Institute (H3REEHEMZTIHT), which is engaged in the
provision of market analysis of real estate industry, and is responsible
for research on real estate policy and real estate market. He has also
been serving at Zhejiang Real Estate Institute (M T EEERE) as a
council member and is responsible for research in relation to policies
and market trends in the real estate industry since October 2017. Mr.
Ding obtained a bachelor’'s degree in civil engineering (T ERHE
£ EF) from Xi'an University of Architecture and Technology (Fa% i
SR KE) (formerly known as Xi‘an Metallurgy Architecture College
(PR EEERT)), in the PRC, in July 1983.

Mr. Ding has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 20 October 2020, and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the service
contract, Mr. Ding will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration
(including salary, allowances and benefits in kind) of approximately
RMBO0.2 million for his role as independent non-executive Director,
which is determined by the Board upon recommendation from the
remuneration committee with reference to his qualification, level
of duties and responsibilities undertaken in the Company and the
prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Ma Hongman (F4AL8), aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 October 2020.

Mr. Ma has more than 17 years of experience in the media industry.
From April 2002 to April 2017, he served as a producer and host
of various financial television programs for Shanghai First Financial
Media Co., Ltd. (E/BE—B&EHEABRAF]). From September 2014
to August 2016, he served as an external postgraduate adviser of
master of finance (£ RETFEEMAFTERIMNEGEERD) in Tonji
University (FEEAEZ) in the PRC. From April 2017 to April 2020,
he served as the director and a senior researcher of the Institute of
Enterprises Competitiveness (1223 %L FT) under the Institute of
Chinese Enterprises Development of Shanghai Jiao Tong University (=
AR B E DRI, Since April 2017, Mr. Ma has been
a director and president of Shanghai Youera Media Co., Ltd. (E/8%)
HEH AR AA]), a media company, where he oversees the business
operation, and a member of the experts committee of Shanghai Brand
Development Center (L& MmEIE#EF L)), Since December 2018,
he has been a guest lecturer of SILC Business School of Shanghai
University (/8 X2 EB IR ZM) for a period of three years.

Mr. Ma obtained the qualification of an international actuary (E¥
BREE S EEN) from the USA Federal International Qualification
Authentication Corp. (XEIEFERERRERHE) in September
2017. He was named as one of “2011-2012 Top Ten Young Economic
Figures in Shanghai” (20114F-2012F BB+ KEFFLEAD) by
Shanghai Young Entrepreneurs Association (&M EHFLERIRG
&) in March 2013, and “Shanghai Top Ten Outstanding Youth” (£
B+ AREEHBF) by the 18th Shanghai Top Ten Outstanding Youth
Selection Activity Group (B2+/\E LB +RELEFFREHHA)
formed by representatives of various organizations including Shanghai
Youth Federation, Xinhua News Agency (Shanghai branch), Shanghai
Television Station and Liberation Daily Newspaper Group in December
2015. He was also awarded the “Shanghai Youth May Fourth Medal”
(LEMSERIEEE) by the Central Committee of the Communist
Youth League (k& E FEMZ B <) and Shanghai Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau (LMW ANERMEERER) in May
2014.

Mr. Ma obtained a master’s degree in industrial economics from
Shanghai University (E/8AXZ) in the PRC in April 2002 and a
doctorate degree in economics from Shanghai Academy of Social
Sciences (/8 EFIE3PT) in the PRC in July 2007.

Mr. Ma has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 20 October 2020, and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the service
contract, Mr. Ma will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration
(including salary, allowances and benefits in kind) of approximately
RMBO0.2 million for his role as independent non-executive Director,
which is determined by the Board upon recommendation from the
remuneration committee with reference to his qualification, level
of duties and responsibilities undertaken in the Company and the
prevailing market conditions.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tan Mingheng (##18), aged 45, joined the Group as vice
president in October 2019 and was appointed as one of the joint
company secretaries and chief financial officer on May 21, 2020 and
May 26, 2020, respectively. He is primarily responsible for overseeing
the financial operations of capital market and company secretarial
affairs of our Group.

He has over 20 years of finance experience. Prior to joining the Group,
he served as a senior auditor in Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP from
September 1998 to December 2000. From January 2001 to March
2008, he served in the Shanghai Branch of KPMG Huazhen LLP and
his last position was senior manager. Mr. Tan has also served in various
real estate development companies in the PRC. From April 2008 to
January 2013, he served as the director of the risk management
department in Jingrui Properties (Group) Co., Ltd. (S¥sibE (£H)
BRRAF]) (“lingrui Properties”), where he was mainly responsible for
risk management. Mr. Tan was appointed as the chief financial officer
and the officer in charge of audit legal affairs of Jingrui Holdings
Limited (2IHIER AR A F]), a real estate company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1862), in
January 2013 and served as so till August 2015. From August 2015 to
March 2016, he served as the chief financial officer of Zhenro Group
Co., Ltd. (IE#%EHER A7), a real estate company. From March
2016 to September 2017, he served as chief financial officer and
the board secretary of Zhenro Properties Holdings Company Limited.
From September 2017 to November 2018, he served in the group
comprising Zhenro Properties Group Limited (IE&HESEE AR A R])
(Stock Code: 6158), a real estate company whose shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and its subsidiaries and his last
positions included chief financial officer and joint company secretary,
where he was responsible for overall financial and capital operation of
the group. From November 2018 to October 2019, he served as the
vice president and chief financial officer of Orsun Holdings Limited
(B BBRAR]), a real estate property developer, where he was
responsible for overseeing the financial matters of the Group.

Mr. Tan has been a certified public accountant as credentialed by
Shanghai Institute of Certified Public Accountant since 2009. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics majoring in international
finance from the Shanghai University ((E/KXZ8) in the PRC in July
1998. He also obtained an executive master of business administration
(EMBA) degree from Fudan University (fEE X2) in the PRC in June
2013. In November 2002, he was recognised as a certified internal
auditor by China Institute of Internal Auditors with the authorization
from the Institute of Internal Auditors.
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Mr. Chen Yihui (FRZ¥E), aged 32, joined the Group as the regional
president. He served as the regional president of the Group for Eastern
Zhejiang from January 2019 to January 2020 and was responsible for
the overall day-to-day business operations in the Eastern Zhejiang
region. Since January 2021, he has been promoted to the position
of vice president of the Group and regional president for Eastern
Zhejiang. He has 10 years of experience in the real estate industry
in the PRC. From July 2011 to November 2018, he successively
served as secretary to the chairman of the board and senior manager
of operation, general manager of construction company, general
manager of Fuzhou regional company, general manager of Fujian
regional company, president of the first business unit, general
manager of Ronshine operation and management center and general
manager of the president’s office of Ronshine China Holdings Limited
(stock code: 03301, a property development company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange), during which he
was mainly responsible for the overall day-to-day business operation
of the business unit and the operation and management center.

Mr. Zhong Chao (#&#), aged 47, joined the Group in December
2016 and has successively served as a general manager of the Group's
project company in Wuhu, vice general manager of the Group’s city
companies in Hangjia area and regional assistant to the president of
the Group's business operations in North Zhejiang area. Since October
2019, he has been the regional general vice president of the Group's
business operation in North Zhejiang area, where he is responsible for
overseeing its daily operations in North Zhejiang area.

Prior to joining the Group, from April 2007 to December 2016,
Mr. Zhong served as the general manager at Zhejiang Zhuji Tianma
Experimental School GV I X EHBEEXHBR A A]), a real estate project
company, where he was responsible for the management of the
company'’s business.

Mr. Zhong has been a qualified civil engineer as certified by Shaoxing
City Educational Training Group (4RETIBEFERESEE /NE) since
October 2002. He has obtained a bachelor’s degree in the operation
and management of real estate (BHIELZEIE) from Zhejiang
University of Technology (I L3 KX2) in the PRC in July 1997. He
also completed the Wharton & E-House Real Estate Executive Program
provided by E-House-Wharton Case Study and Teaching Facility in
April 2019.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Tan Mingheng (% #18), vice president and chief financial officer
of the Group, was appointed as one of the joint company secretaries
on 21 May 2020. For biographical details of Mr. Tan, please refer to
“Senior Management — Mr. Tan Mingheng (FA$41E)" in this section.

Ms. Chen Chun (Bf}E) was appointed as one of the joint company
secretaries on 21 May 2020. Ms. Chen joined SWCS Corporate
Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited in December 2013, and
currently serves as a company secretarial executive providing support
and advisory on listed companies’ company secretarial work and
compliance matters.

Ms. Chen obtained her bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai
Lixin University of Accounting and Finance (LB {E&:t&me
Bt) (formerly known as Shanghai Finance University) in the PRC in
July 2010. Ms. Chen was admitted as an associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and elected associate of The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in the United Kingdom in
March 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

s

TEEBNRERKENREER - LR The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate

EARAARIRG (TREDEBEA(TERED S governance to safeguard the interests of the holders (the

MW ACEEBERBENE - “Shareholders”) of the shares (the “Shares”) of the Company and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

>

ARRERMARIERESBEZIMERA The Company has adopted and applied the corporate governance
Al S EARAI ([ ETRAI]) M8+ PprE; code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix

EERTR([REERTADERERY 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
WEERTR - BEEEMAM - AQF Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code
BELMBPEEE S _TF+_A="1— on corporate governance and, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
HEEhEEATR T A AR TAF the Company had complied with all applicable code provisions under
X e the Corporate Governance Code since the Listing Date and up to 31

December 2020.

EExg THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HITES Executive Directors

FREIFE LA (FF) Mr. Chen Guoxiang (Chairman)

FROAT S (FTIMABEL) Mr. Chen Hongni (Chief Executive Officer)
gy at (W2 A RFHME) Ms. Yao Xiaozhen (resigned on 5 February 2021)
HEREE Mr. Zhao Leiyi

BRAE (R_TE_—F=-A+_HEZT) Mr. Hanbo (appointed on 12 March 2021)
BIFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
F@®XEE Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason

TEmLE Mr. Ding Jiangang

BAB & Mr. Ma Hongman
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Board composition

As at 31 December 2020, the Board consists of four executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chen Guoxiang (Chairman), Mr. Chen Hongni
(Chief Executive Officer), Ms. Yao Xiaozhen and Mr. Zhao Leiyi, and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kon
Man Jason, Mr. Ding Jiangang, and Mr. Ma Hongman. An updated
list of the Directors and their roles and functions is published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and of the Company, respectively. The
overall management and supervision of the Company’s operation and
the function of formulating overall business strategies are vested in
the Board.

Mr. Chen Guoxiang is the father of Mr. Chen Hongni, the executive
Director, chief executive officer and president. Save as disclosed above,
there are no financial, business, family or other material relationships
among the members of the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has at all times
since Listing met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The three
independent non-executive Directors represent more than one-third
of the Board, complying with the requirement under Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive directors of a
listed issuer must represent at least one-third of the board. The Board
believes there is sufficient independence element in the Board to
safeguard the interest of Shareholders.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Senior Management

The Board is the primary decision making body of the Company and
takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Company,
including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitor the performance of the senior executives. The Directors
have to make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to the management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and
operation of the Group to the senior management of the Group.
Before entering into any significant transactions or commitments on
behalf of the Company, members of the senior management should
obtain prior approval and authorization from the Board. In order to
have a clear division between the management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of the business operations of the Group,
the role of the chairman is separate from that of the chief executive
officer. Mr. Chen Guoxiang, executive Director and chairman of the
Board, is responsible for formulating the overall business direction
and strategic development of the Group. Mr. Chen Hongni, executive
Director and chief executive officer, is responsible for overseeing the
overall business management of the Group and operations of the
Group's property projects.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management of the
Company is maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage
for certain legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing
their duties.
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Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time,
and conducting the day-to-day management and operations of the
Group. Executive Directors and senior executives meet regularly to
review the performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole,
co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and operational
decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where management should
report back, and will review the delegation arrangements on a
periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of
the Group.

Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that
the consolidated financial statements of the Group are published
in a timely manner. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the consolidated
financial statements of the Group on a going concern basis.

Independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in
the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views
carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. The functions of
independent non-executive Directors include bringing an impartial
view and judgement on issues of the Company’s strategies,
performance and control; and scrutinising the Company's performance
and monitoring performance reporting.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have made positive contributions to the development of the Company
through providing their professional advice to the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
three years.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

65



66

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI

BUFRTEZFZB LMD IRERZ LR
AFHE - RIBEMARAE 31306 - SIBL
FRTEZFCRARRFEEEHERE - &
BEEFE 2B - RRRRBAAEBILIEH
TEFHNTE EMRANEIRMAHINNE
SERHETES]  WREBBIAL

EFEZTILEE

ARAEFERITARFEEERANSFE
B ARRBRZZ_ZEFTARKESS
ZIALERE - HP#HY TERARSEES
ZIAEMBEREETE -  REEFEZ TR
R ARAEBERZRAR (BEETR
MEELS - i AE - 45 F8)8 X
EEHEER REEKRAEENREF
R)SKEREEGZ T -

REALZEGEERREFINENZ LY
BFLTRNBETERERE S TENER
SRl RREZEESTRRHNEES ST
B R Z AL AR AR BN B RUE -

EXRATREE (BEEWE &5t ¥
BEE BERBER) WAE - RERK
B RERBITRABEENEREM (B
ERER Bh S REEMBERIRE
B) ARAEE =L TRTEESNBEL
FRTEE HEFEXNEN=0Z2— I
Eoltdh BEREENFREERA - #3855

FT0RNE ©

R-ZTE-_TE+_A=+—H BFeXK2
MR R F R R 5 A % o B R 5 a0
T~

Confirmation of independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has
been assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules and
each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
written confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent.

Board diversity policy

To enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain the high
standard of corporate governance, the Company has adopted the
board diversity policy in October 2020, which sets out the objective
and approach to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board. Pursuant
to the board diversity policy, the Company seeks to achieve board
diversity by taking into consideration of various factors, including but
not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and education background, ethnicity and length of service
with the Group.

The nomination committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity of
the Board members and compliance with relevant codes governing
board diversity under the Listing Rules. The nomination committee will
review the board diversity policy and its diversity profile from time to
time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge, skills and
experience, including the areas of real estate, accounting, financial
management, education and manufacturing industries. They
obtained academic diplomas and degrees in various majors, including
economics, business studies, accounting and management science
and engineering. The Company has three independent non-executive
Directors with different industry backgrounds, representing more than
one-third of the members of the Board. Furthermore, the Board has a
wide range of age, ranging from 38 years old to 70 years old.

As at 31 December 2020, Board diversification in terms of gender and
age group is set out below:

14% 86%
e 10 0 i
Female Z 1k Male 1%
14% 43% 14%
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The Company has also taken, and will continue to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including
but not limited to the Board and the management levels. While the
Company recognises that the gender diversity of the Board can be
improved given its current composition of all male Directors, it will
continue to apply the principle of appointments based on merits
with reference to the board diversity policy. Going forward, the
Company will consider the possibility of nominating female senior
management or more female Directors to the Board who has the
necessary skills and experience. The nomination committee will use
its best endeavor and on suitable basis to, within three years from
the Listing, identify and recommend at least one female candidate to
the Board for its consideration on appointment of Director. The Board
will strive to achieve an appropriate balance of gender diversity with
reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing the
Board to gender parity. The Company will also ensure that there is
gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to senior level so that
it will have a pipeline of female senior management and potential
successors to the Board in a few years’ time. As female representation
in senior roles throughout the economy and the pool of qualified
females keeps growing, the Group expects to have more female
members in the Board from time to time.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to his
retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association. Pursuant to the Article 83(3) of the Company's articles of
association, the Board shall have power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional Director, there shall be no maximum number
of Directors unless otherwise determined from time to time by the
Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.
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Pursuant to the Article 84(1) of the Company'’s articles of association,
at each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less that one-third), shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The members
of the Company may, at any general meetings convened and held
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, remove a
Director by ordinary resolution at any time before the expiration of his
period of office notwithstanding anything contrary in the Company’s
Articles of Association or in any agreement between the Company
and such Director and may by ordinary resolution elect or appoint
another person in his stead.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, after specific enquiry by the
Company and confirmation by the Directors, there has not been any
change in the information of the Directors since the Listing until the
date of this report that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ training and professional development

Every newly appointed Director has been given a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment. Subsequently, the
Directors will receive updates on the Listing Rules, legal and other
regulatory requirements and the latest development of the Group's
business and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop their knowledge and skills. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have participated in
Continuing Professional Development trainings. All Directors have
provided the Company with their records of training received for
the year. During the year ended 31 December 2020 and prior to
the Listing, all the Directors (namely Mr. Chen Guoxiang, Mr. Chen
Hongni, Mr. Zhao Leiyi, Ms. Yao Xiaozhen (resigned), Mr. Ding
Jiangang, Mr. Ma Hongman, Mr. Wang Ganwen) attended a training
course on the duties, responsibilities and obligations of the Directors
under the Listing Rules and the SFO conducted by the Company's
legal adviser as to Hong Kong law, Sidley Austin. Mr. Han Bo was
appointed as a Director on 12 March 2021 and participated in a
training course on 17 March 2021 on the duties, responsibilities and
obligations of Directors under the Listing Rules and the SFO conducted
by the Company's legal adviser as to Hong Kong law, Sidley Austin.
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Board meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Directors may participate either in person or through electronic
means of communications. The Board intends to hold at least four
meetings a year at approximately quarterly intervals after Listing.
Additional meetings would be arranged, if and when required. The
date of each meeting is decided in advance to enable the Directors to
attend the meeting in person.

As the Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 18 November 2020 and there were no matters to be discussed
by the Board during the period since the Listing up to 31 December
2020, no Board meeting of the Company was held during the period.

A meeting of the Board has been held on 26 March 2021 to consider
and approve the annual results for the year ending 31 December
2020. The Company will fully comply with code provision A.1.1 of
the CG Code and will hold at least four Board meetings annually at
approximately quarterly intervals

As the Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 18 November 2020, no meeting of the audit committee (the
"Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Company was held and the Company was not
required to hold an annual general meeting for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code") as the guidelines for the Directors’
dealings in the securities of the Company since the Listing. Following
specific enquiries to each of the Directors, all the Directors have
confirmed their compliance with the required standards set out in the
Model Code since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2020.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the
Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them to
deal in securities of the Company at any time when he/she possesses
insider information in relation to those securities. No incident of
non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant officers and
employees was noted by the Company.
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REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the annual remuneration of members of the senior management
(other than Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2020
is set out below:

SHREEBRE A
Number of members of
senior management

AE#2,000,0017T%E AR# 2,500,000
AE#2,500,0017C% AR#3,000,0007T
AE#4,000,0017T%E AR# 4,500,000

GEX

() — E2eREEEKER-_TS=-—F=A=1+H
BTBETSREEEKE -

IR EBE

ARBERA—BAREEE - Bt - AR7A
AABCREIR R 2 kIS - BIIE R A5 B 8
SEREMNBESREDKRETEFERE
EREREE FRESTEARELER
BEERECEN ZEF8EROAEEN
BATEERAE ¢ ()RR ¢ () —REBIRR L
REE  (VEATF  (BRBEEEE : (vi)
AR ZEREERH (E) REFERR
HENEREMER - BEEESHTK
BALREZZERTEHRERE - BEX
RE R 2 EEAEEREE RSO EA5E
ERRRAMBE °

EESUNMBRFEAZER RERK
B BB E e E AR HI AR A BRI
;3

RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 1

RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000 2

RMB4,000,001 to RMB4,500,000 1
Note:

(1) One senior management member ceased to be a member of the senior management
with effect from 20 March 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company may declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the normal
operations of the Group. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board would take into
account (i) the Group’s financial results; (i) shareholders interests; (iii)
general business conditions and strategies; (iv) capital requirements;
(v) taxation considerations; (vi) contractual, statutory and regulatory
restriction, if any; and any other conditions that the Board may
consider relevant. Whilst the Board will review from time to time for
determination on proposed dividend with the above factors taken into
account, there can be no assurance that dividends will be declared or
paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a

financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject
to Shareholders’ approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

— to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).

The Board had performed the above duties during the year ended 31
December 2020.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the positions of the
chairman and the chief executive officer were held separately. The
role of chairman was held by Mr. Chen Guoxiang, and the role of
chief executive officer was held by Mr. Chen Hongni. The segregation
of duties of the chairman and the chief executive officer ensures
a clear distinction in the Chairman’s responsibility to manage and
provide leadership for the Board and the Chief Executive Officer's
responsibility to manage the Company’s business.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with specific written
terms of reference to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs.



FREEE

ARRRZEZEF+AZTHKBLETHR
BIE3.211&E 323U BZREES - WiR
B ETRBI SR 14 EEATRSIEH
EEBEHE  BRLESNTIERELRE
BARA)EHREBREENY K ERE
Fr AEEMASEHRS - BRERERA
HEZ (ImMESERERZELER © Ki)
BITESS RN EMBEREE -

EREEEM-RBURTESFENX - A
IHNEE(BERZEGIRE)  TEBSE
LEAEEE - REBEETRAFEI 2115 &F
REEEIRABEENEERGHER -

ARFRRZFEZFF+— A+ \REBRPAT
FHREM - BEMAMBE_FT_FTF+=
A=+—Hit - ERZEEXEBITERNE

22
S

BREEER T —F=RA -1+ NBET
g% 2L (HPERE) EHARAEEZE-Z
CERF+ A=+ HIEFELEEREAS
B BRAREMRANEGRAIRES
THEFSHBERUEEZEREARF K
RZZBZ—FRXATN\RBTHERRBFEX
(22 —FRFAFKG)) LER LK
SETEV R AT EAR R RBIL L EED o

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Audit committee

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code set forth in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on 20 October 2020. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to, (i)
reviewing and supervising the Group's financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group, risk management and internal
audit; (ii) providing advice and comments to the Board; and (iii)
performing other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by the
Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason (being the chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Ma Hongman.
In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of
the audit committee possesses the appropriate professional and
accounting qualifications.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
18 November 2020. The Audit Committee did not hold any meeting
since the Listing Date up to 31 December 2020.

The Audit Committee held the meeting on 26 March 2021 at which,
among other things, it reviewed the audited consolidated results
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020, including
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and
made recommendations to the Board for its consideration and re-
appointment of Ernst & Young at the annual general meeting (the
“2021 Annual General Meeting”) of the Company to be held on 18
June 2021 as the independent auditor of the Company .
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Remuneration committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
on 20 October 2020. The Remuneration Committee reviews and
recommends to the Board the remuneration and other benefits paid
by the Group to its Directors and senior management. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are not limited to
(i) establishing, reviewing and providing advices to the Board on the
Group's policy and structure concerning remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies concerning such
remuneration; (ii) determining the terms of the specific remuneration
package of each Director and senior management member; and
(iii) reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors
from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, two of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The three members
are Mr. Ding Jiangang (being the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Chen Hongni and Mr. Ma Hongman.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
18 November 2020. The Remuneration Committee did not hold any
meeting since the Listing Date up to 31 December 2020.

The Remuneration Committee reviewed and passed the relevant
resolutions on 12 March 2021 in relation to the remuneration of Mr.
Han Bo upon appointment as executive Director, and held a meeting
on 26 March 2021 at which , among other things, it reviewed
and made recommendations to the Board for its consideration of
certain matters relating to the remuneration of Directors and senior
management.
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Nomination committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules on 20 October 2020. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, (i) reviewing the structure,
size and composition of our Board on a regular basis and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes to
the composition of the Board; (ii) identifying, selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship, and ensuring the diversity of our Board
members; (iii) assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; and (iv) making recommendations to
the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Directors and succession planning
for the Directors.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, two of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. The three members are Mr.
Chen Guoxiang (being the chairman of the nomination committee),
Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Ma Hongman.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 18 November 2020. The Nomination Committee did not hold any
meeting since the Listing Date up to 31 December 2020.

The Nomination Committee reviewed and passed the relevant
resolutions on 12 March 2021 in relation to the appointment of Mr.
Han Bo as executive Director, and held a meeting on 26 March 2021
at which, among other things, it (i) reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board; (ii) reviewed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; and (iii) reviewed and advised
on the re-election of Directors at the forthcoming AGM.
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Nomination policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the
selection criteria and procedures to nominate board candidates. The
Nomination Committee aims to nominate suitable candidates to the
Board and advise the Board on the appointment of directors and make
recommendation to the Board, after assessing a number of factors of
a candidate as set out in the nomination policy.

Pursuant to the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee shall
identify suitable board candidates and make recommendation to the
Board, after assessing a number of factors of a candidate, including,
but not limited to:

e reputation for integrity

e accomplishment and experience

e compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

e commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest

e diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service

The Nomination Committee may also consider such other factors

as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and the

Shareholders as a whole.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy, as

appropriate, and recommend revision to the Board for consideration
and approval from time to time.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Financial reporting system

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
the Group. In preparation of the financial statements, International
Financial Reporting Standards have been adopted and the appropriate
accounting policies have been consistently used and applied. The
Board aims to present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group's
performance in the annual and interim reports to the Shareholders,
and make appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely
manner. Pursuant to code provision C.1.1 of the Code, management
would provide such explanation and information to the Board as will
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.

The work scope and reporting responsibilities of Ernst and Young, the
Company'’s external auditor, are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 110 to 112 of this report.

Risk management and internal control system

The Board confirms that it is responsible for maintaining adequate
and effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group as a going concern and reviews annually the effectiveness of
the Company's internal controls and risk management systems to
ensure the adequacy of the internal controls and the risk management
systems in place. These systems are designed to manage, not
eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can
only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that there will
be no material misstatement or loss.

The Board and senior management are responsible for determining
the Group's overall business and investment plans, formulating annual
financial budgets, proposals for final accounting and proposals for
profit distributions, and is in charge of the overall risk control of the
Group. The internal control system covers all major aspects of the
Group's operations, including, among others, property development,
property sales, investment property management, procurement,
financial reporting, asset management, budgeting and accounting
processes. The Group also has an internal audit and risk control
function which primarily carries out analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of its risk management
and internal control systems, and reports their findings to the Board
on, at least, an annual basis. The finance and fund management
center is primarily responsible for managing liquidity risks. Also, the
legal and risk management department is required to involve and
obtain inputs from the investment and development center with
respect to any investment plan, and is responsible for evaluating the
investment plan from the legal perspective and updating the internal
departments if there are relevant changes to the applicable laws
relating to investment and financing.
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With respect to the Group’s risk management and internal control
measures, the Group has a set of comprehensive policies and
guidelines which set out details regarding the internal control
standards, segregation of responsibilities, approval procedures and
personnel accountability in each aspect. The Group also carries out
regular internal assessments and training to ensure its employees are
equipped with sufficient knowledge on such policies and guidelines.
In addition, the Group also implemented risk management policies
against corruption and fraudulent activities. The Group’s major
anti-corruption and anti-fraud measures and procedures include:

— the internal audit and risk control function shall be primarily
responsible for establishing, reviewing and evaluating the Group's
anti-corruption and anti-fraud policies and monitoring their
implementation;

— as specified in the Group's staff handbooks, employees are
explicitly prohibited from taking/offering bribes or kickbacks
from/to suppliers or other third parties, manipulating bidding
procedures, misusing the Group’s assets, or providing improper
hospitality and entertainment to suppliers or other third parties;

— all of the Directors and senior management are requested to
identify and make periodical reports to the headquarters about
conflicts of interest, including potential related party transactions,
the engagement of competing businesses, or the receipt of unjust
benefits or enrichment by using the Group’s assets or resources or
taking advantage of his or her position;

— the Group plans to provide anti-corruption and anti-fraud
compliance trainings periodically to the Directors, senior
management and employees to enhance their knowledge and
awareness of the relevant laws and regulations; and

— the Group undertakes rectification measures with respect to any
identified corruption or fraudulent activities, evaluating such
activities and proposing and establishing preventative measures to
avoid future non-compliances.

The Group also engaged an external consultant specialising in
identifying and evaluation of significant risk of its business and
operation. The external consultant does not have any connection
with the Group and the Board believes that their involvement could
enhance the objectivity and transparency of evaluation process. In
conjunction with the Group’s internal audit and risk control function
and senior management, the external consultant conducts an annual
assessment on risk management and internal control systems of
the Group to identify the major risk and significant deficiencies and
resolve any material internal control defects (as appropriate), together
with suggestion and solutions and submit to the Board for their
consideration.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
implemented procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. In particular, the Group:

— has conducted its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission in June 2012;

— has established its own disclosure obligation procedures, which
set out the procedures and controls for the assessment of
potential inside information and the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The procedures have been communicated
to the senior management and staff of the Company, and their
implementation was monitored by the Company; and

— has made broad, non-exclusive disclosure of information to
the public through channels such as financial reports, public
announcements and its website.

The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed
and assessed on an on-going basis by the audit committee and the
executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at least
once each year by the Board. During the year ended 31 December
2020, these systems were reviewed, covering all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls of the Group,
and considered effective and adequate.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by the
Auditor to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately as follows:

SHE(AR¥TT)
R &R Type of Services Amount (RMB’000)
ZERT Audit services 6,833
IR FTATA B L R BRS Reporting accountant’s services to the listing 8,106
IEZE RS Non-audit services
— MRS — taxation services 500
“at Total 15,439
BAFE N BIME JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
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The Company has appointed Mr. Tan Mingheng and Ms. Chen
Chun as Joint Company Secretaries. Ms. Chen Chun is a company
secretarial executive of an external service provider, SWCS Corporate
Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, assisting Mr. Tan Mingheng in
discharging his duties as the company secretary of the Company.
Mr. Tan Mingheng is the principal contact person of Ms. Chen Chun
in the Company. Each of Mr. Tan Mingheng and Ms. Chen Chun
has confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2020, they
have taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biography of Mr.
Tan Mingheng and Ms. Chen Chun are set out in the “Biographies of
Directors and senior management” section on pages 57 and 59 of this
report.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company's articles of association,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association
for the Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals may request the
Company to convene an EGM in accordance with the procedures set
out in the above paragraph headed “Convening an extraordinary
general meeting”.

Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally
deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:
Address: Room 2907-08, Tower 2, Exchange Square,
8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

E-mail address: ir@xsjt.cn
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the forthcoming annual general meeting,
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

AMENDMENTS TO THE MEMORANDUM AND
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company's Articles of Association has been amended and restated
with effect from the Listing Date, and are available on the respective
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Save as disclosed above, since the Listing Date, the Company did not
made any significant changes to its constitutional documents.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in developing and selling properties in cities
in Zhejiang Province and other cities in the Pan-Yangtze River Delta
Region in the PRC. An analysis of the Group's revenue and operating
results for the year ended 31 December 2020 by its principal activities
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group on page 219 in this report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” section of this report and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the Group on pages 113 to 114 of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion on the
Group's future business development during the year are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s statement” and “Management
discussion and analysis” on pages 13 to 17 and pages 20 to 48,
respectively, of this report.

In addition, discussions on the Group's environmental protection
policies, performance and relationships with employees, customers,
suppliers and major stakeholders are set out below in this directors’
report. Particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements
on page 309 in this report. An analysis of the Group's performance
during the year using financial key performance indicators is set
out in the section headed “Management discussion and analysis”
on pages 20 to 48 of this report. An account of the Company’s key
relationships with its employees, customers and suppliers, please
refer to the sections headed “Management discussion and analysis —
Employees and remuneration policy” and “Directors’ Report — Major
customers and suppliers” in this report.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s operations involve certain risks, some of which are
beyond its control. These risks can be broadly categorized into: (i)
risks relating to its business; (ii) risks relating to the industry; and (iii)
risks relating to the PRC.

A discussion of certain principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
businesses and other relevant information, can also be found in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this report.
Such discussion forms part of this “Directors’ Report”. The Directors
believe that there are certain risks and uncertainties involved in the
operations, some of which are beyond the Group’s control.

Some of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group
include the following:

— the Group’s business and prospects are susceptible to adverse
movements in the PRC real estate market, particularly in provinces
and cities where the Group has property projects;

— the Group generates a majority of its revenue from property
development and sales in the Zhejiang Province, and therefore is
susceptible to any significant decline in the economic condition of
Zhejiang Province;

— the Group may not have adequate financing to fund its future
property development, and capital resources may not be available
on favorable terms, or at all;

— the Group may not be able to identify desirable locations or
acquire land use rights for future property development on
favorable terms, or at all;

However, the above is not an exhaustive list. Investors are advised to
make their own judgment or consult their own investment advisors
before making any investment in the shares of the Company.

The Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Environmental policies and performance

It is the Group’s corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental friendly environment, and the Group
strives to minimise its environmental impact and comply with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations.
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The measures it takes to ensure its compliance with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations include:

(i) strictly selecting construction contractors and supervising the
process of construction;

(i) applying for review by the relevant government authorities in a
timely manner after the project is completed; and

(i) actively adopting environmentally friendly equipment and
designs. The Group also takes voluntary actions with respect to
environmental protection and make energy conservation and
emission reduction as primary considerations when designing
its property projects.

None of the Group’s properties had received any material fines or
penalties associated with the breach of any environmental laws or
regulations during the year ended 31 December 2020. The 2020
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group shall be
published separately.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with the Shares
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group’s
subsidiaries are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the
Group's subsidiaries in China while the Group also has a corporate
and administrative office in Hong Kong.

Its establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin
Islands, the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands, the PRC and Hong Kong that have a significant impact
on the Group.

Relationship with Employees

The Group places emphasis on human capital and strives to create an
environment that enables employees to develop their full potential
and assists them in their personal and professional development. The
Group provides a fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity among
its employees, offers competitive remuneration and benefits and
career development opportunities based on their achievements and
performance, and makes continuous efforts to provide employees
with comprehensive training and development resources to attract
and retain skilled and talented employees from reputable universities
of PRC.
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Relationship with Suppliers

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers
as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group's
businesses.

Relationship with Customers

The Group's customers are primarily individual buyers and corporate
entities. Customer satisfaction with our services and products has
a profound impact on our profitability. The Group values customer
feedback on its products, its dedicated sales team is in constant
communication with its customers and potential customers to identify
customers’ pain points alongside grasping the market trend,thus
helping the Group to timely adjust our operating strategies to fit the
market requirement.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend (“Proposed
Final Dividend”) of HK$0.20 per Share (equivalent to RMBO0.17 per
Share), the dividend payout ratio is approximately 19% of core
net profit attributable to the parent company for the year ended
31 December 2020. The Proposed Final Dividend is subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the 2021 Annual General Meeting to
be held in June 2021. The Proposed Final Dividend will be declared
and paid in Hong Kong dollars.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings during the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SENIOR NOTES

Details of senior notes of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in notes 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out on
pages 117 and 118 of this report. In respect of Company, the amount
of reserves available for distribution under the Companies Laws of the
Cayman Islands as at 31 December 2020 was RMB3,231.1 million.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to RMB25.7 million.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the state of the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 115 to 116 in this
report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report were:

Position
Executive Director
Executive Director

Name of director
Mr. Chen Guoxiang (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Hongni
(Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yao Xiaozhen
(resigned on 5
February 2021)
Mr. Zhao Leiyi
Mr. Han Bo
(appointed on 12
March 2021)
Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason
Mr. Ding Jiangang
Mr. Ma Hongman

Executive Director

Executive Director
Executive Director

Independent non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director
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In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation. Accordingly, in accordance with Article 84(1), Mr. Chen
Hongni and Mr. Zhao Leiyi shall retire from office at the 2021 Annual
General Meeting. In addition, pursuant to Article 83(3), any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Han Bo shall retire
and be re-elected at the 2021 Annual General Meeting in accordance
with Article 83(3). All the above Directors are eligible and willing to
be re-elected at the 2021 Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years with effect from 18
November 2020.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for an initial term of 3 years with
effect from 18 November 2020.

The appointment of all the Directors is for a period of three years and
shall continue thereafter until being terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ prior written notice.

None of the Directors has a service contract with members of the
Group that is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors,
the management shareholders of the Company nor their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business that competed or might compete with the business of the
Group.



RS E

ARRBERZZE_ZEF+A-THIERK
MEEARERTE] o BEARERT AT A LR A
FITERRT °

BREENFE
(n B®

BREEEEREBESEERIESEN
ARRBAELR  WHBEELEER/AR
A RBCRHBERSIELS N - RAARE
REKRMEE - EFHAE - BREEKE
AEEREEERES - %%&ﬁﬁﬂ‘%i//\%
AAKREELOER - BREIEAR

iiﬁfmﬁa‘” : }%SZFE‘JJ ﬁﬁbki%ﬁi%ﬂiﬁ%
WEMS - WER RBRFRMEEM -

(2 2BRrE

EEgHERRERNBRARDIBEA/EAR
AELRER 2 EAEA (BIAREEMKE
RASEMNHEBEARNEES  EF  SH/A
8 BR - EH- 2#HB ABH - TP
HrEm - RI2 - EBBH AEEBBHR
HE@‘M ) BREEBIRE L ER THERE -

CREREA - BT E i ZERE
%E*ETJ%E%H&%%%H%H:%& BRARITRER
Bt REEFHERRRL  RETZ
WERERZERMEREREABLERS
o REREALEEREREZAERTE
Pt -

(3) AHBITHRHEE LR

m%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁm%ﬁ%%%%ﬁ
fFifn Al BT R (D BB A RS BB D

REBXMAREES BHE ZHTRMBHED
10% ' iM% 10% EBRAEE 300,000,000
RER%AD - (R AIRE B HIE 1T AR5 B
9.86% °

DIRECTORS’' REPORT

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company approved and adopted the Share Option Scheme
on 20 October 2020. The Share Option Scheme is subject to the
requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Share Option Scheme
(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide selected
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company and to encourage selected participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of
the Company and Shareholders as a whole. The Directors believe the
Share Option Scheme will enable the Group to reward its employees,
the Directors and other selected participants for their contributions
to the Group. The Share Option Scheme provides the Company with
a flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to selected participants.

2) Participants

Any individual, being an employee, director, officer, consultant,
advisor, distributor, contractor, customer, supplier, agent, business
partner, joint venture business partner or service provider of any
member of the Company or any affiliate who the Board or its
delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to have contributed or
will contribute to the Company is entitled to be offered and granted
options. However, no individual who is resident in a place where the
grant, acceptance or exercise of options pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme is not permitted under the laws and regulations of such place
or where, in the view of the Board or its delegate(s), compliance
with applicable laws and regulations in such place makes it necessary
or expedient to exclude such individual, is eligible to be offered or
granted options.

(3) The maximum number of Shares available for issue

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue
on the day on which trading of the Shares commences on the Stock
Exchange, and such 10% limit represents 300,000,000 Shares,
representing 9.86% of the total Shares in issue as at the date of this
report.
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(4) The maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being.

(5) Time of acceptance and exercise of option

An option may, subject to the terms and conditions upon which such
option is granted, be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee
giving notice in writing to the Company in such form as the Board
may from time to time determine stating that the option is thereby
exercised and the number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised.

(6) Subscription price for Shares

The subscription price per Share under the Share Option Scheme will
be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of
grant, which must be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.
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(7)  Grant offer letter and notification of grant of options

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the option to
which the offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and to
have taken effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the grantee with the number
of Shares in respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated
therein together with a remittance in favor of our Company of
HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by
our Company on or before the date upon which an offer of an option
must be accepted by the relevant selected participants, which must
be received by the Company within ten business days from the date
on which the offer letter is delivered to the grantee. Such remittance
shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Any offer may be accepted in respect of less than the number of
Shares for which it is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of
a board lot for dealing in Shares or a multiple thereof. To the extent
that the offer is not accepted within ten business days from the date
on which the letter containing the offer is delivered to that selected
participant, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

(8) The duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for the period of
ten years commencing on the Listing (after which, no further options
shall be offered or granted under the Share Option Scheme), but in all
other respects the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain
in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the
exercise of any options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the rules of the Share
Option Scheme. As at the date of this report, the remaining life of the
Share Option Scheme is approximately 9 years and 11 months.

For further details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to
the section headed “Statutory and general information — D. Share
incentive scheme” in Appendix V to the Prospectus.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date of
this report, no option was granted or agreed to be granted, exercised
or cancelled by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
There was no outstanding share option under the Share Option
Scheme as at the date of this report.
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Name of Director/
Chief Executive

EEME

Nature of Interest

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which were required to be entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were otherwise required, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below:

INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

R3S EBE R A B (HEY BAFRE 2 wE
Number of Shares or Approximate percentage
underlying Shares Mot of shareholding Mot

PBREIRESE 4 {EFEAIE A WD 2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%
Mr. Chen Guoxiang Founder of a trust (et 2
BROAMR A4 ErEZXmA 2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%

Mr. Chen Hongni

Beneficiary of a trust

M RZEBE-THFE+-_A=+—0 KAQBHIT
3,043,403,000f% & fH  FR[LIERZEEENIE
BRI E TR -

(2) Shinlight Limited#]2 &8 #4174 H Shinfamily
Holdings Limited ([Shinfamily Holdings|)#% -
ifiShinfamily Holdings ATMF (Cayman) Ltd.&J{%
BEAF] > TMF (Cayman) Ltd. AR {5 5E (HFRE
HREEREXARINEREET  HX5AR
BREIFE L ERERGK S (BERAREE)) B
ZEEA Bt - BEFHRAEGH - REFEL
& R FRELE St A & B 3R AR Shinlight Limited#
BORG P ER

B EXFEEEN RZB-TF+-_A=
T—H BEEERARFAZSTHRAER
AABREMEOEE M - ARG RE
RETFHBCLCERNRBEZSFRPEERMNE
352{RB T FEMNE LM ARRIFZRLET A
ARG ARRR R P EEEIAR

RAERR(EE)ERAT —T-TEFR

Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2020, the Company issued 3,043,403,000 Shares. The letter (L)
denotes the entity's long position in the relevant Shares.

(2) The entire issued share capital of Shinlight Limited is held by Shinfamily Holdings
Limited (“Shinfamily Holdings"), which is the holding vehicle of TMF (Cayman) Ltd.
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. is the trustee of the Family Trust, a discretionary trust established
by Mr. Chen Guoxiang as settlor, the beneficiaries of which are Mr. Chen Guoxiang
and his family members including Mr. Chen Hongni. Accordingly, each of Mr. Chen
Guoxiang and Mr. Chen Hongni is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the
Shares held by Shinlight Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations, recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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FTERRREMALTHREAATRED  SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
REBROPHERRKXR PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY
RZZZEF+_A=+—8 ' REQRFAH So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2020, the
M TIAL(BREARAREZLHESTERA following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
E?l\) BB IRIEE #&%iéﬂ%fﬁﬂ%xv%ﬂ%z Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
E3DERGEX AR T REN AR Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
i*ﬁ%ﬁﬁxﬁﬁ’ﬁém&‘ B i*ﬂ%ﬁézﬁ T?Tz Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
w5 R EEIRME 3361 FER S LM SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
ff‘ZT%E sk R SREEBESBEERARAN the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or who were, directly or
MR B S5% A LR indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the Shares of the Company:
BE®E BB ERMEE R RAHER DB E *=Y BEREHAH T 5w
Number of Shares or Approximate percentage
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest underlying Shares (Note 1 of shareholding (Note "
B B 3 5 (E LA A D 2,376,000,000(L) 78.07%
Mr. Chen Guoxiang Founder of a trust Mot 2
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. ErtXm A HE2) 2,376,000,000(L) 78.07%
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. Trustee of a trust Note 2
Shinfamily Holdings SIEHEE S 2,376,000,000(L) 78.07%
Shinfamily Holdings Interest in a controlled
corporation
Shinlight Limited BEmEa A W) 2,376,000,000(L) 78.07%
Shinlight Limited Beneficial owner Mote2)
ENEI RS fic (S 4 2 (3 2,376,000,000(L) 78.07%
Ms. Zhu Guoling Interest of spouse (Nete3)
BEE - Note:
(1) RZZE=_ZEF+=-_A=+—8  ARFETT (1) As at 31 December 2020, the Company issued 3,043,403,000 Shares. The letter (L)
3,043,403,000 x5 - FEILIERZ B ENE denotes the entity’s long position in the relevant Shares.
BARDEIT R ©
(2) Shinlight Limited#) & #02 % 17A& <& Shinfamily (2) The entire issued share capital of Shinlight Limited is held by Shinfamily Holdings,
Holdings# A& + MShinfamily Holdings&TMF which is the holding vehicle of TMF (Cayman) Ltd.. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. is the trustee
(Cayman) Ltd.A¥ERZAE] < TMF (Cayman) Ltd. of the Family Trust, a discretionary trust established by Mr. Chen Guoxiang as
REGET(AREEERZTARINDER settlor, the beneficiaries of which are Mr. Chen Guoxiang and his family members.
L EXR R ARRBEFESEREREKE) HXE Accordingly, each of Mr. Chen Guoxiang, TMF (Cayman) Ltd. and Shinfamily Holdings
Ao Bt - IRIBFES REBAERD - REIEEE - is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by Shinlight Limited.
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. % Shinfamily Holdingsi948 &
FShinlight Limited#8 81 5 #E B #Eas o
(3) KEBLZTRAMEENERD - REFHFLAEK (3) Ms. Zhu Guoling is the spouse of Mr. Chen Guoxiang. Under the SFO, Ms. Zhu
Bl - REFR L LR AR R EHRA SN RR Guoling is deemed to be interested in the same Shares in which Mr. Chen Guoxiang
f&th A 2 o is interested.
R EXPREEEN R F+Z ﬂ_ Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company
+— B ARBHEERTMAL (AR had not been notified of any persons (other than a Director or chief
%%ﬁfﬁﬁﬂl)\%ﬁ%ﬁl\)ﬁ’c\zﬁ”&ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁi executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
FERAAR () P A IR IR 5 KB E KA EXVED the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to
F2R3DMWAMARRHENERIKE be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
SRBEFEF LB GRIIEIZ6EARAATIAT 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were recorded in the register required to
FEMECMACEMNERSORE - REE be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or who was,
HEER AR RRMDFEAS% A K directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the Shares of the
HEa o Company.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to which the Company, its
holding company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or his connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance (i) in
relation to the Group’s business; or (ii) for provision of services to
the Company (or any of its subsidiaries) by a controlling shareholder
(or any of its subsidiaries) between the Company (or any of its
subsidiaries) and a controlling shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries)
subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's customers primarily consist of individual purchasers and
corporate entities.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue attributable to
the Group's largest customer amounted to approximately 0.12% of
the Group's total revenue and the Group five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for less than 0.34% of the Group’s revenue for
the year.

The Group’s suppliers primarily include construction contractors and
equipment suppliers.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases attributable
to the Group’s largest supplier amounted to approximately 40.8%
of the Group's total purchases and the Group five largest suppliers
in aggregate accounted for less than 49.7% of the Group's total
purchase for the year.
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One of the Group’s five largest suppliers, Zhejiang Xiangsheng
Construction Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Construction”) is wholly-owned
by Xiangsheng Industrial Group Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Industrial”),
which is owned as to 99% by Mr. Chen Guoxiang, one of the
controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules), executive
Director and chairman of the Company, and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni,
Mr. Chen’s son and the executive Director. Xiangsheng Construction
is therefore an associate of both Mr. Chen Guoxiang and Mr. Chen
Hongni and thus a connected person of the Company upon Listing
under the Listing Rules. The purchase from Xiangsheng Construction
amounted to RMB7,403.5 million, which accounted for 40.8% of the
Group's total purchase for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any Shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued Shares, had an interest in the
share capital of any of the five largest suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report, the Group entered into the following transactions as described
below with persons who are regarded as “connected persons”
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company conducted
the following transactions which constituted continuing connected
transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules), which are subject to the
reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:

1. Property Management Services

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a property
management service framework agreement (the “Property
Management Service Framework Agreement”) with Zhejiang
Xiangsheng Property Management Service Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng
Property Management”), pursuant to which members of the Group
could engage Xiangsheng Property Management and its subsidiaries
("Xiangsheng Property Management Group”) to provide property
management services, including but not limited to (i) pre-delivery
services prior to the delivery of properties to property owners, such
as security, car park management, cleaning, gardening, repair,
maintenance and operation of common area and shared facilities;
and (ii) property management services for unsold property units held
by the Group (the “Property Management Services”). The Property
Management Service Framework Agreement has a term commencing
from 18 November 2020 to 31 December 2022.
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Xiangsheng Property Management is owned as to 98% by Xiangsheng
Industrial and 2% by Ms. Zhu Guoling, the spouse of Mr. Chen,
being the controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) and executive Director. Xiangsheng Industrial is owned
as to 99% by Mr. Chen and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, the son of Mr.
Chen and the executive Director. Xiangsheng Property Management
is therefore an associate of both Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen Hongni and
thus a connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the Property
Management Service Framework Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions.

The transactions under the Property Management Service
Framework Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but exempt from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of service fees payable by the Group to the
Xiangsheng Property Management Group in relation to the Property
Management Services for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021
and 2022 will not exceed RMB54.7 million, RMB59.4 million and
RMB64.0 million, respectively. The amount of service fees paid/payable
by the Group to Xiangsheng Property Management Group in relation
to the Property Management Services for the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to RMB54.5 million.
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2. Sales Management Services

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a sales management
service framework agreement (the “Sales Management Service
Framework Agreement”) with Xiangsheng Property Management,
pursuant to which members of the Group could engage members
of the Xiangsheng Property Management Group to provide sales
management and other services, including but not limited to reception
services, cleaning, car park management, security and maintenance
services in showrooms, display units and sales offices for our property
projects, as well as the commercial properties occupied or operated by
the Group (the “Sales Management Services”). The Sales Management
Service Framework Agreement has a term commencing from the 18
November 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Xiangsheng Property Management is owned as to 98% by Xiangsheng
Industrial and 2% by Ms. Zhu Guoling, the spouse of Mr. Chen,
being the controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) and executive Director. Xiangsheng Industrial is owned
as to 99% by Mr. Chen and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, the son of Mr.
Chen and the executive Director. Xiangsheng Property Management
is therefore an associate of both Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen Hongni and
thus a connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the Sales
Management Service Framework Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions.

The transactions under the Sales Management Service Framework
Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements but exempt from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of service fees payable by the Group to the
Xiangsheng Property Management Group in relation to the Sales
Management Services for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021
and 2022 will not exceed RMB134.9 million, RMB177.9 million and
RMB216.2 million, respectively. The amount of service fees paid/
payable by the Group to Xiangsheng Property Management Group
in relation to the Sales Management Services for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to RMB120.7 million.
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3. Hotel Lease

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a master hotel
lease agreement (the “Master Hotel Lease Agreement”) with Zhuji
Xiangsheng Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Hotel
Management”), pursuant to which the Group shall lease certain hotels
to Xiangsheng Hotel Management at an aggregate monthly rental of
approximately RMB3.3 million, RMB3.4 million and RMB3.4 million
for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022. The Master
Hotel Lease Agreement has a term commencing from 18 November
2020 to 31 December 2022.

Xiangsheng Hotel Management is wholly owned by Zhejiang
Xiangsheng Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* (I HAEBIEEER
FR2d]), which is in turn wholly owned by Xiangsheng Industrial.
Xiangsheng Industrial is owned as to 99% by Mr. Chen, the
controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and executive Director, and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, Mr.
Chen’s son and the executive Director. Xiangsheng Hotel Management
is therefore an associate of both Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen Hongni and
thus a connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the Master Hotel
Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions.

The transactions under the Hotel Lease Agreement are subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but exempt
from circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of the amount of rentals payable by
Xiangsheng Hotel Management to the Group for the lease of hotels
contemplated under the Master Hotel Lease Agreement for the years
ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 will not exceed RMB39.0
million, RMB39.8 million and RMB40.6 million, respectively. Such
estimate of the maximum amount is based on the fixed rentals for the
hotels as set out in the Master Hotel Lease Agreement. The amount of
rentals paid/payable by Xiangsheng Hotel Management to the Group
for the lease of hotels contemplated under the Master Hotel Lease
Agreement for year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to RMB25.9
million.
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4. Landscape Engineering Services

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a landscape
engineering service framework agreement (the “Landscape
Engineering Service Framework Agreement”) with Zhuji Xiangsheng
Landscape Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Landscape”), pursuant
to which members of the Group could engage Xiangsheng Landscape
to provide landscape engineering services, including but not limited
to greening services, landscaping services, and outdoor road and
drainage engineering services (the “Landscape Engineering Services").
The Landscape Engineering Service Framework Agreement has a term
commencing from 18 November 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Xiangsheng Landscape is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chen Guoging, the
brother of Mr. Chen, and 50% by Ms. Chen Zhiping, the sister of Mr.
Chen. Xiangsheng Landscape is therefore an associate of Mr. Chen,
the controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and executive Director, and thus a connected person of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions under the Landscape Engineering Service Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions.

The transactions under the Landscape Engineering Service
Framework Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but exempt from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of service fees payable by the Group to
Xiangsheng Landscape in relation to the Landscape Engineering
Services for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022
will not exceed RMB414.9 million, RMB496.6 million and RMB619.2
million, respectively. The amount of service fees paid/payable by
the Group to Xiangsheng Landscape in relation to the Landscape
Engineering Services for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted
to RMB315.2 million.
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5. Construction Services

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a construction
service framework agreement (the “Construction Service Framework
Agreement”) with Zhejiang Xiangsheng Construction Co., Ltd.
("Xiangsheng Construction”), pursuant to which members of the
Group could engage Xiangsheng Construction to provide construction
and related services as main contractor for the Group's property
development projects (the “Construction Services”). The Construction
Service Framework Agreement has a term commencing from the 18
November 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Xiangsheng Construction is wholly-owned by Xiangsheng Industrial,
which is in turn owned as to 99% by Mr. Chen, the controlling
shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) and
executive Director, and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, Mr. Chen's son
and the executive Director. Xiangsheng Construction is therefore
an associate of both Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen Hongni and thus a
connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the Construction
Service Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions.

The transactions under the Construction Service Framework
Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of service fees payable by the Group to
Xiangsheng Construction in relation to the Construction Services for
the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 will not exceed
RMB9,077.5 million, RMB11,324.4 million and RMB13,401.7 million,
respectively. The amount of service fees paid/payable by the Group to
Xiangsheng Construction in relation to the Construction Services for
the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to RMB7,403.5 million.

Further details of the Property Management Service Framework
Agreement, the Sales Management Service Framework Agreement,
the Master Hotel Lease Agreement, the Landscape Engineering Service
Framework Agreement and the Construction Service Framework
Agreement are set out under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in the Prospectus.
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Confirmation from Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the
above continuing connected transactions have been entered into in
(i) the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on
normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the relevant
agreements governing the transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Confirmations from the Company’s Independent Auditor

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Ernst and Young,
the auditor of the Company, has provided a letter to the Board,
confirming that nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the continuing connected transactions mentioned
above (i) have not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group
(for the Master Hotel Lease Agreement); (iii) were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the respective
annual cap.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 41 to the financial
statements. None of these related party transactions constitutes a
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed, except for
those described in the sub-section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above, in respect of which the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being
the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available

to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has been granted a waiver by the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rule 8.08(1) of the Listing Rules and the Stock Exchange
has accepted the minimum public float of 20.8% of the total issued
share capital of the Company taking into account the partial exercise
of the over-allotment option. Based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the number of shares held by the public in the Company since the
Listing Date and up to the date of this report has been in compliance
with the minimum percentage of public float prescribed by the Stock
Exchange.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of opinion that the Company had adopted, applied
and complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
during the year under review. Principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance
Report” section of this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last four financial years is set out in the section headed “Four-
year financial summary” on pages 311 to 312 of this report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association provide that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any)
as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty.
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The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
for the year ended 31 December 2020, which provides appropriate
cover for the Directors. The permitted indemnity provision was in
force during the year ended 31 December 2020 and remained in force
as at the date of this report for the benefit of the Directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Stock Exchange
since the Listing Date (i.e. 18 November 2020). During the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this section, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December
2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2021 Annual General Meeting will be held on Friday, 18 June
2021. A notice convening the 2021 Annual General Meeting will
be published on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and dispatched to the Shareholders in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules in due course. For the purposes of
determining the Shareholders’ eligibility to attend, speak and vote at
the 2021 Annual General Meeting and the Shareholders’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend, the Register of Members will be closed
as appropriate as set out below:
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For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the 2021 Annual General Meeting

The Register of Members will be closed from Friday, 11 June 2021
to Friday, 18 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to determine the identity
of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2021 Annual
General Meeting, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 10 June 2021.

For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final
Dividend

The Register of Members will be closed from Thursday, 24 June 2021
to Monday, 28 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the
Proposed Final Dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 23 June 2021.

AUDITOR

The Company’s shares were only listed on the Stock Exchange on 18
November 2020, and there has been no change in auditors since the
Listing Date. The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by Ernst and
Young who will retire at the 2021 Annual General Meeting. Ernst
and Young, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst and Young as the
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2021 Annual General
Meeting.

By order of the Board

Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd.
Chen Guoxiang

Chairman
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To the shareholders of Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shinsun
Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 113 to 310, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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The Group owned investment properties in Mainland
China which were measured at fair value and their
aggregate carrying amount was approximately
RMB2,018,554,000 as at 31 December 2020.
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The Group engaged Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent
professionally qualified valuer, to perform the valuations
of these properties as at 31 December 2020. Significant
judgement is required to determine the fair values
of the investment properties, which reflects market
conditions as at the end of the reporting period. The use
of different valuation techniques and assumptions could
produce significantly different estimates of fair values.
Accordingly, the valuation of investment properties is
identified as a key audit matter.

BREMENGTBRRBRHN GRS M BHRRWNT2.4 3
K15 e

The accounting policies and disclosures of the investment
properties were included in notes 2.4, 3 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

B3 % BOED WS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

EEREBRBRPNMIEEBERERSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEEEINEMEERMEE N B EREBE - BET
ROMBEERATERNGBETEREZMRR -

We have evaluated the competency, independence
and objectivity of the external valuer. We obtained
an understanding of the valuation approach and key
assumptions used by the external valuer.

BEFEHEREEER AZURN Y EAERMEBURA EEE -
T REABGEBEERBEFFHEBEDEREAERE -
BEERMEEES BB RAETISERETLY - X
A BB T (£ A R REE

We have assessed the validity of the property related
data used as inputs for the valuations and involved our
internal valuation experts to assist us in evaluating the
valuation methodology and the underlying assumptions.
We have evaluated the source data used in the valuation
by benchmarking them to relevant market information
on a sampling basis.

ZEEFHEBEEUBRRAN T IZERBEEOE
Eg o
We have assessed the disclosures related to the valuation

of investment properties in the consolidated financial
statements.
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HREZEE &)
HEEZEE

Key audit matter

T B EHAE

Provision for land appreciation tax

EEER—RXTBEANMYERER  EIRNFEEEY
% - HEAME B ER ([ L IEER]) A EXEHR
BEXHBOFEEKIBO 2 — - MEREENH T MIBED IR
FR30% £ 60% ) RED LB M IRERBW - RZFT_F
F+ZA=+—H  ESEEEESRBEEHHEBARK
1Bl BOE R B IR R I 52 R S s 3R (B A B s e b ST W 2R 8
ERBRAINBAAX AR (BRI ERAEEERS - ¥
FHRBERA - BRKARBES L) FLEAE - PEAM
THIREGREE SEEGeHBREAMEEBEN B
B REBENEARHE R EEERBIRXHERE - Bt
THIEET R BT RAREZEE -

The Group is a property developer in Mainland China
focusing on the development of residential properties.
Land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in Mainland China was
one of the main components of the Group’s taxation
charge. LAT is levied on the sale of properties at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% based on
the appreciation of land value. As at 31 December 2020,
management of the Group estimated the provision for
LAT based on their understanding and interpretation of
the relevant tax rules and regulations, and the estimated
total sales of properties less total deductible expenditure,
which includes lease charges for land use rights, property
development costs, borrowing costs and development
expenditure. Provision for LAT in Mainland China is
significant to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and involved significant management’s judgement
and interpretation of the relevant tax provisions.
Accordingly, provision for LAT is identified as a key audit
matter.

THIBET RO BER NGRS WK T3 R0 -
The disclosures of the provision for land appreciation

tax were included in notes 3 and 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

HEER(EB)ARAR —T_TFFR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

ESEERBRPNNEERRERSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEZRANARBER B E EH LB ETAET
B2E BREREE AESEEANMGRRR - URREAR
BADL % BOPT B H e B AR B R K B R B S ) R B B AT A
AR

We have involved internal tax specialists to assist us to
perform a review on the LAT position, including the
review of the estimates and assumptions used by the
Group and the evaluation of tax exposure based on
communications with the relevant tax authorities and
applying our knowledge and experience.

EENCEFNGTENEGELER  UHEFNAEERA
EREGENSEEITHER

We have recalculated the tax computation and compared
our calculations with the amounts recorded by the
Group.

EEOEARGEMBERE AN T IS EH B EA R
Eg o

We have assessed the disclosures related to the provision
for land appreciation tax in the consolidated financial
statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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REER(EM)ARAT —T-TFEH

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FEEEFRA R BRORE LR
B (AR REN AR -

HEERARELE S ERNREL
e W - WRBEMERNERER
BERAFERFHKBRABNERK
THEEMN - (EMAEERY BXEMN
FELERNEEERRE - HESR
REFEERTHETEL  MABEERE
A EhiREEREIRRE M E®mE
THHEBEKE - WARKETR - AlE
RIBEENER - BEMNBRIDENEE
ZEET R E A LB M B ZREM
fEH - AT - RRFHEKIBAATES
B BEEEERSERE -

ARG AMBRERNEBERSN - &
BEAD  BREEEER  URGEH
BHREREETERRBEIZMERE -

# OEBEEEAERIEBEHNUEE
HERGTRIEENEZRE  UEH
mEMBHRRERER EFREEE
FEZOTRA - BERAT  BEREZX
BRAEDIEE -

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is SIU FUNG TERENCE HO.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEZZ-ZF+-A=+—HIFE Yearended 31 December 2020

—EEHF —E-NF
ffat AREET T ARETIT
2020 2019
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
Wz REVENUE 5 46,638,413 35,519,538
SHE AR Cost of sales (38,203,574)  (27,039,427)
EF GROSS PROFIT 8,434,839 8,480,111
B IR A Finance income 75,773 151,883
HALW A R iz Other income and gains 5 108,621 95,375
SHE R HAXY Selling and distribution expenses (1,240,318) (1,073,899)
TEFAX Administrative expenses (1,132,252) (1,125,445)
B Other expenses (101,221) (199,371)
REMENDFE RS Fair value gains on investment properties 15 4,624 22,406
EUR I %N Finance costs 7 (1,113,405) (777,570)
FEMR TP R ENEF R EE ¢ Share of profits and losses of:
HBEDE Joint ventures 2,026 (54,644)
i ElN| Associates (19,770) 11,502
BRBE AR R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 5,018,917 5,530,348
TSR X Income tax expense 10 (1,965,546) (2,321,393)
FERER PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 3,053,371 3,208,955
AR B IE (L : Attributable to:
ISTNEIE YN Owners of the parent 2,646,006 2,312,283
eI A Non-controlling interests 407,365 896,672
3,053,371 3,208,955
BAREEEZEEA EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
EhRERER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT
TR EA R 58 2 F Basic and diluted earnings per share 12 AK#1.07 AR#0.96
RMB1.07 RMBO0.96
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEZZT-ZF+-A=+—HIFE Yearended 31 December 2020

—BIBHF —ZE-NF
e AR¥T T ARETTT
2020 2019
Notes RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
FRmA PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 3,053,371 3,208,955
Hib 2 E Kz OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REfE R ET T EE Other comprehensive income that will
B E 2 mE R be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
B - BB KR EER Revaluation gains on transfer from
EREYFENE NS property, plant and equipment to
investment properties 15 161,395 —
Fristis & Income tax effect (40,348) =
REEBEEENRHBEE Net other comprehensive income that
B Efh B E s F R will be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods 121,047 -
FREAMEE WK (BRFE) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 121,047 -
FREEBEAE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 3,174,418 3,208,955
AT & IE RS - Attributable to:
ISYNEIEZZEPN Owners of the parent 2,767,053 2,312,283
FEIEIR Non-controlling interests 407,365 896,672
3,174,418 3,208,955
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

—E2-%HF —FNF
e ARET T ARBTIT
2020 2019
Notes RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
FREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Mm% - BB k& Property, plant and equipment 13 127,132 539,236
EREEE Right-of-use assets 14 74,064 113,221
WEME Investment properties 15 2,018,554 1,492,630
mLEE Intangible assets 16 10,832 11,672
RELRENRE Investments in joint ventures 17 1,164,904 712,680
REEZE AR E Investments in associates 18 686,226 742,052
RIETHIEE E Deferred tax assets 19 2,100,518 1,960,579
JEMENEEMRE Total non-current assets 6,182,230 5,572,070
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
By ES Properties under development 20 105,840,944 92,688,528
BIERENE R I Completed properties held for sale 21 4,272,697 5,393,412
EE Inventories = 8,315
B 5 eI IE & e U =ik Trade and bills receivables 22 127,380 195,012
EHEE Contract assets 23 227,970 278,260
JiE UK BE B 5 OB Due from related parties 41 2,700,144 5,560,849
TENFIAE - ke Rk Prepayments, deposits and
H At e W IE other receivables 24 13,265,996 11,388,198
QR Tax recoverable 2,191,243 1,968,017
BAFEFTABZED Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss 25 626,231 20,567
B RIRTTA G Cash and bank balances 26 24,304,747 6,962,481
153,557,352 124,463,639
DERFEHED Assets of a subsidiary classified as
—fHf B AR EE held for sale 40 - 591,983
MEVEELE Total current assets 153,557,352 125,055,622
REAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 B FIE REN R Trade and bills payables 27 6,977,322 5,102,436
H b FET 5B R FERHE A Other payables and accruals 28 13,220,334 4,898,470
aBREE Contract liabilities 29 68,791,434 77,901,721
JE 1<t A BSE 75 RRIE Due to related parties 41 5,809,050 5,956,321
STERTT RE M &K Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 30 20,754,820 10,288,997
BERE Senior notes 31 1,437,058 1,016,301
RaElEH Corporate bonds 32 3,164 —
BERIPES Asset-backed securities 33 = 205,551
TR IA Tax payable 10 2,409,194 1,923,178
HEAE Lease liabilities 14 34,207 50,744
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020

—E2-%HF —T—NEF
HtaE ARET T ARET T
2020 2019
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
119,436,583 107,343,719
HEOBARIELHEERE Liabilities directly associated with the
HEMRBHAE assets classified as held for sale 40 = 41,638
mENBELE Total current liabilities 119,436,583 107,385,357
REBEEFRE NET CURRENT ASSETS 34,120,769 17,670,265
EEAERRBERS TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 40,302,999 23,242,335
FREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FHEERTT REMERK Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 30 21,531,087 17,016,525
BIEEERE Senior notes 31 1,952,929 =
NAEES Corporate bonds 32 497,500 =
HEAE Lease liabilities 14 51,910 74,846
FEEIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 19 232,537 175,848
JEmEBERE Total non-current liabilities 24,265,963 17,267,219
EERE NET ASSETS 16,037,036 5,975,116
R EQUITY
BARHEE AELER Equity attributable to owners of
the parent
(& Share capital 34 199,616 =
Tt Reserves 35 8,231,939 4,617,425
8,431,555 4,617,425
FEIERRE R Non-controlling interests 7,605,481 1,357,691
XA TOTAL EQUITY 16,037,036 5,975,116
R B+ R EL{5
Chen Guoxiang Chen Hongni
EE EFE
Director Director

HEZR(EE)ERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HBE-_T-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE Yearended 31 December 2020

NG PN
Attributable to owners of the parent
(2:tE8R)/
kx ROEE  AARE EERBRE ZEEMRRRE REEH @it FAREE  EREE
AEBT  ARETn ARETR  ARETR  ARETR AEETL ARETT ARETR ARETR
BEsa K@) ME3S0)  ME3S(
(Accumulated
Statutory Asset losses)/ Non-
Share Share Capital surplus revaluation retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
RMB' 000 RMB" 000 RMB" 000 RMB" 000 RMB"000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB" 000
Note34  Note35(a)  Note35(b)  Note35(c)
RZF-NF-A-A As at 1 January 2019 = - 2,866,127 250,442 = (1,158,773) 1,957,796 923,063 2,880,859
ENETR2ENGEE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 2312,283 2,312,283 896,672 3,208,955
WEARFERRRLE Capital contribution by the
non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 24,875 24,875
WEsHaRES Acquisition of non-controlling
interests - - 93,508 - - - 93,508 (105,508) (12,000)
WEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 6,007 6,007
AHBARERESAAA  Acquisition of subsidiaries from
WEHBAR the then equity holder of
the subsidiaries - - 22,175 - - - M7 - U175
EARFHERBEDRS  Dividends distributed to
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - (206,637)  (206,637)
HERBAF Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - (192918)  (192,918)
BRETRBEE Appropriations to statutory
surplus reserve - - - 256,115 - (256,115) - - -
WEARFERRERE Capital reduction by the
non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - (6,000) (6,000)
HERHBARMSIIER  Disposal of partial interests in
(REARRIE) subsidiaries without losing control - - 11,663 - - - 1663 18,137 29,800
RZZ-AFTZA=T—H  Asat31 December 2019 = - 3213473 506,557* = 897,395 4,617,425 1357691 5975116
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2020

BARRE AR

Attributable to owners of the parent

(Z:tE8R)/
RE  BOEE  AAEE LEEBRE ARERER REEH B FEREEZ  BGAR
ARETT  ARETn  ARMTR  ARETZ  ARETR  ARBTn ARETT  ARMTR  ARETR
Wi3e  MiEs(a)  MEsh)  MES(W

(Accumulated
Statutory Asset losses)/ Non-
Share Share Capital surplus revaluation retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserves reserve profits Total interests equity

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB"000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Note34  Note35(3)  Note35()  Note35(c)

RZZ-5F-F-H As at 1 January 2020 - - 3,213,473 506,557 - 897,395 4,617,425 1,357,691 5,975,116
EnafR2ENEEE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 121,047 2,646,006 2,767,053 407365 3,174,418

ki Issuance of new shares 199,616 4,147,720 - - - - 4,347,336 - 434133
WEARFERRRLE Capital contribution by the
non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - - 160,471 - - - 160,471 50884245 6,044,716
WEsHaRER Acquisition of non-controlling
interests - - (8,617) - - - (8,617) 6,117 (2,500)
WE-EHEAT Acquisition of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 28,956 28,956
BHBRRERESEEA  Acuisition of subsidiaries from
LN the then equity holder of
the subsidiaries - - (3470373) - - - (3470373) - (3.470373)
A FHEBARZERRRRA  Dividends paid to a non-controlling
RE shareholder of the subsidiary - - - - - - - (83224)  (83,224)
HERBAT Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 1,144 1,144
BRERRBEE Appropriations to statutory
surplus reserve - - - 312,280 - (312,280) - - -
HERHBARDTAEE  Disposal of partial interests in
(RXEEHE) subsidiaries without losing control - - 18,260 - - - 18,260 3,187 1,447
RZEZEF+-A=+—H Asat31 December 2020 199,616  4,147,720* (86,786)* 818,837+ 121,047¢ 3.231,121% 8,431,555 7,605,481 16,037,036
* ZERELHERRGAVMERRARNGAFHE *  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB8,231,939,000
AR#8,231,939,000c (ZFE—NF : AR (2019: RMB4,617,425,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

4,617,425,0007T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEZZ-ZF+-A=+—HIFE Yearended 31 December 2020

—E-%F —TNF
izt AR®TR AREFT
2020 2019
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
CeEDHERTRE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BRI A 4t Profit before tax 5,018,917 5,530,348
HE Adjustments for:
m¥  BERRBEEHE Depreciation of items of property,
plant and equipment 6,13 56,206 57,622
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6,14 40,224 44,767
B EESH Amortisation of intangible assets 6,16 2,353 3,649
HERBAREE /(W) Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries 5,38 15,264 (4,032)
BN ERNNEELEME Gain on re-measurement of the previously

PR B L held equity interests in a joint venture (26,842) =
DEEERERETN REE Share of profits and losses of joint ventures (2,026) 54,644
DB E N AR R EE Share of profits and losses of associates 19,770 (11,502)
BEMENNFELE Changes in fair value of investment properties 15 (4,624) (22,406)
HEYE  BERREEED Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property,

BB/ () plant and equipment 236 (157)
HEFREEEKR Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets (3,772) =
HE—RBEARER Loss on disposal of an associate 1,810 =
HE—RaetEER Loss on disposal of a joint venture 12,439 =
BAFEFABRZNESHMEERN  Investment income from financial assets at

BEWRA fair value through profit or loss (31,285) (1,938)
R—H&8rENREBRE Impairment of investments in a joint venture - 53,000
FREERE Impairment of financial assets 6 5,174 13,574
BERHEFABENEREE Fair value gains on financial assets at

N ERE fair value through profit or loss (59) (72)
MERA Finance costs 1,113,405 777,570
FEMA Interest income (75,714) (151,811)

6,141,476 6,343,256
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SEBRTRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEZZT-ZF+=-A=+—HIFE Yearended 31 December 2020

g 223 “T-NE
izt ARETT ARET T
2020 2019
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ERPIERBELREN Increase in properties under development and
B T30 completed properties held for sale (5,056,933) (1,822,213)
BERL /(M) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 7,585 (307)
FELHFEEM Increase in land development for sale (1,987) (20,902)
FE AR BB R 1 SRR (B2 n) Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from
related parties 303,904 (275,081)
BHEERD /(M) Decrease/(increase) in contract assets 50,290 (880)
PR I3RS 42 Increase in restricted cash (3,091,352) (112,206)
JE HATE UL N Increase in time deposits (4,142,956) (21,953)
BEAEZ LM,/ B (Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits (2,970,026) 327,909
B S RENGIR  EE B R Decrease in trade and bills receivables 65,346 17,115
BRTE - ke kM Decrease in prepayments, deposits and
N IR RS other receivables 1,877,018 1,104,621
B ZRERRIE R B EZE Increase in trade and bills payables 1,713,442 63,497
Hfth FE 5018 R FERT B FR S 0 Increase in other payables and accruals 8,552,209 158,714
AHBECRD),/ M (Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities (11,460,272) 3,604,704
e BEEE A 3RIE CR ),/ a0 (Decrease)/increase in amounts due to
related parties (758,033) 309,368
REZTHHERERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R (TR 58 ¢ Cash (used in)/generated from operations (8,770,289) 9,675,642
BUFIE Interest received 75,714 157,339
ERHE Interest paid (5,595,242) (4,707,333)
BHE Tax paid (1,798,732) (1,608,878)
BeTE (A, i Net cash flows (used in)/generated from
BEeREFHE operating activities (16,088,549) 3,516,770
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RERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEZZ-ZF+-A=+—HIFE Yearended 31 December 2020

it g 23 —T-hEF
izt ARETT ARET T
2020 2019
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
REZHFERERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HERBAR Disposal of subsidiaries 38 61,023 (33,096)
HERELE Disposal of joint ventures 3,300 -
HE— A A Disposal of an associate 25,000 =
HERDTEF AL Disposal of financial assets at fair value
TRBE through profit or loss 433,140 48,824
HENE - BERRE Disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,903 10,879
BEVE BEKREEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (20,678) (14,602)
BEEFEE Purchase of intangible assets (1,711) (5,453)
BEYZEIE N Increase in investment properties = (367,666)
WEEHT B A Acquisition of subsidiaries 37 562,711 (558,845)
gnaetE Addition of joint ventures (452,310) (484,650)
)| /Ne] Addition of associates = (401,888)
[RIREES 7 2K Advances to related parties 41 (25,332,891) (5,996,142)
[r) B 77 B R IE X Repayment of advances to related parties 41 27,970,286 4,811,583
W AT EE AR Acquisition of financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss (1,010,460) (14,950)
AEEANBRARIEREZFEEBA  Acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group from
WEEHT B A the then equity holder of the subsidiaries (59,833) (3,125)
REFBHHRE,/(FTH) Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
ReEREFE investing activities 2,181,480 (3,009,131)
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SEBRTRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_Z-_TF+_A=t—RHIFE

Year ended 31 December 2020

it g 23 —T-hEF
izt ARETT ARET T
2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
REZHFERERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BIEREFEE Deemed capital contribution from shareholders = 245,300
BT P13 R Proceeds from issue of shares 4,431,802 =
BinEITREY Share issue expenses (84,466) =
PHEE A A FEE AR AR R & Capital contribution by the non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries 3,115,540 24,875
JEERR AR A Capital reduction by the non-controlling
shareholders - (6,000)
BT FIEEBRREAR S Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders (83,224) (31,727)
W I R = Acquisition of non-controlling interests (2,500) (5,000)
BEfBRREREREEA Acquisition of equity interests from
o s B the then equity holder of the subsidiaries (3,410,540) -
HHHEMNBAR (RAEZERI#E)  Proceeds from partial disposal of
PSR subsidiaries without losing control 21,447 29,800
oy Advances from related parties 41 1,577,559 8,728,616
EEBE TR Repayment of advances from related parties 41 (760,454) (9,610,921)
BERFIER Repayment of pledged deposits (46,951) =
BEIRF IR Receipt of pledged deposits 1,474,866 =
BIBAZBEMEIRFE Net proceeds from the issuance of senior notes 31 3,480,265 994,918
NEIEFEFETE Net proceeds from the corporate bonds 32 497,500 =
BLRERERYE Exchange effects on senior notes 31 (229,208) 3,754
EEBLEE Repayment of senior notes (994,918) (648,360)
FHRRITERATEHE Proceeds from interest-bearing bank borrowings 28,079,738 17,488,881

BEF BRITER
RITEERRESAENE

Repayment of interest-bearing bank borrowings
Proceeds from the issuance of

(14,406,853)

(16,186,582)

asset-backed securities - 1,059,550

EEEEREES Repayment of asset-backed securities (205,551) (3,270,925)

HEBEMNR Payment of lease liabilities (44,539) (21,996)
BMETERE,(FrA) Net cash flows generated from/(used in)

BEeREFRE financing activities 22,409,513 (1,205,817)
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RERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_T-_TFF+-_A=1+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2020

—ECEE —E-NEF
B ARETT ARETTT
2020 2019
Notes RMB'000 RMB"000
BEREELSEYEM (HL)  NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
FE CASH EQUIVALENTS 8,502,444 (698,178)
FURE KRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,412,297 3,113,634
ERASRBELEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 10,914,741 2,415,456
BeRBSEBYEHRIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Be RiRTE% Cash and bank balances 26 24,304,747 6,962,481
A XRERS Less: Restricted cash 26 7,236,576 4,085,480
FEHER Time deposits 26 4,265,009 122,053
BEAER Pledged deposits 26 1,885,262 342,651
BERRRMNEERELEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS
STATED IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION 10,917,900 2,412,297
BEHENHMBAREEER &R  Cash and cash equivalents attributable to
BeEEY a subsidiary held for sale 40 (3,159) 3,159
BERERMIBALER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS STATED
BeEEY IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 10,914,741 2,415,456
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020
1. ARAIREEER

ARBB—FKR_E-—NAF+_A+=R%
REMFEEMAZNERE QR - NAAH
L E R A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands °

RRABBREZEBRRR - RFEAR » RNEER
RETNHBARZEYEFRE WEHE -
BEEERREYMEERRY -

BEERA ARAIKRERD R REEIER
N RN E R LA ST MACZEYShinlight
Limited °

EEHE A& R
AREEEHBARIRFBEIT -

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 13 December 2019. The registered office address of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year,
the subsidiaries now comprising the Group were involved in property
development, property leasing, hotel operation and the provision of
property management services.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Shinlight Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

i/ BRaRE LN

ERAY/ RIBER HE FERRR
WEARER B  BEUAREXEH (F7) RERSL EEXH

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share  attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital (000)  the Company activities
BgRER
Directly held:
Silver Rock Group Holdings Limited EBRA#S F7150 100% REER
Silver Rock Group Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$50 100%  Investment holding
Shinsun International Holdings Limited EBRAHS F7150 100% REER
Shinsun International Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$50 100%  Investment holding
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1. ARREEER (&)

EEBHBAGER (&)
XRAAFEEWNBELA AN FEERIMT

Bt 7% R M EE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
M/ CRTRA NG

AR/ RIBER HE 3
WEARER M  BEUAREELH (F7) RERAL TEEEK

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEER
Indirectly held:
Golden Stone Hong Kong Limited ) B0 100% REER
Golden Stone Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$10 100%  Investment holding
Shinsun Hong Kong Limited BE B0 100% REARER
Shinsun Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$10 100%  Investment holding
Xiang Sheng Overseas Limited RBRUHS E1 100% RERR
Xiang Sheng Overseas Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100%  Investment holding
MRS RAERAR (6)  E:/HEA AR10,000 100% REAER
Zhejiang Xiangshen Business Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 100%  Investment holding
RESHROFERERAA (7)  hE*/RERM AR¥25,000 100% REZR
Zhuji Zhuojie Business Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB25,000 100%  Investment holding
BENESEERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR 1,580,000 100% WEFE
Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,580,000 100%  Property development
EERLERARAA R 71,000 100% REAER
Xiang Sheng Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%  Investment holding
BAERRARAT EBRALES %71200,000 100% REAER
Xiang Sheng Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$200,000 100%  Investment holding
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Bt %5 8RR B
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020

1. ARIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)
EENBAAER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
M/ CRTRA NG

MR/ R IBER HfE 3
(i) Pk Fit  BEURERMEH (f7) RERAL TEEEK

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
MTHEERCRERERAR (8  hE*/HEA AR#50,000 100% HEER
Zhejiang Shinsun Yiyue Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Investment holding
AERERABRARAT (8  hE*/ R ARH70,000 51% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xianghe Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB70,000 51%  Property development
AEREHREFARAA (8  hE*/ R ARE130,000 100% #EFHE
Zhuji Shinsun Xinhe Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB130,000 100%  Property development
RERERZEEARAA (8  hE*/ R ARH39,000 100% #EHE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB39,000 100%  Property development
AEREHREEARAT (8  hE*/ R ARH98,039 100% #EHE
Zhuji Shinsun Yijing Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB98,039 100%  Property development
RMEELREHEREERAA (8  hE*/ R ARE100,000 100% #EHE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

BERERNEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AB&E50,000 60% MEHE
Haining Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 60%  Property development
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1. ARREEER (&)
EREHBLAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :

Bt 7% R M EE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE RS
WEARER M  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
MM SRR HEREERAA 8  hE*/HER ARH100,000 100% DEFE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
AERERREFARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%80,000 100% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB80,000 100%  Property development
MM EEXARAT 8  hE*/HER AE#30,000 100% DEFEE
Huzhou Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
MM EEEEHEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#30,000 100% DEFEE
Huzhou Shinsun Yiyue Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
FEFERHEREERAT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%30,000 100% WERE
Jiaxing Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
REFELREHEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#43,000 100% DEFEE
Jiaxing Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB43,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERELREHEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#50,000 80% WERE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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Bt %5 8RR B
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020
1. ARIREEER @)

EREHBLAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :
(&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

#H/ BRIRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE RS
WEARER M  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
RERELRRHEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#50,000 80% MERE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RUBEEEER AT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%30,000 100% WERE
Zhoushan Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
RLEEAERHEREERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR%100,000 100% WEFE
Zhoushan Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
LERBENEREERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR%7,200,000 825% WERE
Shanghai Jubo Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB7,200,000 82.5%  Property development
REMHREEARLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR200,000 0% WERE
Taixing Xiangrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB200,000 70%  Property development
EEBRHEERRHERRARAA 8  E*/HERY AR50,000 90% NERE
Lianyungang Shinsun Lianbao Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 90%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BHRAREEEARLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% MERE
Chuzhou Great Wall Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
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1. ARREEER (&)
EREHBLAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :

Bt 7% R M EE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(&) (continued)
i/ ERTRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER fi  RAUREEHEY (Fr) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
BNEERHEREERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% MERE
Chuzhou Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
AREEERARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% MERE
Mingguang Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
EREREEEARLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%30,000 100% MERE
Dingyuan Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
SHRETHEERERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR%100,000 100% WEFE
Xuancheng Minsheng New Town PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

REREEEERERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥56,000 100% MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangrun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB56,000 100%  Property development
ATREEHEREERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%100,000 100% MERE
Nanping Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
REREBUELARLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥20,000 0% WERE
Shaoxing Shinsun Jiyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 70%  Property development
RLEEREERARLT (8  E:/HEAN AR%20,000 100% W¥HEE
Zhoushan Shinsun Investment PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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Bt %5 8RR B
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020

1. 2EAIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(&) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER fi  RAUREEHEY (Fr) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE (8
Indirectly held: (continued)
FETFERERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR#20,000 67.8% MERE
Shanghai Yuanyu Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 67.8%  Property development
FERABSERAR (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%10,000 67.8% WEE%
Shanghai Xiangdan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 67.8%  Property development
RERZELARLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 55%  MERE
Taixing Xiangyun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 55%  Property development
RNEEEEARLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% WERE
Taizhou Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
RERERHEREERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%100,000 100% MERE
Wuhan Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
IR HEREERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% WEFRE
Xiantao Xiangrong Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

EHTREEEARLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%30,000 100% WEFRE
Honghu Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
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1. ARREEER (&)
EREHBLAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :

Bt 7% R M EE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
BERIEEEARLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR100,000 60% MERE
Jinan Xiangshun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 60%  Property development
REREUBELERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥20,000 51%  MERE
Liaoning Shinsun Yuedu Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 51%  Property development
WEHERHEREERAT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥20,000 51%  MERE
Xiuyan Xiangyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 51%  Property development
MIFEREREERAR 8  hE*/HER AE#50,000 65% WERRE R
Zhejiang Xiangwei Tourism Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 65%  Property development and

cultural tourism

REMRELREEERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR104,000 51%  MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB104,000 51%  Property development
RETHEAMERERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR%20,000 0% WEFE
Zhuji Shinsun Baiyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 70%  Property development
MNEEREERERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%1,100 100% REER
Hangzhou Xiangdi Investment PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,100 100%  Investment holding

Management Co., Ltd.
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Bt %5 8RR B
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020
1. ARIREEER @)

EREHBLAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :
(&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

#H/ BRIRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
ERFERHEREARAR 8  hE*/HER AE#50,000 100% DEFEE
Ningho Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
EERREERLRRHEREER AR 8  E*/HERY AR50,000 100% WEFRE
Lianyungang Shinsun Lianbao Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
EHERHEREARAR 8  hE*/HER AE#50,000 100% DEFEE
Xuancheng Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BEE AL REHEREARAA 8  E*/HERY AR20,000 100% WEFRE
Haiyan Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BNEELEEEERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% WERE
Chuzhou Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
BNRERWERZARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR50,000 80% WERE
Quzhou Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
FIREESEEERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% EEEE
Zhejiang Shinsun Plaza Trading Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Hotel management
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1. ARREEER (&)

EEBHBAGER (&)
XRAAFEEWNBELA AN FEERIMT

Bt 7% R M EE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CoNnTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG

AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) RERAL TEEEK

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
AEFERUBEARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥75,000 53% MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xianggi Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB75,000 53%  Property development
AEHERBEEARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
REFERNEREERAR 8  hE*/HER AE#56,000 100% WERE
Taizhou Wenling Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB56,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
MRS REERERERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR56,500 100%  WEER Rk
Zhejiang Xiangjing Tourism Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB56,500 100%  Property management and
cultural tourism

FARERWERZARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR50,000 51% MERE
Wuhu Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
BN REHEREARAA 8  E*/HERY AR50,000 80% MERE
Quzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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1. 2EAIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER fi  RAUREEHEY (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
RERERREXERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangpeng Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
nNERRREEREERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%60,000 55%  REER
Hangzhou Chunyuan Health Care Service Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB60,000 55%  Investment holding
REREEEARLA (2,8 HE*/ERL AR125,000 100% MERE
Anji Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB125,000 100%  Property development
WLANEERNEREERAT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% WERE
Zhejiang Taizhou Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

BNEELREREREERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR#50,000 100% WERE
Huzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

1. PRAREEER (@) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG

AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
BRRELREHEREERAT (8  hE*/HEA AR%50,000 100% WEFE
Nantong Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

BB EREREARAT 8  hE*/HER AB&E50,000 80% WEHE
Quzhou Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

ERHELREHERSERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR50,000 100% WERE
Xuancheng Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

PATHERHEREERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR%30,000 100% W¥HEE
Zoucheng Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

BHTHLEHEREERAR 8  hE*/HEA AR%20,000 100% WEFE
Zoucheng Xianghong Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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EEBHBAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :
(&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

M/ CRTRA NG

AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) RERAL TEEEK

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE: ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
ARt ELERHEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#50,000 100% DEFEE
Nantong Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
B ELEEHEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#50,000 100% WERE
Longyou Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

MMETLSXERERAA (8  E:/HEAN AR1,000 100% REAER
Hangzhou Jiyuan Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
AETMRECFERFABRAA 8  hE*/HER AE#30,000 100% REHR
Zhuji Xiangyun Management Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Investment holding
AETMRECFERFATRAA 8  hE*/HER AE#70,000 100% REHR
Zhuji Shinsun Management Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB70,000 100%  Investment holding
RETEBLFERERAT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%5,000 100% REZR
Zhuji Xiangpeng Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Investment holding
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Bt 7% R M EE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CoNnTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
HM/ BRIRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) RERAL TEEEK
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
RETMRECEERERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%5,000 100% REZR
Zhuji Xiangrun Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Investment holding
BN EEREBR AR 8  E*/HERY AR50,000 100% DEFEE
Wenzhou Shinsun Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
FEHEEREHERSEERAA (8  HE*/hER AR50,000 100% WERE
Sugian Shinsun Lianbao Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BEHERHEREERAT (8  HE*/hER AR#%98,039 51% MERE
Guangde Xiangyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB98,039 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
REFERHEREERAT (8  HE*/hER AR50,000 100% WERE
Tiantai Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
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ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020

1. 2EAIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
MNEACFERFABRAA 8  hE*/HER AR#5,000 100% RARR
Hangzhou Yixiang Management PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Investment holding

Consulting Co., Ltd.

REREEREREARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%30,000 100% MERE

Zhuji Shinsun Xiangtai Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
MMTELSERERAT 8  hE*/HER ARE17,500 100% REHR

Hangzhou Yuanbo Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB17,500 100%  Investment holding
RNER LR ERERAT (8  E:/HEAN ARE1,000 100%  REHR

Hangzhou Jicheng Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
RNERRREBERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR%10,000 100% REHR

Hangzhou Jidong Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 100%  Investment holding
NMEBAXERERAT 8  hE*/HEM AR¥1,000 100% REHR

Hangzhou Jilian Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) RERAL TEEEK
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
EERELRENEREERARA 8  E*/HERY AR50,000 100% DEFEE
Cixi Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RER A REHEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#50,000 100% WERE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ZERAFRTEEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#50,000 100%  MEFEMXLiRE
Anji Sante Tianye Muge Tourism PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. cultural tourism
ANTREHERHEREER AR 8  E*/HERY AR50,000 100% DEFEE
Taizhou Lugiao Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BNRERHEREARAR 8  E*/HERY AR50,000 100% DEFEE
Suzhou Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
RERELREHEREERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR¥50,000 80% MERE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020

1. PRAREEER (@) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG

AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
ZERELREHEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#50,000 100% WERE
Anji Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

EHRRESERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR#48,235 100% WERE
Yueyang Xiongcheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB48,235 100%  Property development
BERERMEREERAR 8  E*/HERY AE#50,000 100% DEFEE
Linhai Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
FRRARAEHEREARAR 8  E*/HERY AE#30,000 100% DEFEE
Changde Shinsun Shuguang Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

ERHELREHEREERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR#50,000 100% WERE
Xuancheng Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. 2EAIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG
ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
RNELRRERERAT (8  E:/HEAN ARE1,91 100% HREER
Hangzhou Jishan Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,961 100%  Investment holding
MMERCEXERERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR1,000 100% REHR
Hangzhou Jijing Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
KR BEELEEHEREARAR 8  E*/HERY AR20,000 100% WEFRE
Zhangjiagang Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BNSREEERERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR%50,000 100% WEFE
Wenzhou Duofu Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
BERELREHEREBRAT (58 HE*/ AR AR %:828,000 51%  WEFE
Longyou Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB828,000 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
AR EEHEREERAA (58 HE*/hERL ABR1,240,000 51%  WERE
Tongxiang Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,240,000 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
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EREHBLAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

M/ CRTRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
B ER N EREARAT (58 HE*/ AR AR%2,200,000 51%  WEFEE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongda Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,200,000 51%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
CEGREARBHEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#20,000 51%  MERE
Dingyuan Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

BEFERHEREERAT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%30,000 100% WERE
Baotou Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
MMBER R FERERAR 8  hE*/HER AE#1,000 100% RARR
Hangzhou Jifa Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
MNEBAEERARLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%1,000 100% HREER
Hangzhou Shitong Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
RMBAEAFERARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%1,000 100% REER
Hangzhou Langshi Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CoNnTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
HATHREXERERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR35,000 100% REAER
Hangzhou Yukun Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB35,000 100%  Investment holding
IETEEEHERSEERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR50,000 60% WERE
Jiangxi Zhongcheng Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 60%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BRI EREARAT (2,8 HE*/HERD AR¥1,076,923 100% WEFE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongcheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,076,923 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RETFHEZARLA (8  E:/HEAN AR#592,875 100% WEFE
Taixing Tairui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB592,875 100%  Property development
BN ERHEREERAR (58 RE*/PERD ARH530,000 51%  MERE
Fuzhou Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB530,000 51%  Property development
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ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020

1. PRAREEER (@) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG

AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
PNEELREHEREERAR (8  hE*/HEA AR%50,000 100% WEFE
Yangzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

MNRACEERARAA (2,8 HE*/ERL AR#2,000 100% HREER

Hangzhou Aolang Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,000 100%  Investment holding
MNP FERARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR#2,000 100% HREER

Hangzhou Langya Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,000 100%  Investment holding
REREEBEREARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR50,505 100% MERE

Zhuji Shinsun Xiangyun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,505 100%  Property development
REREERELERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% MERE

Zhuji Shinsun Xiangkun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
MNBERFERERAR 8  hE*/HEM AE#1,000 100% RARR

Hangzhou Jida Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CoNnTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
RERERBELERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 0% MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Jinghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 70%  Property development
RERERTHERERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Future City Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
ATRELREHEREARAR (2,8 HE*/HERD AR#50,000 100% WEFE
Dongtai Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RARELRRHEREERAT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%153,061 100% WER%
Tiantai Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB153,061 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ARTEERHERSERLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% WERE
Tianchang Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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1. ARIREEER @)
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AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

#H/ BRIRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE i
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) RERAL TEEEK
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE: ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
BNEALREHEREARAA 8  E*/HERY AR50,000 100% DEFEE
Suzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
WEHEERHERRERAE (8  HE*/hER AR50,000 100% WERE
Liaocheng Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERELEEHEREERAR (8  hE*/HEA AR%50,000 100% WEFE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongyue Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
EREAEHEREERAT (8  HE*/hER AR50,000 100% WERE
Jinan Xianghong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
BEHBEHEREERAT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR50,000 100% WERE
Guangde Xiangsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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1. ARREEER (&)
EREHBLAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :

Bt 7% R M EE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRA NG

AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
BN ELREHEREERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR%50,000 100% WEFE
Quzhou Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

NNFREXERERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR1,000 100% REAER
Hangzhou Yilei Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
RNEZRRERERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR%1,000 100% REER
Hangzhou Zhengquan Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
MNERCEERARLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%10,000 100% REZR
Hangzhou Zhengran Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 100%  Investment holding
ML EREARAR (2,8 HE*/HERD AR1,180,000 100% ¥R
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongyue Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMBT, 180,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020
1. ARIREEER @)

EEBHBAGER (&)
XRAAFEEWNBELA AN FEERIMT

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
ARTHREHEREERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 51%  MERE
Tianchang Xiangrui Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BERBEHEREERAA (58 HE*/hER AR283,000 51%  MERE
Langxi Xiangsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB283,000 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
CEFELERHEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#50,000 100% DEFEE
Anji Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERELHEEERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥20,000 100% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongkun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
BkE R EREARAR 8  hE*/HEM AE#50,000 100% DEFEE
Lishui Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
EARELSRRHERRERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR50,000 100% WERE
Lishui Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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EEBHBAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :
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Bt 7% R M EE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CoNnTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

#H/ BRIRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
BkE LR HEREERAA 8  E*/HERY AE#50,000 100% DEFEE
Lishui Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
WA RN EREER AT (58 HE*/hER AR615,000 51% WERE
Huhehaote Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB615,000 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERELEERERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥20,000 100% MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongda Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
RIEELREHEREARAR (8  E:/HEAN AR58,824 100% MER%E
Zhoushan Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB58,824 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ARt ERHEREERAT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%92,000 100% WEFRE
Nanjing Shinsun Century Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB92,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020

1. 2EAIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
HERECEERERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%2,000 100% HREER
Shanghai Lilida Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,000 100%  Investment holding
BAEERHEREERAT (2,8 HE*/ERL AR¥50,000 100% WERE
Wuhu Xiangjun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
BREHAFERERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR%50,000 100% REER
Nanjing Jiyue Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Investment holding
MHERAFERERAR (2,8) HE*/mER AE#1,000 100% RARR
Hangzhou Jihang Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
MNEELSERERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR30,000 100% REHR
Hangzhou Jibin Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Investment holding
MNEEREERERAR 8  hE*/HEM AE#1,000 100% RARR
Hangzhou Jifu Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
NNERLXERERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR1,000 100% REHR
Hangzhou Jirun Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
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Bt 7% R M EE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

1. PRAREEER (@) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG
ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
MIAER AR ERARAR (8  E:/HEAN AR¥112,500 100%  WEER Rk
Zhejiang Zhuji Shinsun Tourism Cultural PRC*/Mainland China RMB112,500 100%  Property management and
Development Co., Ltd. cultural tourism
WIEBREREREERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%5,000 100% REZR
Zhejiang Zhuji Shinsun Intelligence PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Investment holding

Agriculture Co., Ltd.

BEREAREREREARAR (8  E:/HEAN AR%35,000 73.01% WERE
Linhai Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB35,000 73.01%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

BRIBERHEREERAA (1,8 HE*/HERD AR%50,000 2601%  MEHE
Ma'anshan Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 26.01%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

MNERRFERERAR 8  hE*/HEM AR10,000 100% REHR
Hangzhou Jitong Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 100%  Investment holding
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ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020
1. ARIREEER @)

EEBHBAGER (&)
XRAAFEEWNBELA AN FEERIMT

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
REAREBEERERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%1,000 100% WEEBER
Tiantai Shinsun Commercial Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Property business

management
MNBRAFERERLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%1,000 100% HREER
Hangzhou Shengan Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
RETENEHEREERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR¥35,000 0% WEFEE
Zhuji Wanyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB35,000 70%  Property development
MNEACFERFABRAA 8  hE*/HER AR#5,000 100% RARR
Hangzhou Qianxiang Management PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd.

AEREUHERERAR (2,8 HE*/HERD AR%422,000 100% WEFE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongrun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB422,000 100%  Property development
EEREEEARAT (8  E:/HEAN AR¥70,000 60% WEFE
Deging Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB70,000 60%  Property development
ERERAARERARAR 8  hE*/HEM AE#20,000 100% REARR
Shanghai Shinsun Julang Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Investment holding
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XRAAFEEWNBELA AN FEERIMT

Bt 7% R M EE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CoNnTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
M/ CRTRA NG
ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
RNERLEERARAR (2,8 HE*/PERY AR%50,000 100% REER
Hangzhou Jihan Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Investment holding
REREERERARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥20,000 100% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Yirui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
ENTRRENAEARHEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AR#5,000 100% DEFE
Quzhou Kecheng Jiulonggu Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
IRBRRBEERARAR (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%10,000 100% REZR
Beijing Lianxiang Technology Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 100%  Investment holding
MMBERFERFABRAA (2,8) HE*/mER AR#5,000 100% RARR
Hangzhou Bomeng Management PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd.
MMEREXERERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR1,000 100% REAER
Hangzhou Jijie Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
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1. ARIREEER @)

EEBHBAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :
(&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

M/ CRTRA NG
ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
MNRRCEERFARRAR (8  E:/HEAN AR1,000 100% REHR
Hangzhou Wangxuan Management PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd.
MNEELEXERFAARAR (8  E:/HEAN AR1,000 100% REHR
Hangzhou Zhixuan Management PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd.
RN AEERENERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%1,000 100% HREER
Hangzhou Hanshi Management Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
BRI EHEREERAA (2,8 HE*/hERL AR¥70,000 100% WERE
Guangde Xianghong Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB70,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BERUEEARLA (2,8 HE*/ERL AR¥20,000 51%  MERE
Jinan Xiangyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 51%  Property development
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EEBHBAGER (&)
XRAAFEEWNBELA AN FEERIMT

Bt 7% R M EE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CoNnTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
ENREEREHERE AR AR 8  E*/HERY AR50,000 100% WEFRE
Xuancheng Shinsun Yunjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERELREXERAA (8  E:/HEAN AR%30,000 100% WEFE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongze Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
MEEERERAT (8  E:/HEAN ARE2,000 100% HERTE
Hangzhou Shangsheng Industrial Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,000 100%  Wholesale and retail
EERUEHEREERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% WERE
Guangde Xiangyue Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
MNEEE R EREARAT (58 HE*/ AR AR#50,000 80% MERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Yixin Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
AR EHEREERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR%30,000 80% MERE
Hubei Kaixiang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 80%  Property development
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020

1. ARREEER (&)
EREHBLAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
M/ CRTRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) RERAL TEEEK
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
MM LA R HEREERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#30,000 100% DEFEE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
MMNBEAZEREAERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%1,000 100% REZR
Hangzhou Binwang Management PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd.
I ERRERERAR 8  hE*/HER AE#50,000 62.5% MERERXCKE
Fuzhou Shinsun Construction PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 62.5%  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. cultural tourism
IEREFBEREARAR (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥20,000 100% WERE
Xianju Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
REFELEEHEREARAR (58 HE*/ AR AR1,600,000 80% MEFE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongfeng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,600,000 80%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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1. ARREEER (&)

EEBHBAGER (&)
XRAAFEEWNBELA AN FEERIMT

Bt 7% R M EE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CoNnTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE i
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) RERAL TEEEK
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE: ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
AETHEEEERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥20,000 100% WERE
Hefei Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
iR ELREHEREERAA (2,8) HE*/mER AE#50,000 100% DEFEE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongteng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ERBENRERARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR100,000 100% REZR
Ningbo Lianxiang Technology PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Investment holding
Development Co., Ltd.
MMBRAFERARLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%1,000 100% REZR
Hangzhou Binhong Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
TR ERHEREARAF (2,8) HE*/mER AR#887,000 100% WERE
Zoucheng Xiangyi Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB887,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020
1. ARIREEER @)

EREHBLAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :
(&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

#H/ BRIRA NG

AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
AMEEENESERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR#50,000 51%  WEFE
Wenzhou Shinsun Guanghe Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
FERERNEREERAT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥50,000 100% WERE
Suichang Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
B RRRAESERAA 8  hE*/HER AE#60,000 100% DEFEE
Hengyang Shanshan Qutlets Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB60,000 100%  Property development
AEMRNREERARAR 8  hE*/HER AR#5,000 60% WERRE Rk
Zhuji Donghe Tourism Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 60%  Property development and

cultural tourism
MR R R EREER AT (2,8 HE*/hERL AR¥50,000 100% MERE
Huhehaote Xiangyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

WAEEHERHEREERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR 50,000 100% MER%E
Huhehaote Xiangxin Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. 2EAIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(&) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG
ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER fi  RAUREEHEY (Fr) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
WAEEHZEHEREERAT (2,8 HE*/DERD AR 50,000 100% MER%E
Hohhot Xiang'an Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
WA BRNEREER AT (2,8 HE*/ERL AR¥50,000 100% MERE
Huhehaote Xiangbo Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RNERCEERERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%1,000 100% HREER
Hangzhou Hengshuo Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
ML B EREARAR (58 HE*/ AR AR2,095,880 80% MERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongtu Real PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,095,880 80%  Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
MM AEEREERAA (58 HE*/hER AR%1,200,000 80% MERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongzhi Real PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,200,000 80%  Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
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ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020
1. ARIREEER @)

EREHBLAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :
(&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

#H/ BRIRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE 3
(i) Pk M  BEUAREELH (F7) RERAL TEEEK
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE: ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
AET#ERHERSERLA (8  HE*/hER AR#%20,000 60% MEFHE
Tianchang Xiangchang Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 60%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
MR LRENRERAR (8  E:/HEAN AB&%100,000 100% REAER
Zhejiang Shinsun Hongchuang PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Investment holding
Construction Technology Co., Ltd.
MMEEABERERAT (2,8) HE*/mER AE#20,000 100% WFHE
Hangzhou Xiangyi Apartment PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property leasing
Management Co., Ltd.
BRTHEEHEREERAR (8  hE*/HEA AR%50,000 100% WEREE
Nantong Xiangqi Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ERHELBEHERRERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR100,000 100% WERE
Ningbo Shinsun Honghui Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development

HEER(EE)BRAR —T_TFFR



1. ARREEER (&)
EREHBLAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :

Bt 7% R M EE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
M/ CRTRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
HEHAEHEREERAT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR50,000 100% WERE
Nanchang Xianghe Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
EEREEHEREERAR (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥20,000 100% WERE
Dingyuan Xiangjun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ERBELREHEREERAT (4,8 HE*/ ARG AR 100,000 50% MERE
Ningbo Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 50%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
MMBIRCXERFARRAR (8  E:/HEAN AR1,000 100% REAER
Hangzhou Binshun Management PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd.
RN EREEARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR200,000 0% MERE
Wenzhou Shinsun Guangou Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB200,000 70%  Property development
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1. 2EAIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
HEERMEERERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%1,000 100% HREER
Nanchang Binhong Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
HEERNEERARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%1,000 100% HREER
Nanchang Bintai Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
RERELBEXERAA (2,8 HE*/HERD AR%1,000 100% WEFE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongyun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Property development
RNEEEREHEREERAA (2,58 HE*/HER AR%50,000 80% MERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Yiyuan Real PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development

Estate Development Co., Ltd.

RERLLBERERAR 8  E*/HERM ARE1,000 100% MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Honghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Property development
AREREEERAT (2,8 HE*/ERL AR¥50,000 100% WEFRE
Hefei Xiangwan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. 2EAIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRA NG
AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER
Place and date of Nominal Effective
incorporation/ value of  percentage of
establishment registered/  equity interest
and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
AREEARERENERAA (2,8 HE*/HERL AR¥24,500 100% REZR
Hefei Xiangzhan Management Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB24,500 100%  Investment holding
BEREEEARLA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥20,000 60% WERE
Jinan Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 60%  Property development
HEHARHEREERAT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR50,000 100% WERE
Nanchang Xianghe Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
EERREEHEREERAR (8  hE*/HhEAM AR¥20,000 100% WERE
Dingyuan Xiangjun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
TREEMEERERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%10,000 100% REZR
Dingyuan Jiheng Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 100%  Investment holding
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1. ARIREEER @)

EEBHBAGER (&)

AREETEHBRARINFIERHIAT :
(&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

#H/ BRIRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
MBS EREARAR (2,8 HE*/DERD ARH872,100 100% MFR%E
Hangzhou Shinshun Hongli Real PRC*/Mainland China RMB872,100 100%  Property development

Estate Development Co., Ltd.

HEREACEER (£B) ARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%30,000 100% REER
Shanghai Xiangzhan Management (Group) Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Investment holding
AERALEERFARRAR (8  E:/HEAN AR 100,000 100% REHR
Hefei Xiangshao Management Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Investment holding
AEARCRERFAARAR (8  E:/HEAN AR 100,000 100% REHR
Hefei Shaoxiang Management Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Investment holding
FERUEHEREERAA (2,8 HE*/hERL AR300,000 100% MERE
Sugian Xiangyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB300,000 100%  Property development
NNEGLXERERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR 400,000 51% REZER
Hangzhou Tengyang Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB400,000 51%  Investment holding
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

1. 2EAIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
HM/ BRIRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
NMBGLXERERAT (2,8 HE*/DERD AR 100,000 100% REHR
Hangzhou Yaoyang Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Investment holding
WNBRERERERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR%200,000 100% REER
Hangzhou Qingyang Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB200,000 100%  Investment holding
RN ERAFERARAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%5,000 100% HREER
Hangzhou Shangjie Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Investment holding
RNER R ERERAT (2,8 HE*/HERD ARES5,000 100% REER
Hangzhou Jielian Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMBS5,000 100%  Investment holding
AEREIEXERAT (2,8 HE*/hERL AR%80,000 100% WERE
Hefei Xiangchuang Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB80,000 100%  Property development
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1. PRAREEER (@) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
#H/ BRIRA NG

AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
AR REHEREERAA 8  hE*/HER ARH500,000 100% DEFE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongxing Real PRC*/Mainland China RMB500,000 100%  Property development

Estate Development Co., Ltd.

BMABLRERARAR 8  hE*/HER AR5,000 100% REHR

Taizhou Hongbo Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Investment holding
BMFECEERERAR 8  hE*/HER AR5,000 100% REHR

Wenzhou Xianghui Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Investment holding
MIaNBREAXERERAA 8  hE*/HER AR3,000 100% REHR

Zhejiang Taizhou Hanxing Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB3,000 100%  Investment holding
BB AR HEREERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR%30,000 100% W¥HEE

Linhai Xianghong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CoNnTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
M/ CRTRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
BREEARERTNERAA (2,8) HE*/mER AR#260,000 100% RARR
Sugian Jining Management Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB260,000 100%  Investment holding
BREH X EREAARAR (2,8) HE*/mER AR#260,000 100% RARR
Sugian Jixiang Management Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB260,000 100%  Investment holding
MHNRERFEBRERAR 8  hE*/HER AE#1,000 100% RARR
Hangzhou Dongsheng Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
MU ELREHEREERAA (2,8) HE*/mER AE#50,000 100% DEFEE
Zhoushan Shinsun Hongrun Real PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Estate Development Co., Ltd.

HEEENEERERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR%5,000 100% REZR
Nanchang Binyue Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Investment holding
RERLLRERERAR (8  E:/HEAN AR%50,000 51%  WEFEE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongyi Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
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1. 2EAIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EENBLAEER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AAREEZNBRARIAFIBEHZ LT - Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(%) (continued)
HM/ BRIRA NG

AR/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
BRTEREHERSERAA (8  hE*/HhEAM AR50,000 100% WERE
Nantongshi Xiangrui Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

MNAECRERFRERAT (8  E:/HEAN ARE1,000 100%  REHR
Hangzhou Langrun Management PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding

Consulting Co., Ltd.

MMBAFRFERFATRAA 8  hE*/HER AE#1,000 100% RARR
Hangzhou Langyu Management PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding

Consulting Co., Ltd.

MNERGRERFAERAT (8  E:/HEAN ARE1,000 100%  REHR
Hangzhou Hongao Management PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding

Consulting Co., Ltd.
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Bt 7% R M EE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(%) (continued)
M/ CRTRA NG

ERAL/ RIBER HE FEEER
WEARER Bt  BEUAREELH (F7) BEEAL EER

Place and date of Nominal Effective

incorporation/ value of  percentage of

establishment registered/  equity interest

and place of issued share attributable to  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Notes  operations capital ('000)  the Company activities
BEEE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
MNEHLEERERAT (3,8 HE*/ ARG AR 100,000 51% REER
Hangzhou Xiyang Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 51%  Investment holding
BEEESREERAT (6)  RE*/HhEAM %7T500,000 100% REZR
Hainan Hailing Investment Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China UsD500,000 100%  Investment holding
BEREREER AT (8  hE*/HhEAM AR3,275,600 100% REZR
Hainan Chensheng Investment Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB3,275,600 100%  Investment holding
AERREXEREARRAR (2,8 HE*/HERD AR39,200 100% REAER
Hefei Xiangman Management Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB39,200 100%  Investment holding
BMNERCEERERAR e/ RN ARES5,000 100% REER
Wenzhou Xiangjing Management Co., Ltd. (8)  PRC*Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Investment holding
BNERCEERERAT (8  E:/HEAN AR5,000 100% REAER
Wenzhou Xiangtai Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Investment holding
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

Notes:

*

(M

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")

This entity is a subsidiary of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and,
accordingly, is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the Company’s control over
it.

The equity interests in these entities legally held by the Group are less than the
beneficiary interests which are attributable to the trust financing arrangements
with the third party financing institutes. The Group legally transferred partial equity
interests of these subsidiaries as collateral as at the date of this report to the trust
financing institutes. Under such trust financing arrangements, the Group was obliged
to purchase the equity interests at a fixed amount on a future date upon repayment
of the borrowings from the trust financing entities.

Meanwhile, the Group retains the power to operate and manage these entities in the
ordinary course of business. In this regard, considering the facts that the substance
of the arrangements is to collateralise some equity interests in these entities for the
borrowings for project development and the Group retains the practical ability to
govern the financial and operating policies of these project entities so as to obtain
benefits from the operating activities of these project entities, the directors of the
Company are of the view that the financial position and operating results of these
entities should be combined into the Group'’s financial statements, irrespective of the
equity transfers from the legal perspective.

Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has been delegated 21.2% of the
voting rights from the other equity holder, and thus, by holding 72.2% voting rights,
Hangzhou Xiyang is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group.

Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has been delegated 1% of the
voting rights from the other equity holder, and thus, by holding 51% voting rights,
Ningbo Shinsun Hongsheng is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group.

During the year, the Group had capital contribution by the non-controlling
shareholders of these subsidiaries and partially disposed of its equity interests in these

entities without losing control.

The subsidiary is a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise established and operating in the
PRC.

The subsidiary is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established and operating in the
PRC.

The subsidiary is a domestic enterprise established and operating in the PRC.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

The English names of the companies registered in the PRC referred to
above in this note represent management’s best efforts in translating
the Chinese names of those companies as no English names have
been registered or are available.

2.1BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include
all standards and interpretations, International Accounting Standards
("IASs") and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations)
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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2.1BASIS OF PRESENTATION (conTiNUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has early adopted the amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39
and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform, amendments to IFRS
3 Definition of a Business and amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
Definition of Material for the comparative year’s financial statements.

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRS for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)

Amendment to
I[FRS 16

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRS are described below:

(@) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all parties
to understand and interpret the standards. The Conceptual
Framework includes new chapters on measurement and reporting
financial performance, new guidance on the derecognition of
assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of
stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in financial
reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and
none of the concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework
did not have any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (conTINUED)

(b) Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for lessees

to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020 with earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain monthly lease
payments for the leases of the Group’s office buildings have been
reduced or waived by the lessors as a result of the pandemic and
there are no other changes to the terms of the leases. The Group
has early adopted the amendment on 1 January 2020 and elected
not to apply lease modification accounting for all rent concessions
granted by the lessors as a result of the covid-19 pandemic during
the year ended 31 December 2020. The reduction in the lease
payments arising from the rent concessions accounted for as a
variable lease payment by derecognising part of the lease liabilities
and crediting to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 was insignificant.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

BEAER 2 fRat?

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
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|55 455

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2'
BB B IS RS E RN 1057 R BBR 251 2R3 2898 (ISR A) REFHABENAAEETZEHEEHEH TE

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

PR B 5 3R S A BIEE 17 5%
I[FRS 17

BUPR B 5 3R S A BIEE 17 5% (IBFTA)
Amendments to IFRS 17
BIBR = ET 2RI 158 (BE]A)
Amendments to IAS 1
BIBR = ET 2RI 158 (BE] &)
Amendments to IAS 1
BB = EHERIZE R (B3] 4)
Amendments to IAS 8
BB R 1657 (BFTA)
Amendments to IAS 16

BIRR & 52 RIS 3758 (15T A)
Amendments to IAS 37

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Rbg & 4)°

Insurance Contracts?

REg & 497 °

Insurance Contracts®>

BESERRB S IE B

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?

BEMHE R

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Bitlhat 2 EE’

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

YE - BB KR - TSRS K IE?

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use?

BEIMEE A — BAIRK A2

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?
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Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative
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%

2 RIZEZZF—A— Bz zZEFEHHEE
%

3 RZZE-=F—F B z’RABZTFEHRRE
B
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Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 412
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
5 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS 4 was

amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39
rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if
they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC
21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address
issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The Phase 2
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change
is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the
new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued.
Any gains or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise
hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS (CONTINUED)

The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become
separately identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the
amendments require an entity to disclose additional information
to enable users of financial statements to understand the effect of
interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments
and risk management strategy. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be
applied retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the
comparative information.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
denominated in RMB and foreign currencies based on the exchange
rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China as at 31 December 2020.
If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a
future period, the Group will apply this practical expedient upon the
modification of these borrowings when the “economically equivalent”
criterion is met and expects that no significant modification gain
or loss will arise as a result of applying the amendments to these
changes.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption now.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement
of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with
those conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected
by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to
be applicable to the Group are as follows:

e |FRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

e |FRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion regarding
the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share of the
post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate or joint venture, respectively, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associate or joint ventures is included as part
of the Group's investments in associate or joint ventures.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations other than those under common control
are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at
FVTPL at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets, contract
assets, deferred tax assets, properties under development, completed
properties held for sale, investment properties and a subsidiary
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii)the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

187



188

Bt %% R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-THE+-—F=+—H 31 December 2020

LABE RS HEME )

V¥ BERRERFE

ME - BERRE (ERITRZRIN) THIREA
B REH T E REFDRER ISR - & FHER
RIFEHEZRBDEERHEAR | E—
FTHE EVE BEAREBEREESER
FEHEXEEBROBERFELENLE
ARIM— 20k - ZIHEB TEEHRTELR
BERMBEREERESRETIRE
ME - BERRBEENKAREEEEE
REMSEERNEERBEEEERER
B EH B R EE AR -

FIERYE  BERREEBRAEFEESN
SIBMXH - MEERREES  BENZ
EXHELBMBERNG - MAEXHAE
NEMRENE  FFABENREEFESE
B - EVE - BEMRENEZHITA
RS AEEEZEHUHEI/AERE
EERBwHBINEE L HARE
RITE -

FrETDAB SRR MG A E B FHMES
BEWE - BERREBOKAZERHREEN
FAGE o (FZAENEIBFENEMT

B¥ 3.33-5.00%
E 25.00-33.33%
N 20.00-33.33%
;ETFEE
HEEE TAE R
AfFAFHNREE

REER(EM)ARAT —F-TFEH

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified
as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as
held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-
current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

3.33-5.00%
25.00-33.33%
20.00-33.33%

Buildings

Motor vehicles

Office equipment and
electronic devices

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease

terms and useful lives
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents equipment under
installation and car campaign under construction, which are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and installation.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
leasehold property interests held as right-of-use assets which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of each
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment

property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.
If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-
of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for
as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the
case, the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale
must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless
of whether the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to
sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as
held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. The cost of
finished goods comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable selling
expenses and related tax.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period and net realisable
value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of
financial position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined by an apportionment of the total costs of land and
buildings attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value
takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
estimated costs to be incurred in selling the properties.

Allocation of property development costs

Land costs are allocated to each unit according to their respective
saleable gross floor areas (“GFA"”) to the total saleable GFA.
Construction costs relating to units were identified and allocated
specifically. Common construction costs have been allocated according
to the saleable GFA similar to land costs.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Land development for sale

Development cost of land development for sale comprises the
aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies, capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowing funds during the period
of construction and other costs directly attributable to such land
development for sale.

Land development for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the Group's
share of proceeds derived from the sale of land development for sale
by government authorities, less costs to completion and the costs
to be incurred in realising the revenue derived from the sale of land
development for sale based on prevailing market conditions.

Any excess of cost over the net realisable value of individual items
of land development for sale is recognised in profit or loss as an
allowance.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 2 to 10
years, which is based on the expected period of usage and economic
benefits brought by the software.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss
in the period when the asset is derecognised.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Office buildings
Motor vehicles

2 to 6 years
5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land held
as inventories, they are subsequently measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value in accordance with the Group's policy for
“properties under development” or “completed properties held for
sale”. When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The corresponding
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently
measured at fair value, in accordance with the Group’s policy for
“investment properties”.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease
liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases of office equipment (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that is considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased assets is capitalised
at the present value of the lease payments and related payments
(including the initial direct costs) and presented as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The finance income
on the net investment in the lease is recognised in profit or loss so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease terms.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade and bills receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade and bills receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised
as other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for the expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

In certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be
in default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in
full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade and bills receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the Group
chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’'s financial liabilities include lease liabilities, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes, corporate bonds,
asset-backed securities, trade and bills payables, other payables, and
amounts due to related parties.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of:
(i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set
out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments
or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to
profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
a. Sale of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it
is significant.

For a property development and sales contract for which the control
of the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains the physical possession, or the legal title
of the completed property and the Group has the present right to
payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.

b. Property management services

Property management service income derived from the provision of
property maintenance and management services is recognised when
the relevant services are rendered, and the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.

c¢. Management consulting services

Consulting service income derived from the provision of support
services in connection with the development of property projects is
recognised when the relevant services are rendered, and the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs.

d. Hotel services

Hotel revenue is recognised when the services have been rendered.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
of the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received, or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Contract assets

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the
revenue to which the asset related is recognised. Other contract costs
are expensed as incurred.

Employee retirement benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Company and its subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain proportion of these
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. No forfeited contribution
under the central pension scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years. The contributions are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes more than
one accounting period, the amount of foreign exchange differences
eligible for capitalisation is determined for each annual period and is
limited to the difference between the hypothetical interest amount for
the functional currency borrowings and the actual interest incurred
for foreign currency borrowings. Foreign exchange differences that
did not meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous years should not
be capitalised in subsequent years.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial information of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements is presented in RMB, which is
the Company's functional currency, because the Group's principal
operations are carried out in the PRC. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and completed properties
held for sale

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both.

Significant financing component

In determining the transaction price of property sales, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for the effects of the
timing value of money if the timing of payments agreed by the parties
to the contract provides the Group with a significant benefit of
financing.

Certain advance payments received from customers provide a
significant financing benefit to the Group. Although the Group
is required by the government to place all deposits and periodic
payments received from the pre-completion sales in a stakeholder’s
account, the Group is able to benefit from those advance payments
as it can withdraw money from that account to pay for construction
costs on the project. The advance payments received in effect reduce
the Group's need to rely on other sources of financing.

The amount of the financing component is estimated at the inception
of the contract. After contract inception, the discount rate is not
updated for changes in interest rates or other circumstances, such as
a change in credit risk. The period of financing is from the time that
the payment is received until the transfer of goods to the customers is
completed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (conTINUED)

Judgements (continued)
Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

The classification of an investment as a subsidiary, a joint venture
or an associate is based on whether the Group is determined to
have control, joint control or significant influence over the investee,
which involves judgements through the analysis of various factors,
including the Group’'s representation on the chief decision-making
authorities of an investee, such as board of directors’ meetings and
shareholders’ meetings, as well as other facts and circumstances.
The Group has entered into voting right entrustment agreements
or articles of associations with the equity holders of some entities,
pursuant to which the equity holders have agreed to entrust their
voting rights attached to certain equity interests in these entities to
the Group. Consequently, the Group considers that it controls these
entities, notwithstanding the fact that it does not hold majority
equity interest. Accordingly, these entities have been accounted
for as subsidiaries during the year. As disclosed in note 1 (2) to the
financial statements, the Group legally transferred partial interests of
some entities as collateral to independent trust financing institutes
under financing arrangements, pursuant to which, the Group was
obliged to repurchase the equity interests held by trust companies
at a fixed amount upon repayment of the borrowings. The Group is
exposed to variable returns from its involvement and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the relevant activities of
these entities in the ordinary course of business. The trust financing
institutes earn fixed returns from their investments and their rights in
these entities are considered protective in nature. In this regard, the
investments from trust financing institutes are treated as liabilities of
the Group and these investees are considered as subsidiaries.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (conTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
disclosed below:

Provision for properties under development and completed properties held
for sale

The Group's properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group’s historical experience and the nature of the
subject properties, the Group makes estimates of the selling prices,
the costs of completion of properties under development, and the
costs to be incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing
market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net
sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result
in a provision for properties under development and completed
properties held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, the carrying value and provision for properties in the periods
in which such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As a result
of the fact that certain matters relating to the income taxes have
not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimates and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other
related policies are required in determining the provision for income
taxes to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts originally recorded, the differences will
impact on the income tax and tax provisions in the period in which
the differences realise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (conTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based
on management’s best estimates according to the understanding
of the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation
and payments with the tax authorities for certain of its property
development projects. The final outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will impact
on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period in which
the differences realise.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties carried at fair value were revalued at each
reporting date based on the appraised market value provided by
independent professional valuers. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimation, the
Group considers information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. Further details are included in note 19
to the financial statements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has four reportable operating
segments which are property development, property leasing, hotel
operations and the provision of property management services.
The property leasing segment, hotel operations segment and
the provision of property management services segment have no
significant contribution to the revenue and net assets. The Group's
chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and performance assessment, focuses on the operating results of the
Group as a whole, and accordingly, no further operating segment
analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical information by segment is presented as the Group's
revenue from the external customers is derived solely from its
operation in Mainland China and no non-current assets of the Group
are located outside Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No revenue from sales to a single customer or a group of customers
under common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group's
revenue for each reporting period.
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5. Wz - Hitt A R s 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WD T - An analysis of revenue is as follows:
i —TNF
ARET T ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
b e e Revenue from contracts with customers 46,599,222 35,506,919
At 25 7 Revenue from other sources
LEZEN-CION Property lease income 39,191 12,619

46,638,413 35,519,538

EFE A Wi Revenue from contracts with customers
a) oW E R a) Disaggregated revenue information
EmEREEA Types of goods or services:
MEHE Sale of properties 46,487,347 35,372,157
Y& 1R AR TS Property management services 12,084 3,781
BE &8 Hotel operation 16,408 107,088
BB ARE Management consulting services 83,383 23,893
HEEHBIWEE Total revenue from contracts with customers 46,599,222 35,506,919
W R Timing of revenue recognition:
NE—RrEE R Properties transferred at a point in time 46,487,347 35,372,157
P& PRy ) 8 e AR 755 Services transferred over time 111,875 134,762
BEPAHBNR Total revenue from contracts with customers 46,599,222 35,506,919

TREAFNREBHOFTAEGHNEBENARE The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the

MR RN BT HEEBITHNRBOE LR current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities

RE M HE at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

—E-EF —ZE-NF

AR¥T ARBT T

2020 2019

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
RBEBVFAGLBER Revenue recognised that was included in
B R contract liabilities at the beginning of

the reporting period:
S Sale of properties 41,692,890 34,305,603
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is summarised
below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the properties
and the Group has already received the payment or has the right to
receive the payment probably.

Property management services

For property management services, the Group recognises revenue
when the services are provided on a monthly basis and the Group
has a right to invoice which corresponds directly with the value
of performance completed. The Group has elected the practical
expedient not to disclose the remaining performance obligations for
these types of contracts. The majority of the property management
service contracts do not have a fixed term. The term of the contracts
for pre-delivery and property management services is generally set to
expire when the counterparties notify the Group that the services are
no longer required.

Management consulting services

For management consulting services, the Group recognises revenue
in the amount that equals to the right to invoice which corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Group's performance
to date. The Group has elected the practical expedient not to disclose
the remaining performance obligations for these types of contracts.
The majority of the management consulting service contracts do not
have a fixed term. The term of the contracts for pre-delivery and
consulting services is generally set to expire when the counterparties
notify the Group that the services are no longer required.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (coNTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
b) Performance obligations (continued)
Hotel operation

For hotel services, the Group recognises revenue over time as
services are rendered and short-term advances are normally
required before rendering the services. The performance obligation
of hotel accommodation is recognised upon the provision of the
accommodation services and other ancillary services. The performance
obligation of food and beverage operations of hotels is satisfied when
the control of the food and beverage products is transferred, being at
the point when the customer purchases the food and beverage items
at the food and beverage operations. Payment of the transaction is
due immediately at the point when the customer purchases the food
and beverage items.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December are as follows:

—E-%F —TNF
AR¥T ARBTTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

TR R R A 2EE Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue:
R—FR Within one year 37,526,237 47,454,009
R—F1& After one year 43,882,495 34,037,979
81,408,732 81,491,988
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5. iz - HtR AR KE @)

Hip AR AT

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (CONTINUED)

—BBHF —E-NF
AR¥T ARBT T
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
Hi g A R iz Other income and gains
(E LN Subsidy income 32,384 70,756
BATFEGFAEENESHMEE Investment income from financial

wEBA assets at fair value through profit or loss 31,285 1,938
HES B ERE Gain on disposal of joint ventures 14,403 =
RUIES Deposit forfeiture 4,405 2,593
HEME - BERREER Gain on disposal of items of property,

EolEy plant and equipment 553 1,438
HEWE A RS (B5E38) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) = 4,032
HAh, Others 25,591 14,618

108,621 95,375
6. FR¥ AR A 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REBE Z BB AN E kR T 5% IE The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging:
—E-EF —ZE-NF
e ARBT ARBT T
2020 2019
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BEEFEKAR Cost of inventories sold 21 38,171,068 26,975,106
B AR A A Cost of services provided 32,506 64,321
MAERYERRHORBERIE  Impairment losses recognised for
properties under development 20 14,277 -
SRMEERE Impairment of financial assets 22,24 5,174 13,574
Y - BB REEITE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 13 56,206 57,622
CREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14 40,224 44,767
A Amortisation of intangible assets 16 2,353 3,649
Rt AHEBEHER Lease payments not included in

HERR the measurement of lease liabilities 14(c) 14,221 16,288
WX Listing expense 51,889 =
(2 S CIEAT Auditor's remuneration 6,833 3,200
EERAMAYE (BRESR Employee benefit expense

X TEA B (including directors’ and chief

CIEDE executive’s remuneration (note 8)):

TERF® Wages and salaries 826,193 777,907
RN FT IR Pension scheme contributions 73,628 125,086

RAERR(EE)ERAT —T-TEFR
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7. R A 7. FINANCE COSTS
SRR DT An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
i —TNF
ARET T AREFIT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
ERRERHFE Interest on loans and borrowings 4,304,057 3,223,183
BEEEHNFE Interest on senior notes 278,737 62,359
EEHFHFE Interest on corporate bonds 3,164 =
BEERKHBESFNFE Interest on asset-backed securities 15,464 255,634
HEAENFE Interest on lease liabilities 7,771 7,340
WA HEENF B Interest expense arising from
revenue contracts 1,541,798 928,918
WIEE N FEFAB R Total interest expense on financial
THEBENET SR liabilities not at fair value through
profit or loss 6,150,991 4,477,434
o BAREFE Less: Interest capitalised (5,037,586) (3,699,864)
1,113,405 777,570
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8. EERERESITHAEEM 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

BRI ETAEA - BARREBIZE383(1)(a) Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
(b) * (O BR(MENR AR (HEEEFFZER) pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (¢) and (f) of
BOIE —_PBHRBCFRNEEREZTHAE the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

BleamT - (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is
as follows:
- —TNF
AR®T T ARBTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
e Fees 121 =
H A 3R Other emoluments:
e EEEEMN =R Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 11,171 12,871
RASFEIHRRAERT Pension scheme contributions and
social welfare 388 378
11,559 13,249
11,680 13,249
() BYHFHITEE (a)Independent non-executive directors
FHNELE  BABEERT EZRSEERZ Mr. Wong Kon Man, Mr. Ma Hongman and Mr. Ding Jiangang were
Z_EET AT HEZRERARBIE I appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company on
WITESE o 20 October 2020.
FARXNTEBLIERNTEETNEESNOT - The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year
were as follows:
= i —ETNF
AR¥ET T ARBTTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
T8 kA Mr. Wong Kon Man 41 =
N5t Mr. Ma Hongman 40 -
T Mm% E Mr. Ding lJiangang 40 .
121 -

FATEMNBYIIFATESIHEMH There was no other emolument payable to the independent non-
(ZZ—NF |- executive directors during the year (2019: nil).

224  mEpREEARLAT —T-TEGH
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (conTINUED)

(b)Executive directors and the chief executive

Mr. Chen Guoxiang, Mr. Chen Hongni, Ms. Yao Xiaozhen and Mr.
Zhao Leiyi were appointed as executive directors of the Company on
21 May 2020.

Certain of the Company’'s directors received remuneration from the
subsidiaries now comprising the Group for their appointment as
directors of these subsidiaries. The remuneration of each of these
directors as recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiaries is
set out below:

g RZER

BYRAR RBASTHEIMHK N o
ARET T AR¥T T AR¥T T
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
in kind contributions remuneration
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
T 2020
HITEE Executive directors:
— PREIFE SR A& — Mr. Chen Guoxiang 1,350 - 1,350
— BRaAR SR & — Mr. Chen Hongni 4,700 62 4,762
— kKB AL — Ms. Yao Xiaozhen* 2,500 163 2,663
—HERLE — Mr. Zhao Leiyi 2,500 163 2,663
11,050 388 11,438
—E-NEF 2019
HITEE Executive directors:
— FREIFE SR A — Mr. Chen Guoxiang 1,350 = 1,350
— BReAR A& — Mr. Chen Hongni 4,683 87 4,770
— kR L~ — Ms. Yao Xiaozhen* 3,771 142 3,913
—HERLE — Mr. Zhao Leiyi 3,067 149 3,216
12,871 378 13,249

* RBRPREIR _E_—F-_ARBABEARAH
TEERBREENR_Z_—F=A+_HEZ
ERARAIMITES -

FA BEBEESHTRTBRABITURER
Al B AL 3 B e 155 -

*  Ms. Yao Xiaozhen resigned as an executive director of the Company on 5 February
2021 and Mr. Han Bo was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 12
March 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.
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9. TEESHMES 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
BHE_ZT_ZEF+_A=+—HBIFE - The five highest paid employees for the years ended 31 December
TfissiMEERRE —REE (22— 2020 included 1 director (2019: 2 directors), details of whose

NE - MBESE) - BEHMFBEEHN LM remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration
A8 HEE-_ZFT_A=+—HIHF for the year ended 31 December 2020 of the remaining 4 highest
B ESNE(-E—hE: =REF) Kk (2019: 3 directors) paid employees who are neither a director nor
RAREEMIFFETBRAENZEFEER chief executive of the Company are as follows:

WEFBEBNT
}\E’“%:FIE AREFIT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB' 000
e EMEEYEA Salaries, allowances,bonus and benefits in kind 14,560 11,667
RIRS B KT EI2A  Pension scheme contributions and social welfare 649 398
15,209 12,065

BN ?T@J RENFEENIFRRBITHA The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

E\E’] FrifEEABMT employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:
i —TAF
ARMET T AR®TFT
2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’ 000

500,001#7C% 1,000,000/  HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 = =
1,000,001&72%1,500,000/7C HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 = =
1,500,001&72%2,000,000/7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 = =
2,000,00187L%2,500,000% 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 = =
2,500,001/#7C23,000,000/% 7T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 = =

3,000,001/#7C23,500,000/% 7  HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1 =
3,500,001/#7C2%4,000,000/% 7T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 = =
4,000,001 %75 %4,500,0007% 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 - 1
4,500,001 /%7 £5,000,0007% 7T HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 3 2

4 3
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ZZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
10.INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules
and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and British Virgin Islands are not
subject to any income tax. The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong were not liable for income tax as they did not have any
assessable profits currently arising in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China were subject
to PRC corporate income tax with a tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%) for
the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale
of properties less deductible expenditures, including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. The LAT provision is subject to the final review
and approval by the local tax bureau.

—F-FF —T—NEF
ARE T ARETIT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

BNHARLIA : Current tax:
HEEH Corporate income tax 1,456,612 1,596,364
T B (ET LAT 581,575 995,483
EXERIA (FFEE19) Deferred tax (note 19) (72,641) (270,454)
FAFIAS H 4% Total tax charge for the year 1,965,546 2,321,393
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—T-FTHE+—-HF=+—H 31 December 2020
10. FRS®H (&)
BARRQ R RERE DM B QR M ATE 7lE

REXERERFEORBT AN ERNPIE
B BRBERMERERAERNRAEHRAX

10.INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax

HRMERBER (ADEERE) BERK XY expense at the effective income tax rate, and a reconciliation of the
BRAAE - applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate are
as follows:
—BBHF —E-NF
AR%ET T ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
B 5% B g A Profit before tax 5,018,917 5,530,348
BETEFBHEE At the statutory income tax rate 1,296,947 1,382,587
AR X Expenses not deductible for tax* 64,500 89,166
AU Income not subject to tax (593) (247)
ABEMERBENREN A XETE  Profits and losses attributable to
joint ventures and associates 4,436 10,786
AMRERERRATFE Deductible temporary differences and
tax losses utilised from previous years (42,677) (28,979)
BRMRIAEE Tax losses not recognised 176,765 78,046
REERTIEE R Unrecognised deductible
temporary differences 29,987 43,422
AR R AT R iy 2 2R Provision for LAT 581,575 995,483
B IR (E A Tax effect on LAT (145,394) (248,871)
MAEBEEREMRERAENFHIBESE  Tax charge at the Group's effective rate 1,965,546 2,321,393

* PAMBERAXEIEREBRETREEMEIER
B 0 A1 AT HOR A0 48 15 B St B I FUR R BB e B
BERF  BERIHRALECERERME -

HE-_ZT-_ZE+-_A=+—HIEE
DMEEECERBERRBEEHESLZL A
ARMEA42,845,000 T (ZFE—NF : AR
13,785,0007T) - HE_T_TF+_-_A=
+—HIEFE  HhaELERBEQRIE
HRRIEER e A ARA48,759,00070 (=ZF —
NE : AR#28,166,0007T) ° Z5 25 H
AAGHEREREMEZERERAISEE
EERBE NG RNREBEBIET -

RERK(EE)ERAT —T-TEFR

*  Expenses not deductible for tax mainly comprised entertainment expense and
employees’ welfare exceeding the deduction limits, charges without invoices and
impairment of investment in a joint venture, which are not deductible before tax
under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC.

The share of tax charges attributable to joint ventures and associates
amounted to RMB42,845,000 (2019: RMB13,785,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The share of tax credit attributable to
joint ventures and associates amounted to RMB48,759,000 (2019:
RMB28,166,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020. These
amounts are included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures
and associates” in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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—TE-ZHFE+-H=+—H 31 December 2020
10.INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the following:

— —TNF
ARET T AREFIT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BB Tax payable:

TEMER Corporate income tax 1,799,027 1,435,996
T HIBER LAT 610,167 487,182
FERT YT 4B RE Total tax payable 2,409,194 1,923,178

1"M.KE 11.DIVIDENDS

RBEHRE  EFGRBARE_T_TF
FRERPKREFR0.20B7T (BREAR AR
HmERPIRE) - 48%844608,680,600/%
T BEEREREERRBFREZ EiE -
REARB TR MEARBERIRE - SRR
WERRERRARE -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
for the year 2020 of HK$0.20 per share (to be distributed out of
the Company's share premium account), amounting to a total of
approximately HK$608,680,600 has been proposed by the Directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The final dividend has been proposed
after the end of the reporting period and, therefore, has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.
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—E-THE+-—F=+—H 31 December 2020

NEAREEERBAARLEE

iR 2 A

BREABINEENREBES AR L BERT
EABMGBFREMNRFEANDETEBRM
W E2,472,468 271 (ZE— I :
2,399,999,100/%) 5t & -

HEZZ-_TFR=-_FT-—NLF+=ZA=+
—HLFE - AUATESRERRT &8
HEBRMEFLFHBEDBERARGR=ZZ
—NWE+=—A+=ZB01REMHTE  ER
—E-_TFERA+T—BHKRAI00BRER
HECIETLHRMDEARRBRE_T=
EFE+—A+N\BBENERIETET
2,399,999,000 % EiEmAR - MUZEIREE
R BITHTHBEINROREE_ZE =%
FRZF-NF+ZA=+—HLFEE
BT -RZE_TFRA=1+H  &AAQA
R-ZE-_ZTF+— A+ N \BE2EBEExK
1% 3£47900 I % 13 2 600,000,000 A% 3 38
fg e RZZE-_FF+_-A+/"H BREER
EISDTE - RARQE B2 N IEITREIN
43,403,000 fx BESNAZ A7 ©

AR AEEREE T -_BER —T—HE
+Z A=+t RALEFEVEEHTEEEE
LTEK MTERSEE TS _TFR _T—
NE+-_A=Z+—HIEEEZINERER
BANSBEEDETHE -

REER(EM)ARAT —F-TFEH

12.EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,472,468,271 (2019: 2,399,999,100) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share amounts for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 was based on 1 share of the Company
as at 13 December 2019, which was subdivided into 100 shares of
US$0.01 each on 11 May 2020, and 2,399,999,000 ordinary shares
of the Company were issued under the capitalisation issue which
occurred on 18 November 2020, as if these additional shares issued
under the capitalisation issue had been in issue throughout the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. On 20 May 2020, the Company
issued 900 shares and 600,000,000 new ordinary shares were issued
upon completion of the Global Offering on 18 November 2020. On
16 December 2020, the over-allotment option has been partially
exercised and the Company allotted and issued 43,403,000 additional
shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

12.EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

(CONTINUED)

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts

are based on:

—B-®F —F-hEF
AR¥T T ARBTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’' 000
2R Earnings
SRR EEEmTE ARG Profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent 2,646,006 2,312,283
I fn 8
Number of shares
—B-%F —TNF
2020 2019

B
FREHETERBRMETHH

Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year

2,472,468,271  2,399,999,100

BRER

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted

AR®1.077T
RMB1.07 Yuan

AR#0.967T
RMBO0.96 Yuan
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1B.YE BRERSEE 13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BARER

BF RE ET4E HRIR HELHE @it

ARET T N AE®T T ARET T AE¥T T ARET T
Office
equipment and

Motor electronic Construction Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices in progress  improvements Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RZZB-FE+ZF=+-H 31 December 2020

RZE-EE-F-A:  At1January 2020:

A Cost 536,714 75,113 113,220 2,748 77,431 805,226
ZihE Accumulated depreciation (89,629) (49,604) (78,748) - (48,009) (265,990)
FHFE Net carrying amount 447,085 25,509 34,472 2,748 29422 539,236

RZEZFE-F-H'  At1lanuary 2020, net of

MR 23 E accumulated depreciation 447,085 25,509 34412 2,748 2942 539,236
AE Additions - 4,809 3,601 1,59 10,672 20678
ERTRANE (H15)  Transferred to investment properties

(note 15) (359,905) - - - - (359,905)
WEMEAR (H:E37)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) B - M ; i M
HESA Disposals - (2,607) (980) - (551) (4138)
HENBAT Disposal of subsidiaries (1,745) (3,148) (7,681) = = (12,574)
i URD) Depreciation provided during the year
(note 6) (17,039) (12,002) (8,774) - (18,391) (56,206)
R-Z-BE At 30 December 2020, net of
+-A=1+-H" accumulated depreciation
MR E:HTE 68,396 12,561 20,679 4,344 21,152 127,132

RZBZFETZA=1-H : At 30 December 2020;

A Cost 173,859 64,297 75,545 4,344 87,117 405,162
2ithe Accumulated depreciation (105,463) (51,736) (54,866) - (65,965) (278,030)
BRFE Net carrying amount 68,396 12,561 20,679 4,344 21,15 127,132
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BYE  BEREKE @) 13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

HLBBR
BF HE STRE fRIR HERE iz
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Office
equipment and
Motor electronic Construction Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices inprogress ~ improvements Total
RMB" 000 RMB'000 RMB" 000 RMB' 000 RMB" 000 RMB" 000
ZE-NETZA=t-R 31 December 2019
RIE-AE-A-B:  At1January 2019
KA Cost 535,980 83,780 12,671 417 80,893 813,741
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (71,762) (46,392) (68,087) - (33,887) (220,128)
FEFE Net carrying amount 464,218 37,388 44,584 47 47,006 593,613
RIF-AE-A—B>  At1January 2019, net of
HRZHTE accumulated depreciation 16418 37,388 44,584 1 47,006 503,613
AE Additions 734 2,5% 3,998 2,148 4,526 14,602
WEHBAR (Kiz37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) = 60 345 - = 405
g3 Transfers - - 47 #17) - -
HESE Disposals - (2,078) (1,391) - (7,23) (10,722)
HERBAT (Hi38) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) = (521) (80) - (395) (996)
BREEHENEZMBRA  Transfer to a subsidiary held for sale - (44) - - - (44)
FWiTERLE (H6) Depreciation provided during the year
(note 6) (17,867) (11,892) (13,401) - (14,462) (57,622)
RZZ-NF At 31 December 2019, net of
TZA=t-R" accumulated depreciation
MR E:HTE 447,085 25,509 34,472 2,748 2942 539,36
R-B-NF At 31 December 2019;
tzA=t-8:
B Cost 536,714 75,113 113,220 2,748 77,431 805,226
ESEiE Accumulated depreciation (89,629) (49,604) (78,748) - (48,009) (265,990)
FEFE Net carrying amount 447,085 25,509 30472 2,748 29422 539,236
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ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020

BYE BERRE @

R-ZF_FF+-_A=1+—HB HED
X BEEZRB(ZFE-—NF: ARK

250,130,000 ) E & - AAKEEE AR
1T R E M EFERI (H5E30) -

RZE_FTF+_A=+—H  #EME
BEERREBENR -_SE-_ZTHE+-A=+—H
BEER(ZE—NF : ARK 135,187,000
TL) 0 BEE A ERNRITERIEEE (M5
41) °

148

EEBEREAEA

AEERBFERAEIEHERR - BF
BEENEMBER2E6F - WRAEEE
MEBA-RASF - RORENEBMBER
12 AKAR K/ SEFIREBHOBERE -
—RiME  AEEAARAEEAIALE
EROHHEEEE -

(a) EHEEE

7 82 1155 PR MR 6 7 4 B T 1L B 4 P B 2
T :

13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTINUED)

At 31 December 2020, no property, plant and equipment (2019:
RMB250,130,000) were pledged to secure bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group (note 30).

At 31 December 2020, no property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB135,187,000) were pledged to secure
bank borrowings granted to the related parties (note 41).

14.LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office buildings and motor vehicles.
Leases of office buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and
6 years, and leases of motor vehicles generally have lease terms of 5
years. Office equipment generally has lease terms of 12 months or less
and/or is individually of low value. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

BF RE st
AR%T T ARBT T AR®T T
Office Motor
buildings vehicles Total
RMB’' 000 RMB’' 000 RMB’' 000
RZZE—NF—H—H8 As at 1 January 2019 56,300 325 56,625
NE Additions 101,363 - 101,363
EEH (WHie) Depreciation charge (note 6) (44,672) (95) (44,767)
RZE—hF As at 31 December 2019
+ZA=+—HBEK and 1 January 2020
—E-FTF—-H—H 112,991 230 113,221
NE Additions 13,017 - 13,017
E & B A s 2 Revision of a lease term arising
FEmEBEREREE from a change in the
non-cancellable period of a lease (11,950) - (11,950)
weEBH (HiEe6) Depreciation charge (note 6) (40,129) (95) (40,224)
RZEZTF As at 31 December 2020
+=—A=+—-H 73,929 135 74,064
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

14.788 @) 14.LEASES (CONTINUED)
KEEERAEAN (8) The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) HEEE (b) Lease liabilities
FN - HEBENEEERESHOT The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the
year are as follows:
—B-FHF —TNF
ARET T ARBTT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
R—A—B/ERAE Carrying amount at 1 January 125,590 58,743
MG New leases 13,017 88,843
EHE AT A s 2 Revision of a lease term arising from a change in
B T B B M HA the non-cancellable period of a lease (15,722) =
FRE RN S IEIE Accretion of interest recognised during the year 7,771 7,340
B Payments (44,539) (29,336)
RTZA=+—HZIREME  Carrying amount at 31 December 86,117 125,590
—B-%F —T—NEF
AR¥T ARBT T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB' 000
Pakiv =2 Analysed into:
MENED D Current portion 34,207 50,744
IEREE D Non-current portion 51,910 74,846

HEBENIHSTEMBRERMT44F K The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 44 to the

==

& ° financial statements.
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14.788 @) 14.LEASES (CONTINUED)
KEEERAEAN (8) The Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) RIEmMERA B HAHEERLFELIT (c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as
follows:
—EBIEF —ZT-hEF
AR®ET T ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
HEBEFNE Interest on lease liabilities 7,771 7,340
FREEEEER (M7E6) Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (note 6) 40,224 44,767
RHHENAERY (iE6) Expense relating to short-term leases (note 6) 13,237 15,936
EEEEEHER Expense relating to leases of low-value assets
HERZ (H5E6) (note 6) 984 352
RERERNASHE Total amount recognised in profit or loss 62,216 68,395
(d) BFFETREMIFE36()FI44 DRI E THE (d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows relating to
MESRHBRELRERNRABNEES leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 36 (c) and
FRIARRIRE M o 44, respectively, to the financial statements.
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—TE-ZHFE+-H=+—H 31 December 2020
14.LEASES (conTINUED)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB39,191,000
(2019: RMB12,619,000), details of which are included in note 5 to
the financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases

HARTIRAERZINT - with its tenants are as follows:
—E-EF —ET-NEF
AR¥T T ARBT T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
R—FN Within one year 96,985 16,462
—FUEERRFR After one year but within two years 96,950 12,502
MFELA EER=FA After two years but within three years 44,437 10,908
ZF A EEREFAR After three years but within four years 44,404 10,908
WEAEBERAFA After four years but within five years 39,799 9,825
AFE After five years 120,964 32,092
443,539 92,697
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—T-FTHE+—-HF=+—H 31 December 2020

15. RENE 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(=5 £ #st
AR®TR ARET ARET
Under
Completed construction Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZE-—NF—A—HK Carrying amount at 1 January 2019
FEE 581,558 521,000 1,102,558
NE Additions - 367,666 367,666
EREERREME Transferred from investment
properties under construction 888,666 (888,666) -
RNEEFHEMERRFE Net gain from a fair value
adjustment 22,406 - 22,406
R=—Z—hF+=-FB=1+—H Carrying amount at 31 December
RZZEZZEF—-H—HBH 2019 and 1 January 2020
RmEE 1,492,630 - 1,492,630
BREAME  BEREE Transferred from property,
(PBitEE13) plant and equipment (note 13) 359,905 - 359,905
ME - BEREBERZE Revaluation gains on transfer from
WEMEZ = property, plant and equipment
to investment properties 161,395 - 161,395
NEEFEMEREFE Net gain from a fair value adjustment 4,624 = 4,624
R-Z-FTF+=-F=+—H Carrying amount at
ZEEE 31 December 2020 2,018,554 - 2,018,554

AEBZREVMELRFEAM o RIEE The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China.

VEXSERGEMPEBRITMETZ The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31 December
HE AEEZREDERR-_Z_Z 2020 based on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL), an
FH+ZA=+—BAREHEERARKE independent professionally qualified valuer, at RMB2,018,554,000

2,018,554,000 . (ZFE—NF : ARM (2019: RMB1,492,630,000). The Group appoints an external valuer to
1,492,630,0007T) ° NEBEZEINBIEE be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's properties.
MEBEREEYENINLGE - BIEERIB Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
FEHisAE - B8 BUMREG#FEEXE and whether professional standards are maintained. The Group's
TEAE o ZNEE B 1= AR B 765 A 32 7 sk B 765 R 3R chief financial officer has discussions with the valuer on the valuation
EATHEREGERM N REERR RGBS assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed for
R financial reporting.

238 HEZR(KE)ARAT —T_TFFR



15.REME &)

R-TE-_TE+-_F=+—8  AEBERA
B4 B AREE244,900,0007T (ZF— 14 -
AR#203,081,0007T) B EWEC EH -
BAEEEEARIT REAM G FRERIR (M
££30) o

RZZE-_ZTF+_A=+—8 ' BELEY
¥(—ZT—NhF: AR¥121,912,0007T) 2
B RRAE R A IRTT S SRIE R (B
=41) o

RFEER

TRINTNAKRERENENRFEUERE
I

Bt 7% R M EE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s investment properties with
a carrying amount of approximately RMB244,900,000 (2019:
RMB203,081,000), were pledged to secure bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group (note 30).

At 31 December 2020, no investment properties (2019:
RMB121,912,000) were pledged to secure bank borrowings granted
to the related parties (note 41).

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group's investment properties:

R-B-ZBE+-A=+-BERAUTHAETNOFENE

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using

AERT S EATHR EXTAUBE
#E BAYE BAYE
(B—4) (B=#) (B=%) #et
ARBT T ARETR ARBTR ARBTT
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB'000
PLUATIE BT Recurring fair value measurement for:
KEMATEAE
BRTEENFE Commercial properties completed = = 2,018,554 2,018,554
RZZE-NFETZA=+T—BERAATHAETNATEAZE
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using
RIEBRTHH) BERABE EATAEE
WwE A B B AHE
(5—#) (F=#) (B=%&) Mst
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
A TIRE #1TH Recurring fair value measurement for:
REMERNTEAE
BRTEENHE Commercial properties completed = = 1,492,630 1,492,630
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—T-FTHE+—-HF=+—H 31 December 2020
15.REWE @)

AFEER (#)

RER - E—REE Kz B0 EAFET
ENEE  TEEREEREBRAE=R-

NTREEMELEMRGEERTREEE

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key

ASBHE - inputs to the valuation of investment properties:
SEHMETET_A=1T—H
Range or weighted average
i E T AT BT AL o)) DRSS
Valuation Significant —BCEF —T-NEF
technique unobservable inputs 2020 2019
ERIBEME Wz TR EERE AER#¥15-138 T AR%15-1387T
(BFHKREA)
Completed commercial Income approach Expected rental value RMB15-138 RMB15-138
properties (per square
metre and per day)
BAREx 3%-6% 3%-6%
Capitalisation rate 3%-6% 3%-6%

ERTIEENENATEDBRBKRGEE
- AERRBAURARERSER, X
ERAMS EARBNNEESEA - BB
RHEENERBAENFEERE  YBR
HEENEAMRETENMEABE R FE -
EEERLT  NEER2ERBTEAE
HEBAEERS °

AR S BEARE N AL HERBED
S0 DT EAREN OAD) - ARMEEAE
#901 (R0) S EBR AME H D FEAER
2 (1) ¢

240 HEZR(KE)ARAT —T_TFFR

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined using
the income approach by taking into account the rental income of
the properties derived from the existing leases and/or achievable in
the existing market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then capitalised to determine
the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate,
reference to the comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market has also been considered.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
capitalisation rate would result in a significant decrease (increase) in
the fair value of the investment properties.



5. REWE @)

AFEER (#)

BRAZHBERBEVEN I FEEBLEE
EBE K2EZE@AMS LAUELBNESE
R (2E ) EINRRIA T IR B RIS H M ER
ANFE(BRREERT) :

s MEHEBHEESHERRTHELNMGE
REA - ZHEKA  BEERER  BEK
ARBEER

. THBAEEBARNENEERINE
Bt st R o

EHHSEEES  BERERREMEN
NFEMR -

ERERES  HERERRENENRF
BERE -

BEHANERES  BEREZREMENR
FEBIE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value of most of the commercial properties under construction
was determined using the comparison method, with reference to
comparable rental prices as available in the relevant market to derive
the fair value of the properties assuming they were completed and,
where appropriate, after deducting the following items:

e Estimated construction cost, marketing cost, management fees,
finance costs and professional fees to be expensed to complete

the properties that would be incurred by a market participant;

e Estimated profit margin that a market participant would require to
hold and develop the properties to completion.

A higher expected rental value would result in a higher fair value of
the investment properties under construction.

A higher capitalisation rate would result in a lower fair value of the
investment properties under construction.

A higher expected profit margin would result in a lower fair value of
the investment properties under construction.
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16. BT EE 16.INTANGIBLE ASSETS
—ECEF —ET-NF
ARET T ARETIT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
By Software
Rn—H—H At 1 January
%N Cost 17,306 11,861
RETHEE Accumulated amortisation (5,634) (1,993)
R—HA— BB - Hk 2T Cost at 1 January, net of
accumulated amortisation 11,672 9,868
NE Additions 1,711 5,453
HERTB AR (FiFE38) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) (198) =
FAGHREE (H36) Amortisation provided during the year
(note 6) (2,353) (3,649)
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 10,832 11,672
%N Cost 18,542 17,306
LS 3 Accumulated amortisation (7,710) (5,634)
AREDHEE Net carrying amount 10,832 11,672
17. REELENRE 17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
—E-%5F —T—NEF
ARET T ARETIT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
DIEEEFE Share of net assets 1,164,904 529,816
WRER R Goodwill on acquisition - 235,864
DERED Impairment - (53,000)
&2 REE Carrying amount of the investment 1,164,904 712,680
ARE B RS & 1b 2 ) FE UL X FE T FRIB A5 BR 1R The Group's receivable and payable balances with joint ventures are
BRI BRI T4 - disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.
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—E-TFE+=-H=+—H 31 December 2020
1N REELENRE ) 17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(a) FEBEEERERE (RBEERFERN (a) Particulars of the Group's principal joint ventures, all of which

AR E) BIRFIS principally operate in Mainland China:
AEEES
i B R AR A HY PR RN
AR F4 mfE (F) BA EEER
Nominal Percentage
value of of ownership
Place and registered interest
year of share capital  attributable to Principal
Name of companies registration ("000) the Group activities
MR R EREBRAF BT AR#50,0007T 50% YIERE
(MM e £ D) (BEE1) —T—+F
Huzhou Jiaotou Shinsun Real Estate Zhejiang, RMB50,000 50% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC
("Huzhou Jiaotou Shinsun"”) (note 1) 2017
MMRBEXRHEEEERRAA BT AR#50,0007T 50% YIEmME
(AR B ) (BF5E1) T
Huzhou Wuxing Jiaotou Shinsun Zhejiang, RMB50,000 50% Property development
Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC
(“Huzhou Wuxing Jiaotou”) (note 1) 2017
MNEEEREHEREER AR BT AR#50,0007T 40% MEFE
(TmeEgEER]) (M) T
Hangzhou Shinsun Yijing Real Estate Zhejiang, RMB50,000 40% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC
(“Hangzhou Shinsun Yijing”) (note 1) 2017
BMNEAENTERARAH BT & AR#50,0007T 61% ¥ERMAE
(TEMEErF]) (BaE1) —TTAHF
Yangzhou Shinsun Keyu Jiangsu, RMB50,000 61% Property development
Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC
(“Yangzhou Shinsun Keyu”) (note 1) 2007
MMCEEEREARAR BT AR50,0007T 49% WX
(MMEzRD (HE2) —TN\F
Hangzhou Renyuan Real Estate Zhejiang, RMB50,000 49% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC
(“Hangzhou Renyuan”) (note 2) 2018
HRMEEERERAF BT & AR¥500,0007T 30% YRR
([FamEEE]) (FizE) —T-N\E
Nanjing Yihui Real Estate Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, RMB500,000 30% Property development
(“Nanjing Yihui") (note 1) PRC
2018
BEHLLRERERAA BT AR%20,0007T 51% MERE
([ Eahim]) (HEE1) -\
Zhuji Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, RMB20,000 51% Property development
("Zhuji Shinsun Hongrui") (note 1) PRC
2018
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1N REELENRE )

17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(a) (&) (a) (continued)
AEEERE
T it 2 AR A HY FrE R
NI £4 HfE (F) ARl FEEH
Nominal Percentage
value of of ownership
Place and registered interest
year of share capital  attributable to Principal
Name of companies registration ("000) the Group activities
AEHAHREXEARAT BT AR¥400,0007T 31% MERHE
([EBRERR]) (BEE1) —T-NEF
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangjun Real Estate Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, RMB400,000 31% Property development
("Zhuiji Shinsun Xiangjun”) (note 1) PRC
2019
REMBHFHEREARAF BT AR%20,0007T 35% YRR
([#2E#]) (1) T\
Zhuji Wanxiang Real Estate Development Zhejiang, RMB20,000 35% Property development
Co., Ltd. (“Zhuji Wanxiang”) (note 1) PRC
2018
IREHESREREERAF hEIIE AR¥50,0007C 50% MEME
(MThREaSRERE]) (1) “T-RF
Jiangxi Futian Yishou Investment Development Jiangxi, RMB50,000 50% Property development
Co., Ltd. PRC
("Jiangxi Futian Yishou Investment Development”) 2015
(note 1)
ZESUHBEHERZBRAA hE R AR¥100,0007T 33% MERE
(I=EettEREMmE]) (M) —T-NEF
Anging Jinshixiang Real Estate Anhui, RMB100,000 33% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC
(“Anging Jinshixiang Real Estate”) (note 1) 2019
AERLLEERERAA BT AR¥300,0007T 50.1% MEHHE
([FEFELBER]) (M) —TNEF
Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng Zhejiang, RMB300,000 50.1% Property development
Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC
(“Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng Real Estate”) (note 1) 2019
BRERTREEXERAA F BT AR#20,0007T 58.5% WFHE
(THa%x]) (FE3) T
Linhai Ziyuan Yintong Real Estate Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, RMB20,000 58.5% Property development
(“Linhai Ziyuan”) (note 3) PRC
2014

HEER(EE)ERAR
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(a) (&) (a) (continued)
AEEERE
MR R A HY FERRERN
NEER £} HfE (F) Bol FEEH
Nominal Percentage
value of of ownership
Place and registered interest
year of share capital  attributable to Principal
Name of companies registration ("000) the Group activities
TEHEHERERARAR o BT AR10,0007T 40% HEER
(DIt ) (K1) —T-TF
Jiangsu Xiangyang Enterprise Management Jiangsu, RMB10,000 40% Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC
("Jiangsu Xiangyang”) (note 1) 2020
BMNESFEXBRAF DT AR10,0007T 45% MEFE
(MRMES D) (K1) —T-TF
Wenzhou Lanyi Real Estate Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, RMB10,000 45% Property development
("Wenzhou Lanyi") (note 1) PRC
2020
MMNEREREEAR AR BT AR%20,0007T 40% REER
(TN R ]) (FfEE) —T-TF
Hangzhou Fenghe Enterprise Management Zhejiang, RMB20,000 40% Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd. (“"Hangzhou Fenghe”) (note 1) PRC
2020
ENRREXRBRAA BT AR¥580,0007C 50% MERE
(TEpig]) (FEE1) —T-TF
Ningbo Jingyao Real Estate Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, RMB580,000 50% Property development
(“Ningbo Jingyao”) (note 1) PRC
2020
MNEBERERARAF o EHTT AR¥300,0007T 44% KEHE
(T2 ]) () —T-TF
Hangzhou Xingyang Enterprise Management Zhejiang, RMB300,000 44% Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd. ("Hangzhou Xingyang") PRC
(note 1) 2020
FERREBREREERAA BT AR#200,0007T 51% MERERULIKE
([FEERER]) (M) —T-TF
Zhuji Xianglv Yunlu Tourism Development Zhejiang, RMB200,000 51% Property development
Co., Ltd. (“Zhuji Xianglv Yunlu") (note 1) PRC and cultural tourism
2020
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—T-FTHE+—-HF=+—H 31 December 2020
1TREELENRE )

(a) (&)

Mz BERBERBERASARNEMER
MA ZERRNAARRAAZRTLRE
BRR—ZURE - At - ZERARNER
ANERIIRAZEN G E DR -

MizE2: MMCEBWRERE > DRIHE29% -

50% * 20% & 1% KRR 4E o IRIEAT MR
WAMERAA - MM CEROTARER
FRAKEHERE—BRE - R=ZT=F
F+—A=1+0 ~&EBERES —BRE
FHAEMN20%MRE EE% - ~EEFE
49% K IAE ©

ME3: BREXTBEAAEENBARRA-ZT=
ZENARCRRASERERE - 5/
B B2EME38()

op

RELERNZERHRRAARDEAL

KRR EREZEEE AEBERE -
MR-_ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H8 BERL
R EEENRE L RERE -

RAMFES » R EER 2 AFREX

ARAEEERENEZRERARTXEHE
% REARYEENLHEZMIATA -

RERK(EE)ERAT —T-TEFR

17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(a) (continued)

Note 1: Pursuant to the investment framework agreement and the articles of association
of these companies, all shareholders’ resolutions of these companies shall be
resolved by all shareholders on a unanimous basis. Therefore, these companies
were accounted for as joint ventures of the Group during the year.

Note 2: Hangzhou Renyuan had four shareholders holding 29%, 50%, 20% and
1% equity interests, respectively. Pursuant to the articles of association of
Hangzhou Renyuan, all shareholders’ resolutions of Hangzhou Renyuan shall
be resolved by four shareholders on a unanimous basis. Therefore, Hangzhou
Renyuan was accounted for as a joint venture of the Group. On 30 November
2020, the Group acquired 20% of the equity interests held by another
shareholder, and after the transfer, the Group holds 49% equity.

Note 3: Linhai Ziyuan was a subsidiary of the Group and has become the joint venture of
the Group since April 2020. For details, please refer to note 38 (I).

The joint ventures have been accounted for using the equity method
in these financial statements.

The directors of the Company expect that these projects will be
profitable in the future and no provision for impairment for other
investments in joint ventures was necessary as at 31 December 2020.

The English names of the companies registered in the PRC referred to
above in this note represent management’s best efforts in translating
the Chinese names of those companies as no English names have
been registered or are available.
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (conTINUED)

(b)Nanjing Yihui and Ningbo Jingyao were considered as material
joint ventures of the Group as at 31 December 2020, principally
engaged in property development in Mainland China and are

RAEREZE

TRIRERBEEN AR -

accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information

of Nanjing Yihui:

=

ARET T

2020

RMB’' 000

RERRESEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 343,569

HEtnEEE Other current assets 3,312,673

MENVE E Current assets 3,656,242

FERBEE Non-current assets 51,531

nBBEE Current liabilities (3,270,375)
FhemaE  TERESK Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade and

H fth JE A< FRIE KR B other payables and provisions =

BEFRE Net asset 437,398

HASBRASE PR 2 HE Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the
joint venture:

REEEGE LB Proportion of the Group’s ownership 30%

REEDEEEREZEEFE Group's share of net assets of the joint venture 131,219

Wz Revenue =

Sz Expenses (29,887)

I Tax 7.472

FANEE Loss for the year (22,415)

FRNEHEELTE Total comprehensive loss for the year (22,415)
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17.REEEENRE @

(b) (&)

ERBRN - _TFRL o TRIITER
CRNBE_Z_TF+_A=1T—HLHF
B BERBE

17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (conTinuED)

(b) (continued)

Ningbo Jingyao was established in the year 2020. The following table
illustrates the summarised financial information of Ningbo Jingyao for
the year ended 31 December 2020:

—EC-EF

AR¥ET T

2020

RMB’ 000

Re kReEEN Cash and cash equivalents 2,000

HionaaE Other current assets 647,444

MBEE Current assets 649,444

B EE Non-current assets 139

nEEE Current liabilities (1)
FrBemeE  TEREEHR Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade and

HAt (TR R other payables and provisions (70,000)

BERE Net asset 579,582

HASERG 25 Uk Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the
joint venture:

AEBEHERRE L Proportion of the Group’s ownership 50%

AEEDEAEhECEETA Group's share of net assets of the joint venture 289,791

e Revenue =

53 Expenses (556)

I Tax 139

FAESE Loss for the year (417)

FREEERELRE Total comprehensive loss for the year (417)

HEER(EE)BRAR —T_TFFR
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R-BE-AFE+-_A=+—08 HI%RS
ALREER R A E) ([HI 3R & XL iRdE])
WEAAEBNEZEAELE  TERFEH
REREMERZEBRAEREAR - AR
SN LR B EES)  FAREE -
RN RESDREM A R A E AR =
T-NFE+-_A=+t—HHNIKEO L% - I
FHHERE R AR 53,000,000t © RiEH
MA—E-_FTEAR -+ ABRNRMDEED
# AEEHERBNEAHRESEAR
NAEIAI60% ARHE o EItL - AT RS X(LIR
BEEETBARNERMNEGEDE -

TRIVIANTEHBRE X IRER — T —NF
TZA=+— BB ERTA :
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ZZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (conTINUED)

(b) (continued)

Zhejiang Fa Xian Dao Cultural Tourism Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Fa Xian
Dao Cultural Tourism”) was considered as a material joint venture of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, principally engaged in property
development in Mainland China and is accounted for using the
equity method. Due to the change of land planning of the local
government, the development was suspended. The directors of the
Company assessed the recoverable amount based on the land price
of the neighbouring regions and provided impairment provision of
RMB53,000,000 as at 31 December 2019. Pursuant to the share
transfer agreement dated 29 September 2020, the Group disposed of
its 60% equity interest in Zhejiang Fa Xian Dao Cultural Tourism to J#
M AR EEZE BB AR (Huzhou Nantaihu Tourism Development
Co., Ltd.). Accordingly, Zhejiang Fa Xian Dao Cultural Tourism was no
longer a joint venture of the Group thereafter.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of
Zhejiang Fa Xian Dao Cultural Tourism as at 31 December 2019:
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17.REEEENRE @

17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(b) (#&) (b)(continued)
—E-NF
ARBT T
2019
RMB’ 000
ReRESEZEED Cash and cash equivalents 447
HEtneh&E Other current assets 424,423
mBNEE Current assets 424,870
FERBEE  TRERE Non-current assets, excluding goodwill 15,758
WEEErHE e Goodwill on acquisition of the joint venture
CRE5HRE) (less cumulative impairment) 182,864
mEAE Current liabilities (340,941)
BEFE Net asset 282,551
BEFE TREFE Net asset, excluding goodwill 99,687
HAEERaEbERRHER Reconciliation to the Group's interest in
the joint venture:
$§%T BRI Proportion of the Group’s ownership 60%
REEDEEELEZEEFE Group's share of net assets of the joint venture 59,812
IR 2 CRRFTRE) Goodwill on acquisition (less cumulative impairment) 182,864
wEZREE Carrying amount of the investment 242,676
Wz Revenue =
FX Expenses (2,197)
I8 Tax =
FNEE Loss for the year (2,197)
FALHEHERRE Total comprehensive loss for the year (2,197)

HEZR(EE)ERARE —T-THFEFR
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (conTINUED)

(c) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information

ENEFIBEER of the Group's joint ventures that are not individually material:
. —ETNF
AR¥T T ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
DhEEREFRNGEN REE Share of the joint ventures’ profits
and losses for the year 8,960 (53,326)
SMEEEEEEEPALE Share of the joint ventures’ total
comprehensive income 8,960 (53,326)
AEBERGECEERENBERAE Aggregate carrying amount of
the Group's investments in
the joint ventures 743,894 470,004

BEDERZEVHEEM AN EEAN

ARAESHESRSEE AGBEFTE -
MR=B-FTE+-A=+—8 - BARK
A B 0 R I RS -

The joint ventures have been accounted for using the equity method
in these financial statements.

The directors of the Company expect that these projects will be
profitable in the future and no provision for impairment for other
investments in joint ventures was necessary as at 31 December 2020.

18. REERQNTNRE 18.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
—EB-EF —T—hE
AR®F T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
DIEBEEFE Share of net assets 686,226 742,052

7K £ B ER B A8 N T A FE AR % FE A FROB A AR
BRI SRR 41 -

The Group’s receivable and payable balances with associates are
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.
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1B.REEEDNTNKRE 8

(a) AR B EBHEAT (2 HHRP AN
18 R -

18.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

principally operate in Mainland China:

(a)Particulars of the Group's principal associates, all of which

FEEEY
SR AMRAH  FEEERN
NCIEE F4 HE (F7t) B EFEXEK
Nominal Percentage
value of of ownership
Place and registered interest
year of share capital attributable Principal
Name of companies registration (000) to the Group activities
MM El I EEREBR DA FEIHT AR#50,0007T 49% MEFE
(THUMFE £ M Fm B HhE |) —E—+F
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate Zhejiang, RMB50,000 49%  Property
Development Co., Ltd. PRC development
(“Hangzhou Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate”) 2017
FRELEXARAF o BT & - AEK#20,0007T 20% MERE
([REFLEEX]) —ZETLF
Taixing Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, RMB20,000 20%  Property
("Taixing Shinsun Real Estate”) PRC development
2007
FEEE XK N EREARAF BT - AE#100,0007T 40% XLk
([BBEEXREKE ) —E—+F
Zhuji Xiyuan Cultural Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, RMB100,000 40%  Cultural
(“Zhuji Xiyuan Cultural Tourism Investment”) PRC tourism
2017
EEGBREEHEREARAF RERH AR#200,0007T 49% MERE
((EEBREFME]) —T—+F
Dingyuan Yuanbi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Anhui, RMB200,000 49%  Property
("Dingyuan Yuanbi Real Estate”) PRC development
2017
MR BEHERERRAT i BT & - AR#20,0007T 49% MERE
(TR BEME]) —T—+F
Rudong Xinbi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, RMB20,000 49%  Property
("Rudong Xinbi Real Estate”) PRC development
2017
ARMHBFEREREARAF REZH AR#120,0007T 49% MERE
([REMHMBEME]) Tt
Tianchang Xinbi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Anhui, RMB120,000 49%  Property
(“Tianchang Xinbi Real Estate”) PRC development
2017
BRELLAERMEREZEAR AR BT - AR#400,0007T 49% MERE
(TERHEELE]) —TN\F
Ningbo Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate Zhejiang, RMB400,000 49%  Property
Development Co., Ltd. PRC development
(“Ningbo Shinsun Hongyuan") 2018

HEZR(EE)ARARF

“ToTEFH
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

18.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(a) (&) (a) (continued)
AEEENL
it B SMRAR A EERN
AR =3 HEE (F) Bolk EEXEE
Nominal Percentage
value of of ownership
Place and registered interest
year of share capital  attributable Principal
Name of companies registration (000) to the Group activities
BERERCREEXAERAF BT - AR¥612,0007T 49% REZEK
([ERERCRER]) —TNF
Ningbo Yuansheng Enterprise Management Zhejiang, RMB612,000 49% Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC holding
("Ningbo Yuansheng Enterprise Management”) 2019
BIMEFHEREERAF BT # AR¥255,0187T 40% MEFAE
(MBIRERME]) —T-NF
Zhenjiang Kesheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, RMB255,018 40%  Property
("Zhenjiang Kesheng Real Estate”) PRC development
2019

KA S - Bl B A i 2 2 &H
AXEBAEREENHZE AT XEE
ZEL RARYERXLRWETMRA
A o

(b) T 2R 511 7R < 5= B 30 3 {6 51 /8§ B K HO B 2

The English names of the companies registered in Mainland China
referred to above in this note represent management'’s best efforts
in translating the Chinese names of those companies as no English
names have been registered or are available.

(b)The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information

REIMA IS AR - of the Group's associates that are not individually material:

—E-%F —T—NF
AR® T ARETIT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

DEHE S N B F R R REE Share of the associates’ profits and
losses for the year (19,770) 11,502

DhEE RN E AR EIE AT Share of the associates’ total

comprehensive income or losses (19,770) 11,502

REEREE N RRENEREE Aggregate carrying amount of the
Group's investments in the associates 686,226 742,052
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1. REEE N TNIRE (&)

(b) (&)
BERBRZEHBRRANEREALR °

Eé_?_viﬂ— A=+—8" Hﬁﬁ%ﬁ@?ﬁ’\]
ETHEBMEZR W ARERRES - AR
ERAREHEBARKENAE ﬂ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁ(\\
B N RIRRE (F R ERE o

EHEEERAE

FRREREEENABNZBNT :

18.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(b) (continued)

The associates have been accounted for using the equity method in
these financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, certain projects of associates are still under
construction and have not yet recognised revenue, the directors of
the Company expects that the projects will be profitable in the future
and no provision for impairment for investments in associates was
necessary.

19.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
are as follows:

BB EEE Deferred tax assets
A AR BHAR
ERBRAN ERFEAN EHEEN  EiiH
B B EERE RERUE BEH o
ARETT ARETT AR¥Tn AR%TR ARETn AR%Txn
Losses
available Expenses Unrealised
for offsetting for offsetting revenue
against future against future Impairment in contract  Accrued
taxable profits taxable profits  of assets liabilities LAT Total
RMB' 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
RZZE-n%-A-H At 1 January 2019 108,712 60,580 1,983 1,544,132 5924 1,721,331
WEER B AR (Hz37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) = = = 4,154 = 4,154
FRFABRNEEHE Deferred tax credited to profit or loss
GEI) during the year (note 10) 62,707 17,497 603 93,422 94,251 268,430
RIE-NE+Z H + A% At 31 December 2019 and
ZZ-FE-H 1 January 2020 171,419 78,077 2,586 1,641,708 100,175 1,993,965
WEENtE 2 Al (Kizt37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) - - - 57,304 - 57,304
HERBAF (FiFE38) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) (6,347) = = = = (6,347)
A/ (IBA) B Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
EERIE (310 profit or loss during the year
(note 10) 30,068 (32,222) 1,870 (63,516) 126,301 62,501
WZZZZF+ZA=F—H At 31 December 2020 195,140 45,855 4456 1635496 226,476 2,107,423

HEER(EE)BRAR —T_TFFR
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& & 19.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

=4

are as follows: (continued)

SHWT : (&) The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

EEHEEE Deferred tax liabilities
BAYE
FABEMN REME B4
SREERE EEWN EEH
HAFERE ATEAE ALEAE @zt
AR®TR AR®T R AR®T R AR®T
Fair value
adjustments Fair value Fair value
arising from  adjustments  adjustments
financial  arising from  arising from
assets investment business
at FVTPL properties combinations Total
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB'000
RZZ-NF—-A—-AR At 1 January 2019 130 91,745 116,663 208,538
e NG EETD) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) = = 2,670 2,670
ER(FA)/ MK AERN  Deferred tax (credited)/charged to
EREFRE (F3E10) profit or loss during the year (note 10) (112) 11,426 (13,288) (1,974)
R-ZZE—NAF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2019 and
kZE-FTF—-F—H 1 January 2020 18 103,171 106,045 209,234
FRFFALMBZERARL Deferred tax credited other
RIERE comprehensive income during the year - 40,348 - 40,348
FRPNEZRME /(GFA)H  Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
EEHE (FF10) profit or loss during the year (note 10) 15 7,980 (18,135) (10,140)
RZZZTFEFZA=1—H At31 December 2020 33 151,499 87,910 239,442
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ELEHEEERARE @)
WHEEEHIBEEERBECRES TBMRR

KRB - U T AU BRRENETHE
JEFLIBAEER DT

19.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

No deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The following is an
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

—E-EHF —E-NF
ARET T ARBT T
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB' 000

RER B MR R AR H
ERERIRE EFE

Fﬁ FAFEAR R AR
ERERIA R EFE

Net deferred tax assets recognised in

the consolidated statement of

financial position 2,100,518 1,960,579
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in

the consolidated statement of

financial position (232,537) (175,848)

1,867,981 1,784,731

RIBCPEARKMBEERFHE) - EH
BRI MINERECRABIMEEES
ﬁm%E%@Wm%%ﬁmﬁ ZREAZ
ZENF-A-BRAERIBANR_ZZTL
¢+fﬁ_+ FREENEN - WA
b B % 51 B 4% B 2 P B RLARE IR BT A B M
E o A ERARERERNRE - REBERERAHR
ER10% - Ft  AREARZFETEA
WRIZMBARE —TE/N\F—A—Bi
EAREF AT K H IR SR TEH o

R_E-_ZTF+-_A=+—H FERAE
(] 72 Hh B P 3 K 37 Y BB A R ZE SR AR TE O R
9 AR FE S 28 ) 8 A5 B0 TB 30 A SR A () IR S 7t
B ARRIEERR AEENESEMA
BAEBMLE MR R EAMRE @ MZE
MBARINAERRKRIAIESIRE BA
Floe B EBRELERIBEGEN T E A
MEBEATMKREHBNEREZEBLEHA
R¥774,944,000c (ZE—NF : ARK
413,833,0007T) °

HEER(EE)ERAT —T_TFFR

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group's fund will be retained in Mainland China for
the expansion of the Group’s operation, so it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amounts of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised amounted to approximately
RMB774,944,000 and (2019: RMB413,833,000).
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19.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the

following items:

— —TNF

ARBT ARBTT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

BEEE Tax losses 620,317 458,723
AENMEREE Deductible temporary differences 767,541 765,455
1,387,858 1,224,178

EENFHIESBIRERAEEREELE
It FEBA AR TH (B A B IR AR T R R E R B i
FMAGEEMmMESE -R_ZT-_FTF+_A
=t+—B AEEVERRELEHRBEELN
AR¥155,079,0007T (ZZ—NF : AR
114,681,0007T) °

BEREAFBER TEEBUEHE -ZERFAN
RIRFERTMA ©

20.BHEE Y

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2020, the Group did
not recognise deferred tax assets of approximately RMB155,079,000

(2019: RMB114,681,000).

The relevant tax losses can be carried forward to offset against future

taxable income in one to five years.

20.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

—E-EF —ZE-NF

ARET T ARBT T

2020 2019

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

REH] At the beginning of the year 92,688,528 88,598,436

NE Additions 48,279,864 35,531,463

I B AR (MI3E37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) 2,153,600 =

HEWNB AR (KMFE38) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) (216,418) (214,298)

BB EUT Returned to the government* - (786,385)

HERBER Y Sale of properties under development = (187,425)
EREEREHEERIME Transferred to completed properties

(M5E21) held for sale (note 21) (37,061,141)  (30,343,921)

BB AEEE (K5E6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) (14,277) -

ERERENELRTIMEDN Impairment losses transferred to

WEEE (FfsE21) completed properties held for sale

(note 21) 10,788 90,658

RER At the end of the year 105,840,944 92,688,528

* RBUEABENSEHRB SR AKERELEE
ORI 1 3t B BT UR [ o

*

According to the latest planning scheme of the local government, two pieces of land

which were originally acquired by the Group were taken back by the government.
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20.FA%FWE @) 20.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)
FERYENRERBEEBHIT The movements in provision for impairment of properties under
development are as follows:
i —TNF
ARBT T ARBTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
REA) At the beginning of the year 270,021 360,679
BEREZREESRE (F:Ee) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 14,277 -
BREERHELEDRINEN Impairment losses transferred to
REEE (FE21) completed properties held for sale
(note 21) (10,788) (90,658)
RER At the end of the year 273,510 270,021

AEENRBERYEHURFBRERNMEE The Group's properties under development are situated on leasehold
Tk land in Mainland China.

RZZZEF+_A=+—0H A5E#AK At 31 December 2020, the Group's properties under
HEHARKE69,672,081,0007T (ZF—N development with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
F: AR#¥52,312,465,00070) HIFEEHY) RMB69,672,081,000 (2019: RMB52,312,465,000) were pledged to
X¥DEH  BAEEERMNIETREMER secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 30).
YEE IR (PIEE30) ©

N.BFEHENEKRTIYE 21.COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
—EZEHF —E—NF
ARET T AREFIT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB"000
REH] At the beginning of the year 5,393,412 3,114,046
EEARERME (:E20) Transferred from properties under
development (note 20) 37,050,353 30,253,263
HEWNB AR (KMEE38) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) = (998,791)
EBRESEEFTERA (Hi6) Transferred to cost of inventories sold
(note 6) (38,171,068) (26,975,106)
RER At the end of the year 4,272,697 5,393,412

258 ReBREEARAR —T-TEGH



N.BEHENERIYE »)

R EMER TN ENRERBEED N

Bt 3% R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
21.COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (conTINUED)

The movements in provision for impairment of completed properties

T 3 held for sale are as follows:
i —TNF
AR¥T ARBTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
REH At the beginning of the year 159,351 168,772
B AREPYED Impairment losses transferred from
RIEEE properties under development
(Mt3£20) (note 20) 10,788 90,658
ERFIHERAS Impairment losses transferred to cost
B RETE of sales (86,104) (100,079)
RER At the end of the year 84,035 159,351

FIFLENCRIMENEENE RS HRHE
REFE - (HARE(EREE A 2 RFE - B
FHERE - JERFE2EENRITMER
EERERHERXEE °

NRNESZEWFEREREE

The value of completed properties held for sale was assessed at the
end of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying
value exceeds its net realisable value. The net realisable value is
determined by reference to the selling price based on the prevailing
market price less applicable selling expenses.

22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

np et 2.2 ZT-hEF

AR®T T AREET T

2020 2019

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

B SRR ENEE Trade and bills receivables 128,855 196,410
E Impairment (1,475) (1,398)
127,380 195,012

AEENEZREFEREEREEIRERE
AEFRENMEEERS  EEZ AR
% MEMERHEMENRUGKR -

The Group's trade and bills receivables primarily consist of receivables
from its property management services, management consulting
services provided to its customers, property leasing and sale of
properties.
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RESRWFEREREE @)

REREARRENZERRABNE 5 RIHK
BN EWRIENRE DO (MR EERE) 1
T~

22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (cONTINUED)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end
of each reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

i —TNF

AR®T T ARETTT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

—FR Within 1 year 98,185 177,618
—3= 1 to 3 years 29,195 17,394
i = Over 3 years — =
127,380 195,012

R o 55 53 e M M R P
BEMNEERRBOHER

The following table sets out the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade and bills receivables using a provision
matrix as at 31 December 2020:

—FR —FE=4 HB=5F Mt

Less than 1to 3 Over
1 year years 3 years Total
BHEEBRX Expected credit loss rate 0.1% 0.2% 100.0% 1.1%
BEEBARETT) Gross carrying amount (RMB’ 000) 98,292 29,263 1,300 128,855
BHEEBER(ARETT) Expected credit losses (RMB’ 000) 107 68 1,300 1,475

HEER(EE)BRAR —T_TFFR
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—E-TFE+=-H=+—H 31 December 2020
NRNEFEWFREREREE 2) 22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

TR#FINR=ZZE-—NF+ZA=+T—HE The following table sets out the information about the credit risk
FAR KB E 5 RN IE KN IR R A A exposure on the Group's trade and bills receivables using a provision

FEMHEERRBRORER matrix as at 31 December 2019:

—FR Sk BR=5F st

Less than 1to3 Over

1 year years 3 years Total
BHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 0.1% 0.0% 100.0% 0.7%
BREE(ARETT) Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) 177,716 17,394 1,300 196,410
BHEEBR(ARETT) Expected credit losses (RMB’ 000) 98 = 1,300 1,398
MNERE B REARBEBETRED T An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
WA ERMEEEE - BHEEEEBRTIER a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The expected
BREGE  MBBERDENEZEWHIE credit losses are calculated based on the migration rate, which is
KW R IR A B A R R E R EHIER based on the historical data of payments of trade and bills receivables
TEERE L - and management'’s expectation of bad debt.

B 5 I WURRIE [ B R 1R 60 R (B 1R B s The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and bills

R receivables are as follows:
—E-%F —TNEF
ARET T ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB' 000
REA At the beginning of the year 1,398 1,333
SEEE (M5E6) Impairment losses (note 6) 77 65
R &R U e i s A £ 58 Amount written off as uncollectible = =
RER At the end of the year 1,475 1,398
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B.ENEE 23.CONTRACT ASSETS
—E-%F —TNF
AR¥T T ARBTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
HEMFEENE LKA Contract costs arising from the sale
of properties 227,970 278,260

EREEFAEAOKNN (EEZEERYMEE Management expected that the contract costs, which represented
EEANHEERS) TKkE - AEEBE primarily sales commission for obtaining property sale contracts,

BRI FRIE - RAS RS A B s TR R S E are recoverable. The Group has deferred the amounts paid and will
REZEHR RZZETF+_A=+ charge them to profit or loss when the related revenue is recognised.

—H BE#ETREZHBROREBAAR As at 31 December 2020, the amounts amortised and charged to
#186,337,000 (ZE—NLF : AR profit or loss were RMB186,337,000 (2019: RMB230,666,000), and
230,666,0007T) + E 4 A B FeR 45 8RR there was no impairment loss in relation to the remaining balance.
B8 -

0. FENFIE - e REMEWTIE 24.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

—B2HF —T-NEF
AR%ET T ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BATHEREL TR LR Prepaid taxes and other tax recoverables 3,955,338 4,177,935
FEMCHT B 2 Rl JEE R AR R SRR Due from non-controlling shareholders
of the subsidiaries 4,194,234 1,631,657
WEREREN TP RENERRNR Progress prepayments for acquisition of
land use rights for development 1,107,516 2,479,557
Hiplz s Other deposits 1,085,094 1,176,898
TitHERSE Deposits for land auction 113,565 1,051,830
BEKABIHR Prepayments for construction cost 260,873 173,017
HEREEENRERRENGE Outstanding receivables arising from
the sale of equity interests 127,589 202,450
HTRERBNRE =B Advance to third parties related to
land auction 237,257 73,489
H b YR Other receivables 2,218,202 449,940
13,299,668 11,416,773
R E Less: Impairment (33,672) (28,575)
13,265,996 11,388,198
HMEWHRIBREERR T EEEEEE Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no
FREARR o fixed terms of repayment.
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BFENRE  RERHEMEWFK  24.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
| (%) RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
JEW TR ER B Z e T The movements in provision for impairment of receivables are as
follows:
bt 22 —B-NF
AR¥T T ARBTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
REH) At the beginning of the year 28,575 15,066
BB EEE (MFEe) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 5,097 13,509
RER At the end of the year 33,672 28,575
JRE LS B I8 /A ) 2 FF HR AR AR BR Y R IR % L A e The internal credit rating of amounts due from non-controlling
WRIE A ERTRBEERRRER - K shareholders of the subsidiaries and other receivables was regarded
SEEFEZEREREZEERR B V1A as the grade of performing. The Group has assessed that the credit
T 5R DA PRI B AR A0 o % & W R IE R TR risk of these receivables has not increased significantly since initial
HEIE R R0.1% - AEE BT HTRHE recognition. The expected loss rate of these receivables is assessed to
BERGIREE - WiKI12EAEHEEES be 0.1%. The Group has evaluated the expected loss rate and gross
SHERE - URFHAERBEEERS - carrying amount, measured the impairment based on the 12-month
expected credit losses, and assessed that there were no expected
credit losses.
BEAFEFABENEREE 25.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS
—EZEF —E-NF
AR¥T T ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
FELTRERE (RATE) Unlisted equity investments, at fair value = 3,038
HihIE FHIRE (BRATFE) Other unlisted investments, at fair value 626,231 17,529
626,231 20,567
REHRERRAR - a3k ETRERERD The above unlisted equity investments at the end of each reporting
BHARATEFAEaNEREE REAR period were classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
ZEIELTIRERERIERS - loss as they were held for trading.
FEMIEEMRE AP ESRBEEITH The above other unlisted investments were wealth management
BHWER EEMREBLEER  %ER products, fund products and structured deposits issued by financial
BEWatl DB ARATFEFABRNEME institutions in the PRC. They were mandatorily classified as financial
E REAREANBRERETAERIAR assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash
S RAE - flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD. 263
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26. R e RBITEER 26.CASH AND BANK BALANCES
—E-%F —ENEF
ARET T ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
B MIRTTHERR Cash and bank balances 24,304,747 6,962,481
B ZBRHIRE Less: Restricted cash 7,236,576 4,085,480
TE HRTF K Time deposits 4,265,009 122,053
[REEEUVER N Pledged deposits 1,885,262 342,651
HehIReFEY Cash and cash equivalents 10,917,900 2,412,297

BEEEPBUER  AEESE TYERE Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
AEIAEBE TREFIBEFENIEERITER development companies of the Group are required to place
ERERZ RZZE_ZTF+-_A=+— certain amounts of cash in designated bank accounts for specified
H ZXRHIR&HARE7,181,731,000 use. As at 31 December 2020, such restricted cash amounted to
T(ZE—NF : AR¥4,047,572,000 RMB7,181,731,000 (2019: RMB4,047,572,000). As at 31 December
7T) RZZEZTF+-_A=+—H R 2020, the restricted cash included construction loan mortgages

HEeBESEM/ARKE37,477,0007T (= amounting to RMB37,477,000 (2019: RMB21,695,000). As at
T—NF : AR¥21,695,00070) NERE 31 December 2020, bank deposits of RMB17,368,000 (2019:
Rl R_TE_TF+=-_A=+—H RMB16,213,000) were restricted as to use by the Group due to legal

AR#17,368,000T (ZF—NF : AR actions against the Group.
16,213,0007T) MIRITIF AR EE AR Y
H IR AEER R AR Bl o

R-E-ZTHF+-A=+—H FTHEZXA As at 31 December 2020, the time deposits amounted to
AR¥4,265,009,000C (ZE—NF : AR RMB4,265,009,000 (2019: RMB122,053,000), with maturity terms
#122,053,0007T) * R EAEAR A NEAZE— from six months to one year and annual interest rates from 1.600%
F - FREE1.600%%E2.265% ° 10 2.265%.

RZZEZZTF+ZA=+—H AR% Bank deposits of RMB1,474,865,000 (2019: RMB73,049,000)
1,474,865,000C (ZE—F : AR were pledged as security for bank and other borrowings as at 31
73,049,0007T) MIRITIFREEH - EAIR December 2020 (note 30). Bank deposits of RMB410,397,000 (2019:

TREMEROER D (FFE30) c RZT= RMB269,602,000) were pledged as security for purchasers’ mortgage
TE+—-HF=+—8 "  AR¥410,397,000 loans, construction of projects and notes payable as at 31 December

T (ZFE—NnF : AR¥269,602,0007T) K 2020.
RITEREEH - EABEHIRIBER - HE
R R EM SRR KRR o
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ZZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

26.CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

—E-%F —ENEF
ARET T ARETIT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

RERRESEFEY Cash and cash equivalents
UAREESHE Denominated in RMB 10,591,781 2,384,887
LAZETTETHE Denominated in US$ 166,232 27,410
A TTEHE Denominated in HK$ 159,887 =
10,917,900 2,412,297

ARBTSERIABAEMEY - BREP
B A it 9 N EE B IR AR D)) R CAEBE ~ BE )
NEEEMRE)  AKRERBEREELET
SNERTERRITIEARB LG SHEMER -

RITRSBREET BRITHERNRLZHH X
AR RITERERNEIREOCENEE
ASEMRTT - RE MR EEEYHREER
HAFERE

HERBRE CEREFIARBSER
EEBMETARERATIRERASRTE
Ao AEEEHBEXREES  DEBFK
NEReMReFEVNEERR B HE
FRUASRIL AR IE AN - Wiz 12 8 A8 FEEIE
EEET2RE - BRTAEREERSET
TEKX -

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents approximated to their fair values.

The internal credit rating of restricted cash, pledged deposits and cash
and cash equivalents was regarded as the grade of performing. The
Group has assessed that the credit risk of restricted cash, pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and it has measured the impairment based on
12-month expected credit losses, and has assessed that the expected
credit losses are immaterial.
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. EZBEAREREANRE 27.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
REZEHAR  EXBEZEHNEZEN An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of
FIE R EN ERAIRE ST T each reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
— —TNF
AR®T T ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
NG Less than 1 year 6,764,319 4,741,903
—FPAE Over 1 year 213,003 360,533
6,977,322 5,102,436
B5RNBIERENZEBEAEER 28 - Trade and bills payables are unsecured and interest-free and are
BERRELEREE - normally settled based on the progress of construction.

REREHARR - ARNE F BN FE R EN The fair values of trade and bills payables as at the end of the
SERERAREERE - AR T EEEE reporting period approximated to their corresponding carrying

FERREEMS ° amounts due to their relatively short maturity terms.
BHMEMNFIERESER 28.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
—E-EF —E—NF
ARBT T ARBT T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FEASTBfT B A 1 &Y Due to non-controlling shareholders
FEERR AR R and predecessor shareholders of
Al AR B KIA the subsidiaries 1,584,359 1,133,698
BHEMEBBNZS Deposits related to sales of properties 391,986 179,222
1t s A e AR Y Outstanding payables arising from the
REZENKIE acquisition of equity interests 1,142,391 1,251,623
BN EENRE S Retention deposits related to
construction 733,305 566,398
e TE REF Payroll and welfare payable 237,743 338,136
BT INEEERRE E=FTENK Prepayments from third parties related
to land auction - 332,321
E b 7138 M T o0 Other tax and surcharges 6,817,934 470,039
H A, Others 2,312,616 627,033
13,220,334 4,898,470

H th JE A< R T8 K BT B 2 B FEIE AR AR 3R R AT AR Other payables and advances from non-controlling shareholders and

RBRAEER RARERERE - REX predecessor shareholders of subsidiaries are unsecured and repayable
H T RIE B A B B E M EBRE A AR on demand. The fair values of other payables at the end of year
A e approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts.
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2. 5B E 29.CONTRACT LIABILITIES
BEAHEEMNFBOT : Details of contract liabilities are as follows:
i —TNF
AREFT T AREFIT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
EHEE Contract liabilities 68,791,434 77,901,721

AEERBEMEHESNMEARZREMRMA The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
BEPWERMNR - AEEBERBESAH (£ schedules as established in the property sales contracts. Payments are
EREMERERIEE) B L AR AT BERR usually received in advance of the performance under the contracts

e which are mainly from property development and sales.
30.;tESR 1T R EMb{EF 30.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS

st “B-NE
2020 2019
BIRFI=(%) Ewm  ARWTT ERAE%) Ew  ARETT
Effective Effective
interest interest

rate (%) Maturity RMB' 000 rate (%)  Maturity RMB'000

ki Current
PITER - BEA Bank loans - secured 3.70-5.66 2021 1,483,250 4.57-5.87 2020 37,250
HtEH - BEA Other loans - secured 7.00-15.40 2021 10,372,197  8.00-19.60 2020 5,886,700
HtEH — BIKF Other loans - unsecured - - - 9.00-15.00 2020 144,800
RBBTERN Current portion of long term
BIERE D — B bank loans - secured 5.55-9.50 2021 713,000 5.39-9.20 2020 619,133
REE M S Current portion of long term
HEZ S — BEA other loans - secured 7.00-14.50 2021 8,071,310 10.50-14.00 2020 2,801,114
REE M S Current portion of long term
SRR — AR other loans - unsecured 16.54 2021 115,063 16.54 2020 800,000
20,754,820 10,288,997
JEENER Non-current
RITER — BEA Bank loans - secured 5.15-8.64  2022-24 12,881,215 515-9.50  2021-24 8,345,655
Bt g5 — 5EA Other loans — secured 6.80-15.00  2022-26 8,349,372  8.00-1450  2021-26 8,319,370
EER - 57 Other loans — unsecured 12.00-13.00 2022 300,500  8.50-13.00  2021-22 351,500
21,531,087 17,016,525
42,285,907 27,305,522

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD. 267



Bt %5 8RR B
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020

30. 7 BRIT R EMMER (@) 30.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
—EIEF —E-NEF
AR¥T T AREFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
DA Analysed into:
ERATHREZENRITE Bank loans repayable
—FR Within one year 2,196,250 656,383
FF In the second year 2,461,700 1,899,500
Fo-EZERT (BEMTFEELA) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 10,419,515 6,446,155
AFELE Over five year - =
15,077,465 9,002,038
ZAPA VAT BARR (8 2 A EL A0 fE 3R Other borrowings repayable
—FNRN Within one year 18,558,570 9,632,614
F_F In the second year 6,412,672 7,413,670
FoZENF (BEEMERETA) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 1,442,200 462,200
RFEALE Over five year 795,000 795,000
27,208,442 18,303,484
42,285,907 27,305,522
R-ZB_ZFE+_A=1+—R AKENE The Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB as at 31 December
HAARMEHE - 2020.

REEE TRITRAMETATYEEEK Certain of the Group's bank and other borrowings are secured by the
B ZEEERSHREHEROEREN pledges of the following assets with carrying values at the end of the

T s reporting period:
et }\E*%:FTE ARBTT
2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB' 000
Mm% - BB k& Property, plant and equipment 13 - 250,130
WEME Investment properties 15 244,900 203,081
BB Y Properties under development 20 69,672,081 52,312,465
[REEECEER N Pledged deposits 26 1,474,865 73,049
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ARBEEERLFERA  FFRRITREAM
ERO A FEEERAERS H RAREEL
EARZEERTAAEEEBYE =72
BB IZBITTIS N EIEDL -

R-_E-_TF+_A=+—H8  ZERKEEMR
HFLERREZHEARY6,667,611,0007T
(ZZ—N%F : AK#¥16,797,859,0007T) HJ
BTRITREMERIREER o

R-E-_FTF+_A=+—8  #EEREEEX
NEBERERABEEZRLTARSZAARYE
4,011,300,000c (ZZE—NF : AR
11,447,515,0007T) &) & THR1T R H b fE 5K
TRELHELR o

R-TE-_TE+-_F=+—H HLEBEEE
BERARAREZA/ARYT70,000,0007T
(ZZ— N4 AR¥349,740,0007T) W%E
FHRIT R H M FRIR R EAR o

MN-ZE-TFE+-A=+—0 LEBEK
BEERAEAREZH/ARET95,000,0007T
(ZZ—h%F : AR¥795,000,0007T) W#HE
FER1T REMfE TR ER -

R-ZZ_ZTFE+_A=+t—H EIH
EHE(SE)ERAAARZAARE
960,000,0007T (== — N4 : &) WE TR
TREAEFTIRHEER -

R-EBE_TEF+_A=+—H  A\f5EHAE
RARAERZEBARK150,000,0007T (ZZ
—NE  8)NETRTMEMETIREE
R e

RZEBEZZTF+_A=+—8 mME
BLEEEARAAABRZAARE
740,000,0007C (ZZ—NF : &) (B TR
TREAEFTIREIER -
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ZZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

30.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The management of the Company has assessed that the fair values
of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were
made between the Group and independent third party financial
institutions based on prevailing market interest rates.

The Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Chen Guoxiang, has guaranteed
certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to RMB6,667,611,000
(2019: RMB16,797,859,000) as at 31 December 2020.

A family member of the Controlling Shareholder, Ms. Zhu Guoling,
has guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to
RMB4,011,300,000 (2019: RMB11,447,515,000) as at 31 December
2020.

HAEBEEBARAT (“Shinsun Industrial Group Co., Ltd.”) has
guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to
RMB70,000,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB349,740,000).

EEBBKREARR AR (“Shanghai Julian Investment Co., Ltd.”)
has guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to
RMB795,000,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB795,000,000).

BIEEME (£8) AR AR (Agribusiness Real Estate (Group) Co.,
Ltd.) has guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up
to RMB960,000,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

shB5 B AR /A E] (Hongyang Real Estate Co., Ltd.) has guaranteed
certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to RMB150,000,000
at 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

MMEBLEEEERAE (Hangzhou Qinyang Co., Ltd.) has
guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to
RMB740,000,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).
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NELXERE 31.SENIOR NOTES
R-E-ZF R-E-EE
—B—Hf R-Z-ZfF +=A=+-8
e BT EHEE FEmEX ER HRER
ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETxR ARETRT
1 January 31 December
2020 2020
Opening Issued in Exchange Interest Closing
SEER Name of notes balance 2020 losses expense Payment balance
RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
“T-NEFEE 2019 Notes 1,016,301 = = 9,003  (1,025,304) =
—ECEFER 2020 Notes 1 (note 1)
D) - 2,087,516 (134,588) 209,527 (130,804) 2,031,651
“TOEFER 2020 Notes 2 (note 2)
(FE2) - 1,392,749 (94,620) 60,207 = 1,358,336
3,389,987
LV Analysed into:
EREHs Non-current portion 1,952,929
nEEH Current portion 1,437,058
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31.SENIOR NOTES (conTINUED)

RZZ-NF RZE-NF
—A—B& RZE-nE TZA=+—H&
H ks ER B17 EHER MEFX (NS HR A
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR AREFT
1 January 31 December
2019 2019
Opening Issued in Exchange Interest Closing
FRAE Name of notes balance 2019 losses expense Payment balance
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB'000
—2-\FRE 2018 Notes 644,958 - 3,754 40,976 (689,688) -
“T-NERE 2019 Notes - 994,918 - 21,383 - 1,016,301
1,016,301

L= Analysed into:
EREBHH Non-current portion -
REE D Current portion 1,016,301

BiFET -

BfEE2 -

R-E-_TBF-—F-_+=H  —ZT_TF=
BR+R"BE=ZZF=_FFRA=+H " H4£Z
RERABLEEITACLIEAI00FEE
TR-ZZ-ZZFIHHNEEZER([ZT=
TEZPE])  c T _TEBEVIRFH R
12.5%# 8 - WHEEMESEERAR R
PERR AR SRR B4 S AE FEAR o

R=ZZ=ZFF+HA=+/\A ' Xiang Sheng
Overseas LimitedFAEBITAEEEEA200H
BETR_Z_—FIHNBEER (=
ZEFERR2])  c ZE_THERIB2RFANEX
11%H8 » WHEEHEEBER A AIER °

Note 1: On 23 January 2020, 16 March 2020 and 20 May 2020, Xiang Sheng Holding
Limited privately issued senior notes with an aggregate principal amount of
US$300 million due in 2022 (the “2020 Notes 1”). The 2020 Notes 1 bear
interest at the rate of 12.5% per annum, and are guaranteed by Shinsun Property
Group Co., Ltd. and Mr. Chen Guoxiang, the Controlling Shareholder.

Note 2:

On 28 July 2020, Xiang Sheng Overseas Limited privately issued senior notes
with an aggregate principal amount of US$200 million due in 2021 (the “2020
Notes 2"). The 2020 Notes 2 bear interest at a rate of 11% per annum, and are
guaranteed by Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd.
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2.XES

32.CORPORATE BONDS

R-2-2E R-2-2E

—A-Bf RZBZBE TZA=+-HM

W& BT FERX E MR s eh

ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT R ARBT T

1 January 31 December

2020 2020

Opening Issued in Interest Closing

B AR Name of bonds balance 2020 expense Payment balance
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000

“Z-2EEH (FiFE1) 2020 Bonds (note 1) - 497,500 3,164 - 500,664

REREHAR  FEEEEENGEESN At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s corporate bonds were
TS 8 repayable as follows:

—B-%F —TNF
AR¥T T ARBTTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB' 000
R—FANEE Repayable within one year 3,164 =
RZEMFANEER Repayable within two to four years 497,500 -
500,664 -

izl RZZE-_ZTFE+_-_F—8  FHLEES
EERARALBEZRITASEAARKE
500,000,000 T2 25F¥EH ([=ZF
—TFEBE]) CE_TFERBRHFKRFMNX
7.70%5M8 °

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=-TFFR

Note 1: On 1 December 2020, Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd. privately issued 2.25-
year corporate bonds with a principal amount of RMB500,000,000 (the “2020
Bonds”). The 2020 Bonds bear interest at a rate of 7.70% per annum.
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33. i% BEREZ(EEEFR 33.ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES (“ABS")

AR BEITEERMESWRMMER The balance represented proceeds received from the issuance of
15 MALBEE U EREEDER TR asset-backed securities, to which the Group has collateralised certain
WETAKREZRRFERERZE - 1R future trade and bills receivables for the remaining receipts from the
BASEEBTEERMESREBEN DR provision of the sale of properties. Under an assignment arrangement
% AREERFPWEGEEMSRER - K between the Group and the institutes issuing the assets-backed
= 8 ) 5% A TE B IR IR €% securities, as and when the Group receives the sales proceeds from

2 -MBEERBESFER T _TF+= customers, the Group would remit any cash flows it collects to
R=+—HEE #HRT - FER_T— these institutes. All asset-backed securities had been repaid as at 31
NFETFZA=+—BHEHHOFBET December 2020 and the balance is nil. The details with regard to the
balance as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:
R-F—nE
+=ZA=+—8
e BFAHMNE [ BV EAR A R
AR¥ETTT (%) ARETTT
31 December
Contractual 2019
interest rate closing
BERRFESAHE Name of ABSs Principal per annum Maturity balance
RMB’ 000 (%) RMB' 000
Shinsun Group Housing Shinsun Group Housing
Residual Payment 03 Residual Payment 03 59,900 8.00-10.30 2019-2020 5,481
Shinsun Group Housing Shinsun Group Housing
Residual Payment 04 Residual Payment 04 949,650 8.30-9.70 2019-2020 150,070
Shinsun Group Housing Shinsun Group Housing
Residual Payment 05 Residual Payment 05 50,000 8.89 2020 50,000
205,551
34. IR 34.SHARE CAPITAL
gl Shares
—E-®2F —E-NF
EYH 7T
2020 2019
us$ uss$
BEITREHAR Issued and fully paid:
3,043,403,000 (ZF— N4 : &) 3,043,403,000 (2019: nil) ordinary
BREEC.VIETL(ZE—NF : &) shares of US$0.01 each (2019: nil)
EOR=Filive 30,434,030 -
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34.SHARE CAPITAL (conTINUED)

ARRBANEBHHRMT ¢

A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as

follows:
ERTRHHE (1N
ARET T
Number of
shares in Share
issue capital
RMB’000
RZZE—-—hF—H—H At 1 January 2019 = =
BITE R Issue of ordinary shares 1 =
R-E—NF+—A=+—HBK At 31 December 2019 and
—E_TF—H—H 1 January 2020 1 =
BITE R Issue of ordinary shares 999 -
R ETREITE R Issue of ordinary shares upon listing 600,000,000 39,356
RE R EITE R Issue of ordinary shares on
capitalisation 2,399,999,000 157,423
REB AR AR T TR A BT R AR Issue of ordinary shares on
an over-allotment option 43,403,000 2,837
R-E-_ZTF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 3,043,403,000 199,616

AREIRZE—NWF+ZA+=AEHSH
%3%&1'%E%¢Hmom%ﬁvn
#50,000 KR EE1ETHRG - R
I BE - AR FE R REALRE Hﬂ%
TTH AR - WEE T ARBEFEES A

Shinlight Limited ° Eéfffgiﬁﬂ‘f’—
B ARRIWEREETRARBTROFA
A100 FIMEE0.01ETHNMMN - R=-F
—“TFRA=+H ' NAFMAGolden Stone

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13
December 2019 with authorised share capital of US$50,000 divided
into 50,000 shares of US$1 at par value each. On the date of
incorporation, 1 ordinary share of US$1 was allotted by the Company
to a subscriber, and was transferred to Shinlight Limited, a company
controlled by Chen Guoxiang. On 11 May 2020, each of the issued
and unissued shares of the Company was subdivided into 100 shares
of US$0.01 each. On 20 May 2020, the Company issued and allotted
10 shares to Golden Stone Development Limited (“Golden Stone”),

274

Development Limited ([ Golden Stone] -
—HRREBER RS EMAZO QAL
HEXARBEENREAESHEEEEE
BA) BT REE10RKRSG - KREA—K
Silver Rock Group Holdings Limited ([ Silver
Rock ) &1 - RREIB + A2 RIMAShinlight
Limited 877 & A2 2 890 Ak 15 - X {BR200
BEET -

HEER(EB)ARAR —T_TFFR

a company incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by the pre-IPO
investor, Mr. Shou Bainian, with a consideration of one share of Silver
Rock Group Holdings Limited (“Silver Rock”). On the same date, the
Company issued and allotted 890 shares to Shinlight Limited, with a
consideration of US$200 million.



I}

M. BA (&)

RZZE-ZTF+A=+8  ARDEERAR
F350,0003 7t (#748/45,000,000 /% F A% H
{B0.01EcHR% (7 ) #5K&Z200,000,000E 7T
(#7408 420,000,000,000f% F AL E(EO0.01 3
TLHIRR) ©

RZFZFF+—A+N\A ' XRERES
BERXAT ETE 0 BB IRERS5.598 T HRE
£ {83,354,000,0008 7 (HHERHOARE
2,837,752,0007T) #17600,000,000 A% & i%
FEO.01 ETLHF EBAT - BRAKAS L
A AR#39,356,0007T ¢ R Z1TE AR
BB Y A ANRE2,719,060,000 7T (FOBR K
DEITHAR) - B REMKRGBEITRAE
TREROEHEES  EME - BRI 6D
BRRHEMABAKA  ZEXNAREEHRE
THBREEEEMNEEREN - ZERAAR
#79,336,000 TCAE 1R B EITE £ R M IRE
HIFHIR ©

=T+ — A+ N\H
2,399,999,000 % & E AR E{EO0.013%
THERNMEARNET  BEAREASENRA
R #157,423,0007T °

RZZE-_ZTF+_A+~B ARARN
ERBMRI LM% BREEREE IS
7  HERBSKRS. 598 THNBARER
8242,622,7708 7w (HERH AR
204,560,0007T ) g % & 31743,403,000
BEBEINRGD - BEBRASEHAARE
2,837,0007T ' MEZETEENKRMDEELD
A ANR196,593,0007T (IR IR 15 21T B
)  BENREMBROBITRAETEBRER
DEEMAS REMEERES  ZEREAEE
HRBEITHREEEENEEXAE - ZEK
AANR¥S5,130,000 TR BEEITE £
7 (B AR
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34.SHARE CAPITAL (conTINUED)

On 20 October 2020, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from US$50,000 divided into 5,000,000 shares
with a par value of US$0.01 each to US$200,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 shares with a par value of US$0.01 each.

On 18 November 2020, upon its listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Company issued 600,000,000 new ordinary shares
with par value of US$0.01 each at HK$5.59 per share for a total cash
consideration of HK$3,354,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,837,752,000). The respective share capital amount was
approximately RMB39,356,000 and share premium arising from the
issuance was approximately RMB2,719,060,000 net of the share
issuance costs. The share issuance costs paid and payable mainly
include share underwriting commissions, lawyers’ fees, reporting
accountants’ fee and other related costs, which are incremental costs
directly attributable to the issuance of the new shares. These costs
amounting to RMB79,336,000 were treated as a deduction against
the share premium arising from the issuance.

On 18 November 2020, 2,399,999,000 shares were issued by way
of capitalisation with par value of US$0.01 each, and the respective
share capital amount was approximately RMB157,423,000.

On 16 December 2020, upon its listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the over-allotment option has been partially exercised and
the Company allotted and issued 43,403,000 additional shares at
HK$5.59 per share for a total cash consideration of HK$242,622,770
(equivalent to approximately RMB204,560,000). The respective share
capital amount was approximately RMB2,837,000 and share premium
arising from the issuance was approximately RMB196,593,000, net of
the share issuance costs. The share issuance costs paid and payable
mainly include share underwriting commissions and other related
costs, which are incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance
of the new shares. These costs amounting to RMB5,130,000 were
treated as a deduction against the share premium arising from the
issuance.
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35. 15

ai ToTE+-A-+—ALEE &
M ECEREEBR G A NE TR

7_"\0

(a) R17251E

Bt i (B 15 #O 2 B 1T Ao T B 22 2 U B Ay
REZHENERE -

(b) EXf#

BAREIEIFERESEFBNSRENE
o E B A BB FE I A b 2R F)’T1‘J“XP)’TL|$Z1J§
BONRAFEZHENTAZER RARNEER

im%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ¢%§%%ﬁﬂ%%@
BRRBREBITRA KRR EREFAKAEE
METHBRRANERITAANDLE © bR
ﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%% AR A AR B
RAELWSNEE - EARKENEEFE
HNRERREER ©

(c) EEBEAFHE

R B RDE KA B A S T8 A B
ABBIEAR - AEBARTE G MFED
10%RREVEE BAFE - WHREDEESF
HUEE  BEERBEHRBEIEETMERD
50% ° ZAAREIHBUAR FrEE TRE AL
EABERAANNRE - OXERARRFER A
PR SH B 1R S i AR N AR R - MR R
BHBAES IR AEETMERN25% ° [
1%7 SRARERZ BN EMRE - TF
BERBAESHREDIK

#EZR(EE)ARA —TOTEER

35.RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the year ended 31 December 2020 are presented in the consolidated
statements of changes in equity.

(a)Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par value
of the shares issued and the consideration received.

(b)Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received for acquisition or disposal of non-
controlling interests in subsidiaries, the issued capital of the then
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group and
the capital contributions from the equity holders of certain subsidiaries
now comprising the Group before the completion of the corporate
restructuring and the reorganisation. This reserve also included gain
or loss arising from acquisition of subsidiaries from the equity holders
of the subsidiaries. Details of the movements in the capital reserve are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Group is
required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after tax, as determined
under PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of its registered capital. Subject to certain
restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the articles
of association of the Group, the statutory surplus reserve may be used
either to offset losses, or to be converted to increase share capital,
provided that the balance after such conversion is not less than
25% of the registered capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be
used for purposes other than those for which it is created and is not
distributable as cash dividends.
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
6. FEREMEKRMETE 36.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(Q)EXFHEEXZ (a) Major non-cash transactions
RER - AEBRHLAEF R AENHER During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
B A EERTHEAGERNIRETER assets and lease liabilities of RMB13,017,000 (2019: RMB101,363,000)
AR¥13,017,000L (ZZE—LF : AR in respect of lease arrangements for office buildings and motor
101,363,0007T) ° vehicles.
b)BETEELENEEEE (b)Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
BERA HEROR BLAEER EMEHS MEEDELE
&% HitfER t¥ES I HEBE MaELE
ARETR AR¥TR AR%Tn AR%®Tr AR¥TnT AR¥ET:R
Interest- Total
bearing Senior liabilities
Assets- bank and  notes and Due to from
based other  corporate related Lease  financing
securities  borrowings bonds parties liabilities activities
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
RZE-NFE—H—H At 1 January 2019 2,416,926 26,003,223 644,958 5,909,143 58,743 35,032,993
BEEE (FA)/ 5 Cash flows (used in)/from

RenE financing activities (2,211,375) 1,302,299 350,312 (882,305) (21,996)  (1,463,065)
A New lease - - - - 88,843 88,843
FETHIS. Accrual of interest - - 62,359 - 7,340 69,699
FRETDAERERE Cash flows from

non-financing activities - - (41,328) 929,483 (7,340) 880,815
R-Z—AF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2019 and

kZZ-FF-H-H 1 January 2020 205,551 27,305,522 1,016,301 5,956,321 125,590 34,609,285
BEESHNE,/(FiA) Cash flows from/(used in)

Bene financing activities (205,551) 13,672,885 2,753,639 363,820 (44,539) 16,532,304
A4 New lease - - - - 13,017 13,016
CHEEE Revision of a lease term = = = = (15,722) =
JESTFIE Accrual of interest - - 281,901 - 7,771 128,482
BERFIE Interest paid = = (161,190) = = =
FREZDAERERE Cash flows from

non-financing activities - 1,307,500 - 156,675 - 1,456,404
RZFZBE+-A=F—R At 31 December 2020 - 42,285907 3,890,651 6,476,816 86,117 52,739,491
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6. BERERMET &)

() EREENRZ R LA

HARSTERNEWNHEEORS T EE
T -

36.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash
flows is as follows:

—ECEHF —E-NEF

AR®T T ARETTT

2020 2019

RMB'000 RMB' 000

AR L TEENA Within operating activities 14,221 16,288
REEEEA Within financing activities 52,489 29,376
66,710 45,664

37. KB KB A F

A) EBEOf

e 8 R 4 AE 5L B
BREAELE])

RZZB-ZF+-_A-+/\B » ERFEE
BRI BBE AR IR A AR A

HEMEMZEARAA ([E

BRRAANRABEMAEE IR (AL
50% I8 E 51%) Eit - AEE Rl E

WREESLE - B BRERAERERAR
SENBAR - BEEELRNTRELEEY
¥RE  c WK AAEEEREVERER
TS BRI BRI D o AURBELAZR @ &=
BHEELBRUAEEBE_S_TF+=4
=+ BLEFENGABENERKSE AT
&%EEAE%N4%O%% HaHFER
TFE—A— BT AKEEHEE=Z
—EF+ A=+ —HIEFERRSREF
15 5l A AR 46,638,413,0007T R AR
3,015,925,0007T ©

_7_

RAERR(EE)ERAT —T-TEFR

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

A) Business combination

Acquisition of Ningbo Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Shinsun Hongsheng”)

On 28 December 2020, Ningbo Shinsun Hongsheng's shareholders
agreed to increase the voting rights of the Group, from the previous
50% to 51% by revisiting the articles of association of Ningbo
Shinsun Hongsheng. As a result, the Group is able to control Ningbo
Shinsun Hongsheng, which has been changed from a joint venture
to a subsidiary of the Group since then. Ningbo Shinsun Hongsheng
is engaged in property investment in the PRC. The acquisition was
part of the Group's strategy to expand its market share of property
development and operation. Since the acquisition, Ningbo Shinsun
Hongsheng contributed nil to the Group’s revenue and a loss of
RMB37,446,000 to the consolidated profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2020. Had the combination taken place at 1 January
2020, the revenue and profit of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 would have been RMB46,638,413,000 and
RMB3,015,925,000, respectively.
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37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

A) Business combination (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired

DNEEWT - company as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
WA
AFE
ARET T
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
RMB’ 000
YIE - R Rk (MI5E13) Property, plant and equipment (note 13) 41
FRERIEE E (MizE19) Deferred tax assets (note 19) 57,304
FEE R Y2 (H15E20) Properties under development (note 20) 2,153,600
TERRIR - e REMEKGIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 539,723
AT U B 718 Tax recoverable 10,915
Z PR &R & Restricted cash 59,744
[REEECEER Pledged deposits 500
RERRESFED Cash and cash equivalents 697,749
STERITER R EAMER Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings (960,000)
B 5 I8 R ER 2 Trade and bills payables (173,064)
e FRIE R ERE A Other payables and accruals (292,446)
PR IE Tax payable (36,912)
AHAE Contract liabilities (1,999,242)
AT EFTENAHAEEFEEEB Total identifiable net assets at fair value 57,912
B IEERR R (FFEANKER Less: Non-controlling interests measured as
DR A F{ES RS a proportionate share of the net identifiable
Al R & EFERLHI) assets at fair value at the acquisition date 28,956
BB EFE Net assets acquired 28,956
NIRRT R S5 Satisfied by fair value of investments in the
S E N EXN joint ventures held before acquisition 28,956
AR & T Satisfied by cash =

ERYEHNBARNRESRESTAT

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the
subsidiary is as follows:

AREFT

RMB' 000

RERE Cash consideration =

m: BENRERBEEFED Add: Cash and cash equivalents acquired 697,749
FFAREESMSRESTEN Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in

ReRBLEEYRLFE cash flows from investing activities 697,749
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3N.WKIBHE AR (&)
B) ZBWBHEBAAKEEERER

a) WEMTHAELAEEMKERAA
(TFEAEAR ) REMBRTAMMERR
BEEARAB([HEAE]) -

R-ZT-_ZTEMALH  AEBEKK
PRMIEERRIRERAR (AEAE
EmMZEH TSIV EBERE &
gt - AEE L BREARYS1,000,000
TREHELELARENBRAREREAS
B 100% IEHE -

ARBEERR  WEBZARLTHEK
—IRER - Fit - ZRHARINRER
WENBARKBEERAR MR
BREA T S R FE 3R EE A G EN
EHast-

FrEARINKE BRI EERE
FuR :

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

B) Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition
of subsidiaries

a) Acquisition of HTT#F A sABEERIRABMR AR (Zhejiang Shinsun
Hongchuang Construction Technology Co., Ltd., “Shinsun
Hongchuang”) and its subsidiary, H/NFEABEEER AR
(Hangzhou Xiangyi Apartment Management Co., Ltd., “Xiangyi
Apartment”).

On 7 April 2020, the Group and Yao Xiaozhen and Zhejiang
Xiangsheng Construction Co., Ltd., two related parties to the
Group, entered into a share transfer agreement, pursuant to which
the Group acquired 100% equity interests in Shinsun Hongchuang
and its subsidiary, Xiangyi Apartment, for a total consideration of
RMB51,000,000.

In the opinion of the Company's directors, the acquisition of
the subsidiary does not constitute a business. Therefore, the
transaction was accounted for as acquisition of assets and
liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries rather than a business
combination as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations.

The identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired companies as
at the dates of acquisition were as follows:
—ECEF
WEREANSHE
ARMET T
2020 Amounts
recognised on

acquisition
RMB’ 000
JE U B 5 OB Due from related parties 51,000
AR RIA -~ Re REMERGRIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 347,516
HeRBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 10
FTEIRTT R HALfE K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (347,500)
HEARIE R ERTE A Other payables and accruals (26)
AR E EFEERE Total identifiable net assets 51,000
W IEE AR A Less: Non-controlling interests =
BUEEEFE Net assets acquired 51,000
BEEREUTIHER Consideration transferred, satisfied by:
RERE Cash consideration 51,000

RAERR(EE)ERAT —T-TEFR
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37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

B) Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition
of subsidiaries (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the
subsidiary is as follows:

ARET T

RMB’ 000

HeRE Cash consideration (51,000)
m:ESHRERACEEY : Add: Cash and cash equivalents acquired 10
Wit F5E Net cash outflows (50,990)

3B.HEMHMB AT

(@) FEMHLELFERERAA ([ #
ELF])
REEHMA_FT-AF+t_A=TEH
BhEEGE  ARESENEEHF
ERFTHS1%EELRETHERRED
XEEHRNERAF  KERARE
81,600,0007T °

(D) I ERLELFRMERRBR
RE([FELZF])

BRIEHHAE-T-—NLF+=-A=1THHK
BhEEGE AEEBERBERT
M51%BEHETFTESHRBOEETER
ABERAGE - REARARM68,850,000

JG °©

(O TZERELZHERXRBERAA
([FERHLEZH])

BIEHRHA-T-—NF+A=THHK
BhHEEHZE  AEEFERZEER
EREMSI%RELE FTHEEHRE D
¥THEABARNABRAR REAARKE
51,000,0007T °

38.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) FETHELFEXEFRAA (Zhuji Shinsun Hongyu Real
Estate Co., Ltd., “Shinsun Hongyu”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 30 December
2019, the Group disposed of its 51% equity interest in Zhuji
Shinsun Hongyu to Zhuji Guoyue Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd. for a consideration of RMB81,600,000.

(b)Zhejiang Zhuji Shinsun Hongyu Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., (“Zhuji Hongyu”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 30 December
2019, the Group disposed of its 51% equity interest in Zhuji
Hongyu to Zhuji Guoyue Management Consulting Co., Ltd. for a
consideration of RMB68,850,000.

() WIZEBHERHEXER A A (Zhejiang Zhuji Shinsun
Hongshen Real Estate Co., Ltd., “"Zhuji Shinsun
Hongshen”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 30 December
2019, the Group disposed of its 51% equity interest in Zhuiji
Shinsun Hongshen to Zhuji Guoyue Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd. for a consideration of RMB51,000,000.
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B.HEMEARE (#)

(d)IIMEBELFEEEBR LA (M
BiE )

BEMAR—_T-NAFAA=T—HHK
EREDE - AEEBERMMNEEDN
100% BREHEFRMTHREERXSE
BRARRAEMACEERERAEER
A RERT -

(e) HMERE H ERIRFH R A Al H
MEH )

RERHA-_ZT-NAFT_A=1TAHK
PR R i - A EASE RN R
M75%BENETHERETHERZRAR
RE RERT -

() REBERRZR  AKER-_F—NF
FEMMEELEEREBRAR - BA
HEFBMEREBRAR  #EHFLET
AEXBERAR MMBERERRS
RAR RBREFFERE(CERBRA
7 o

(9) 88 1t 1 4 1l 35 B PR A E I & HE B R
RE] ([FEWZEEEEE )

BRIEBBHA T _TF=A_1+HAHN
BR D 88 E ik - A B E R AL
ZEHEEIER)100% IEAE L & F TR
EHEEBERAT  REABARKE
22,000,0007C °

(h) Iy & i 1% BB L Y FB R
RAE][ FFE-E )

BEAPAE-Z-_TF=A=-1THHNRK
MEZEGZE  AEEEERFEEBETDH
51%REHNE FITHEEMERSER
2aE REAARK255,0000T © M
HRABEABENI0%BELE THT
REVHLESBERAR  REARARMK
245,0007C °

RAERR(EE)ERAT —T-TEFR

38.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(d)MEELEEZEFR A A (Hangzhou Junhui
Management Co., Ltd., “Hangzhou Junhui”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 31 May 2019, the
Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in Hangzhou Junhui to
BINTIR 2EE 2B R R (Wenzhou Zhongliangxiang Real Estate
Co., Ltd.) and RERIBHEEIEHREL AR (Shaoxing Kerong
Management Co., Ltd.) for a consideration of nil.

(e) MM ZE = 1t B8 B R 22 & (Huzhou Hanyue Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd., “Huzhou Hanyue”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 30 December
2019, the Group disposed of its 75% equity interest in Huzhou
Hanyue to /B M EZER G A A (Zhuji Zhongshuo Construction
Co., Ltd.) for a consideration of nil.

(f) Pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholders, the Group
deregistered MMHEELREEZXER AR (Hangzhou Shinsun
Anxia Industrial Co., Ltd.), &£ RFERZEGR AR (Xianghe
Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.), EEFLHNEEHR
R A &)(Zhuji Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd.), MM ERIFEEREFR
‘A A](Hangzhou Chengken Investment Development Co., Ltd.) and
BRPg e A FRBE AL B R B R A (Shaanxi Shinsun Tourism Cultural
Development Co., Ltd.) in 2019.

() 1L FEEN BB KB IE EE B R 2 A (Hubei Xiangsheng
Xianyuan International Hotel Management Co.,
Ltd.,“Shinsun Fairyland Hotel Management”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 24 March 2020,
the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in Shinsun
Fairyland Hotel Management to Zhejiang Xiangsheng Hotel
Management Co., Ltd. for a consideration of RMB22,000,000.

(h) Uty & 7 bk B 56 FF £ B ¥ B PR 23 7] (Xiuyan Manchu
Autonomous County Xiangsheng Yuedu Property Co.,
Ltd., “Xiangsheng Yuedu”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 20 March 2020,
the Group disposed of its 51% equity interest in Xiangsheng
Yuedu Property to Zhejiang Shinsun Property Services Co., Ltd.
for a consideration of RMB255,000, and disposed of its 49%
equity interest in Xiangsheng Yuedu to #TLEEMEZ ZER A
& (Zhejiang Zhuji Yuedu Trading Co., Ltd.) for a consideration of
RMB245,000.
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BEAPAE-Z-_ZF—A+HOEHNK
NEERE  AEBEEREEUETE
B TE #9100 % & i 2 & F T 08 I
ERARAR - REAARYS,000,000
-

() BEETIRBEXRBRAA ([ &

£7x/)

R-ZZE-_ZTEMANE  AEBEERMN
TEERARAREEETRREHE
%ﬁ%é“ﬁliﬁﬁﬂuTiﬁﬁﬁﬂxﬁEuﬁﬁ%m D
Bt AEESREHERBERTH
10% K%31.5% M REIFABAR
#46,418, oooﬁ&/\Eﬁzme 216,000
T AAREERBAREBERITAS8.5%
BRAE o

RIFRESRTHREHRAGERA] -
AERRARREARR=ZDZ KRR
RMBRRER - At - BERTREN
HREARAN —HALEENRE -

(K IREBEXERAA ([ HIR

)

REEHR-_Z-_TF+_A-+—H
MBRNEREGE  ARERERNIR
HLEY 100 % A HE & T 7 A IR B IRk iE

AEERAR ([FEEKREE]) KB
A AR43,000,0007T °
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38.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

()

REHEMEEBIEFRAF (Zhuji Xiangsheng Yougiju
Hotel Co., Ltd., “Xiangsheng Yougqiju Hotel”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 14 January 2020,
the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in Xiangsheng
Yougiju Hotel to Zhejiang Xiangsheng Hotel Management Co., Ltd.
for a consideration of RMB5,000,000.

BEETIRBEE¥EFRAA (Linhai Ziyuan Yintong Real
Estate Co., Ltd., “Linhai Ziyuan”)

On 9 April 2020, the Group entered into two share transfer
agreements with Hangzhou The Second Construction Co., Ltd. and
Linhai Zhongsheng Property Development Co., Ltd., pursuant to
which the Group disposed of its 10% and 31.5% equity interests
in Linhai Ziyuan for a consideration of RMB46,418,000 and
RMB146,216,000, respectively, and the Group retained 58.5%
equity interest in Linhai Ziyuan.

According to the updated articles of association of Linhai Ziyuan,
all shareholders’ resolutions shall be passed by shareholders
representing two thirds of the voting rights. Therefore, Linhai
Ziyuan was accounted for as an investment in a joint venture after
the share transfer.

(k) I RBEEER A A (Zhejiang Jingyue Real Estate Co.,

(1)

Ltd., “Zhejiang Jingyue™)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 21 December
2020, the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in Zhejiang
Jingyue to HEHIREEIRMFHZEABRAR Zhuji Xianglv Yunlu
Tourism Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhuji Xianglv Yunlu”) for a
consideration of RMB43,000,000.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholders,
deregistered, WIEZREEFXERAR QA (Zhejiang Louyun
Sports Industry Development Co., Ltd.), %]JHEEE EREEXER
‘AR 7A (Quzhou Shinsun lou Yun Sports Industry Development
Co., Ltd.), WIRAKRIEFMZEBER QA (Zhejiang Fengsheng
Tourism Development Co., Ltd.) and WIS EEEEER AR
(Zhejiang Xiangjing Asset Management Co., Ltd.) in 2020.

the Group
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38. HEMELF @) 38.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
REEBHNEERABRTEDT : The carrying values of the assets and liabilities on the dates of
disposal were as follows:

—BIEHF —E-NEF
ARET T ARBT T
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
EHEEERE Net assets disposed of:
Mm% - HEKERE Property, plant and equipment 12,601 996
EmEE (HiE16) Intangible assets (note 16) 198 =
R—KEE QAR NEE Investment in an associate = 42,150
FRERIEEE (M15E19) Deferred tax assets (note 19) 6,347 =
FE Inventories 730 =
R b A 2 Land development for sale 575,592 -
2R (FiFE20) Properties under development (note 20) 216,418 214,298
REREME R Ty (FaE21) Completed properties held for
sale (note 21) - 998,791
g 5 W EIE Kk B R & Trade and bills receivables 2,209 500
JE U5 B Bt B RRIA Due from related companies 12,661 60,428
TENRIA -« e REMERGKIE Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 58,966 450,655
GIEEIE Tax recoverable — 838
BATEGF ABSNEREE Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 3,000 2
ZBRHIIRE Restricted cash = 1,210
RERBEEFED Cash and cash equivalents 6,407 33,096
B S RENFIEREMNEE Trade and bills payables (11,622) (25,037)
EMpEMRE - BliEe REGTER Other payables, deposits received
and accruals (239,419) (1,272,533)
BREE Contract liabilities (313) (52,084)
JE 1 BE RS 75 FRIE Due to related parties (97,681) (10,652)
e HIR Tax payable (1,828) (52,322)
544,266 390,336
W IEERR R Less: Non-controlling interests (1,144) 192,918
AEEEGREE The carrying values attributable to
the Group 545,410 197,418
HEHBAR (BB), M (MES) (Loss)/gain on disposal of
subsidiaries (note 5) (15,264) 4,032
ATRBN AR AT - Satisfied by:
He Cash 260,065 201,450
RedbEIRE Investment in a joint venture 270,081 =

284  mEBR(EEMARAT —T-TEGH
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B.HEMEARE (#) 38.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
FALENBARMNRE KA EEYWHIR An analysis of the cash flows of cash and cash equivalents in respect
EMEANWT : of disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:
i —TNF
AR%ET ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
ReHE Cash consideration 260,065 201,450
B TENFIE - Re Rk Less: Prepayments, deposits and
E M EGRIE CRAEERE) other receivables
(unsettled consideration) 192,635 201,450
B BEHERSRREEFEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents
disposed of 6,407 33,096
HEWNBARMREMREE Net outflow of cash and cash
B 58 equivalents in respect of the
disposal of subsidiaries (61,023) (33,096)
. HAEE 39.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REBEBEREAR  RUBRKRRTIREEN At the end of each reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided
FARBEMT for in the financial statements were as follows:
nt i 2.2 —T-hEF
AR¥T T ARBT T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
METAEEYMEE @A Guarantees given to banks in
MERTTIRE R ER connection with facilities
granted to purchasers of
the Group's properties (1) 27,241,482 37,028,811

METEB AR —RBE=ME Guarantees given to banks in
MIRITIRERER connection with facilities
granted to related parties and
a third party 2) 943,560 4,137,450
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39. HARERE &)

(1) AREFHETRITAARERIELENRTYE
BRRENEFRBERHEER - REERZHEMN
B MERERZBANR  AREEERNZE
RITEEREEERAES FLBOERMROEMR
FEETF B R ER o

1BIE LT AR RS EA T RS RITIER
EMEROERS : WXSERIEREMRR
RERTARBEEMNAT R  LABAKNS
BB ERDEET -

AEENERAGRBABEKFERAHEEER
REZMEMARERMEEZILE  BEEA—
RENBEREXERBDERNLFERNFART °

RER  AEBT AR AAEEFEHEND K
ITHEBRRRENEBERREREERELENE
REKX - ARAREETRRNOHRBOMNK - 186
MENTIETFERAEEREZERETER
ERERT A S RER - ML EERE R -

(2) RZZBZTF+-_A=+—H  ~EEHmEH
7 (ZE-NF : MBI RE=F) FHEEK
FRTT R EMEBRMAER - ARFEERR -
BARBE_T_TF+ _A=+—HMEKS
RUENERELRE (ZT—AF - &8)  BARA
FEIFEKX -

40. — B {EH B RH B A

RZF—NF  AEE—EHETERMNZEZZ
RERARMEETTREHEREERA
AEEEEHERSETRBEEERAR
([EBET]) MikiE - RZTZTFMA L
B AEBEN _ZEZREREQ A LEET
mHREMEREERA AT LMMKRHNE
EiE o B ARESRIHERBRERT
B110% [ 31.5% & #E - BN E R B R ER
FETTHY58.5% iR - RIERIGRTHEE
FAEBERMAA - TAREAEREANRE
SAZZFOREMRR DA - Bt - BREX
TRBROEEEARAR —REEMEMNE
B -MNZE-NE+-A=+—0  BEX
TORA—BRBIEHENNBAR

RERK(EE)ERAT —T-TEFR

39.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

(1) The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks to the purchasers of the Group's completed properties held for sale. Pursuant
to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in the case of default on mortgage
payments by the purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and penalties owed by the
defaulted purchasers to those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged to the banks
as collateral for the mortgage loans, and upon default on mortgage repayments by
these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal titles and will realise
the pledged properties through open auction.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage
loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of property ownership certificates
to the purchasers, which will generally be available within half a year to two years
after the purchasers take possession of the relevant properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in respect of the
guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group's
completed properties held for sale. The directors of the Company considered
that in the case of default on payments, the net realisable value of the related
properties would be sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage loans together
with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore, no provision has been made in
connection with the guarantees.

(2) The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions in connection with
borrowings made to the related parties as at 31 December 2020 (2019: to the related
parties and a third party). The directors of the Company consider that no provision
was needed in respect of the guarantees provided to the related parties as of 31
December 2020 (2019: nil) since the fair value is immaterial.

40.A SUBSIDIARY HELD FOR SALE

In 2019, the Group had been having negotiation with it/ — &%
EMR AT (Hangzhou The Second Construction Co., Ltd.) and ER/&™H
FREMEMIZEAR AT (Linhai Zhongsheng Property Development
Co., Ltd.) on the sale of equity interests of B /EXITIRBEXEER A
A (Linhai Ziyuan Yintong Real Estate Co., Ltd. “Linhai Ziyuan”). On
9 April 2020, the Group entered into two share transfer agreements
with Hangzhou The Second Construction Co., Ltd. and Linhai
Zhongsheng Property Development Co., Ltd. pursuant to which the
Group disposed of its 10% and 31.5% equity interests in Linhai
Ziyuan, respectively, and the Group retained a 58.5% equity interest
in Linhai Ziyuan. According to the updated articles of association
of Linhai Ziyuan, all shareholders’ resolutions shall be passed by
shareholders representing two thirds of the voting rights. Therefore,
Linhai Ziyuan was accounted for as an investment in a joint venture
after the share transfer. As at 31 December 2019, Linhai Ziyuan was
classified as a subsidiary held for sale.
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

40.A SUBSIDIARY HELD FOR SALE (conTINUED)

RZZE—NEF
ARBTT
2019
RMB’ 000
EE Assets
ME - BB k& Property, plant and equipment 44
HE TR Land development for sale 573,605
TERTRIR © e R EMEKGIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 15,175
RERRESFEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,159
PEARBEHEN —BHRBEATRMNWEE Assets of a subsidiary classified as held for sale 591,983
8f& Liabilities
HM g RIE R ERTE A Other payables and accruals (41,638)
HoBABEHEN Liabilities directly associated with the
EEEHEHBNERS assets classified as held for sale (41,638)
HABRBFHENHBE AR Net assets directly associated with the
HIZHEBENEEFE subsidiary classified as held for sale 550,345

NEBEBRAERS

(WEXBEBAXS
AT RREREEEITETHRS

41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1)Significant related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during

the year:
nt et 22 —T-hF
ARBT T ARBTIT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
RA T B Advances from related parties:
BEMRE Joint ventures 901,862 502,434
/NG Associates 244,535 539,489
SRR AR IZE S A A A Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 382,925 7,512,798
XEEEBABKEZEHHAF Companies controlled by a member of
key management personnel - 139,200
B & I =Eil 0N Companies controlled by a family
member of the Controlling
Shareholder 12,273 -
AR R KRR B Family members of the
Controlling Shareholder 35,964 34,695
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MBBAIRS @)

(WEXBBELZXZ (&)
AT AREREBETETNRS : (8)

41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(1)Significant related party transactions (continued)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during

the year: (continued)

e —ETNF
AR¥T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
BB AR T EARK Repayment of advances from
related parties:
BEbE Joint ventures 338,173 305,018
NG Associates 134,560 383,840
RYEARAR RIS A 7 Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 226,681 8,919,696
AR AR R Controlling Shareholder 6,183 =
PERIRR KGR B Family members of the
Controlling Shareholder 54,857 2,367
AATEFRENEEZARS Management consulting services
provided by:
SRR AR IZE S A A A Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 67 5,897
BTSRRI REETIEMRT ©  Property and sales management
services provided by:
IR AR R I A ) Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 175,179 156,292
HATEFIRENEZRRE Construction services provided by:
1R AR SR PRI A R A company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 7,403,498 9,832,415
R IR R R R BEHIHI A F) Companies controlled by a family
member of the Controlling
Shareholder 530,766 699,432
LEMBAR : Disposal of a subsidiary:
HEMBARNKE Consideration of disposal a subsidiary 43,000 =
MR R BB IR ARY Management consulting services
provided to:
BEEE Joint ventures 80,939 68,455
L lNE] Associates 22,411 16,083

RAERR(EE)ERAT —T-TEFR
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020
41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(1)Significant related party transactions (continued)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during
the year: (continued)

—ECEE —E-NEF
AR¥ET T ARBTIT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
BT ARIREYELBEHRER ©  Property and hotel lease services provided to:
RYEARAR RIS A7) Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 26,161 -
B & N Al An associate 95 =
M) a7 EAEK Advances to related parties:
BEEE Joint ventures 1,147,860 3,541,490
ﬁ%%ﬁ’&? Associates 489,740 784,394
TR AR R HIE A Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 20,943,067 1,472,599
AR AR R B 2 8 A A Companies controlled by a family
member of the Controlling
Shareholder 2,742,680 197,659
PRI R R IEK B Family members of the
Controlling Shareholder 9,544 -
—BC-BHE —E-NF
AR®T T ARBT T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BIRFER T ER Repayment of advances to related parties:
é%m% Joint ventures 2,626,677 3,935,883
Hﬁ% NGl Associates 220,704 649,011
TR AR R I A Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 21,522,563 193,962
PRI R K R B Family members of the
Controlling Shareholder 80,244 22,727
SPERRAR R R R B 1= 589 A A Companies controlled by a family
member of the Controlling
Shareholder 3,520,098 -
FEEBAER Key management personnel - 10,000

ZERXGTIRBELEEL T EREBHRBERHE

R AT -

These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms and
conditions mutually agreed after negotiation by the parties involved.
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MNBERERS &)

41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Q) BB B EHWEMK Z (2) Other transactions with related parties
—E-%HF —E-NF
AR¥T T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
ﬁﬁfﬁ R R Guarantees provided to related parties:
TR AR R HIE A Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder - 152,450
BELER Joint ventures 943,560 3,604,000
FH A B 7 IR LA AR - Guarantees provided by related parties:
PERR AR R Controlling Shareholder = 16,797,859
ERRREKEKE A family member of the
Controlling Shareholder - 11,447,515
R AR R A Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 70,000 1,449,440

RZZE_ZF+-_A=+—RH AKEAEE
BHEMREFEFHEREBRATERD
ETHEMEERZ ARK550,000,000 7T
HHER -

R-_E_ZTF+_A=+—H8 A&EBEAHE
BHEAHEREXERARERENE THME
E5% AR®900,000,000 TTHEHER o

RZEZFTF+ZA=+—H ~&£EBEAEHA
REE—BEERARENTE SRR
ERZRBERAFESMNAETHMEERZ A
R 72,600,000 7CEHER ©

RZZE_ZTF+-_A=+—H A&5EAEH
REB—HEEARRENMMNELETS
EREERAGNEENETEMEERZA
FR#1,000,000,000 7T VEH HE{R -

HEZR(KE)ARAT —T_TFFR

As at 31 December 2020, the Group guaranteed certain of the other
borrowings of up to RMB550,000,000 to Jiaxing Xiuzhou Investment

Xiangsheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has guaranteed certain of the
other borrowings of up to RMB900,000,000 to EBFEAFEREESE
FRA®] (“Zhuji Xiangsheng Xiangjun Real Estate Development Co.,

Ltd."”).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has guaranteed certain of the
other borrowings of up to RMB72,600,000 to Anging Jinshixiang Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. by the investment in a joint venture of

the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has guaranteed certain of the
other borrowmgs of up to RMB1,000,000,000 to #i/H#¥ 4 E =t E

BARQ

A)] (“Hangzhou Xiangsheng Yijing Real Estate Development

Co., Ltd.”) by the investment in a joint venture of the Group.
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NBEBRAERS &) 41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(3) EEBA B 5 Y R B 1R 4 B

(3)Outstanding balances with related parties

—ECEF —ZT-NEF
AR®T T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
JRE Lt A B 5 BRI Due from related parties:
=) Trade-related:
BEME Joint ventures 46,429 41,578
=N Associates 20,317 =
SRR ARSI A 7 Company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 942 253,889
ZRRARR K IR B A family member of the
Controlling Shareholder - 9,373
JiE s R e 5 BRI Due from related parties:
IEE 5 Non-trade-related:
BERE Joint ventures 1,084,173 2,600,148
= /NG Associates 571,270 302,234
1R AR R PR ) A R Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 977,013 1,505,508
12 AR AR R SR R K B 15 Il A company controlled by a family
—fEA A member of the Controlling
Shareholder - 777,418
ERIRER KRR B A family member of the
Controlling Shareholder - 70,701
HEET Grand total 2,700,144 5,560,849
JE A~ BB 5 RO - Due to related parties:
B 5 Trade-related:
R Joint ventures = -
i RN Associates = 9,805
SRR AR R B 8 A A Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 3,719,744 4,458,991
SPERR AR R SRR BB 89 A A Companies controlled by family
members of the Controlling
Shareholder 180,897 495,830
ERARER RGN B A family member of the
Controlling Shareholder 620 -
FEEEAB Key management personnel - 812
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MNBEBAERXE ®) 41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(3) B 7 I R B1EAEER () (3) Outstanding balances with related parties (continued)
—EZEF —T-NF
ARET T ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
JRE 1< R HE 5 308 - Due to related parties:
EE F R Non-trade-related:
BEME Joint ventures 1,225,182 371,493
5%%/2\ Gl Associates 481,469 371,495
TR AR R ARSI A Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 173,514 68,270
SRR AR R IR B 8 A 7 Companies controlled by a family
member of the Controlling
Shareholder 12,273 139,200
PERRAR R Controlling Shareholder = 6,183
BRI R KRR B A family member of the
Controlling Shareholder 15,351 34,242
R Grand total 5,809,050 5,956,321
B iR A AEERR - TE AR Balances with the above related parties were unsecured, non-interest-
ZEKEE o bearing and repayable on demand.
(A FXEEETEEEEASFHH (4) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
}\E’ﬁ%‘?n ARBTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB' 000
% HEE B e A Short-term employee benefits 32,631 30,472
BRIRSEH IR Pension scheme contributions 1,510 1,127
MEZEEEAS AN EINESE Total compensation paid to key
management personnel 34,141 31,599

BRI E— S FBER M SRR LS - Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the
financial statements.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

REHREHR - FHEERITANKREESD The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

T~

—E-EF+=-RA=+-—H

instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2020

ERMEE Financial assets
REY BRAFERA
RAETE /Y BEN
ARET AR¥T T AR¥F T
Financial Financial
assets at assets
amortised cost at FVTPL Total
RMB’'000 RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
B RWHIENEUWESE  Trade and bills receivables
(Ft3E22) (note 22) 127,380 = 127,380
SFATEMFZIE - e K Financial assets included in
H At JE R IE Y prepayments, deposits and
SR EE (H5E24) other receivables (note 24) 7,625,119 = 7,625,119
BAFEFTABERN Financial assets at fair value
BRIEE (FiEE25) through profit or loss
(note 25) - 626,231 626,231
JiE s A e 75 BRIR Due from related parties
(FsE41) (note 41) 2,700,144 = 2,700,144
Be RIRITRERR Cash and bank balances
(Ft3E26) (note 26) 24,304,747 = 24,304,747
34,757,390 626,231 35,383,621
SRAE Financial liabilities
REERATER
tRERE
AR¥F T
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RMB’ 000
B 5 N FA M RN RE (FFE27) Trade and bills payables (note 27) 6,977,322
T A AL B SRIA & AT B AR Financial liabilities included in other payables
A (WE28) and accruals (note 28) 5,772,671
JE 1< B 5 R IE (BT sE41) Due to related parties (note 41) 5,809,050
FHERIT R EAME R (HIFE30) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 30) 42,285,907
HESE (HiE14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 86,117
BREE (FE31) Senior notes (note 31) 3,389,987
EES (HE32) Corporate bonds (note 32) 500,664
64,821,718
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NBEHESHEMIE ») 42.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
—E-NF+-_A=+—H 31 December 2019
ERMEE Financial assets

R ROFERA

RAET 2/ Bz
TREE TREE st
AREEF T AREEF T AREF T
Financial Financial
assets at assets
amortised cost at FVTPL Total
RMB"000 RMB"000 RMB' 000
B 5 EWEIE K Trade and bills receivables (note 22)
FEW R (FifsE22) 195,012 - 195,012
FTATERIE - B Kk Financial assets included in
Hofh e SR IE B prepayments, deposits and
TRLEE (FifEE24) other receivables (note 24) 3,460,945 - 3,460,945
BATFEGAEBER Financial assets at fair value
eMEE (FIFE25) through profit or loss (note 25) = 20,567 20,567
FEUS B85 5 508 (M95E41) Due from related parties (note 41) 5,560,849 - 5,560,849
& MIRITH S (H5E26) Cash and bank balances (note 26) 6,962,481 - 6,962,481
16,179,287 20,567 16,199,854
SMaE Financial liabilities
big: FicID@IN g =)
TREE
AREET T
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RMB' 000
B RENFIEREMNEE (H:E27) Trade and bills payables (note 27) 5,102,436
FTAEMENRIBRETERA Financial liabilities included in other payables
TR EE (5E28) and accruals (note 28) 3,911,073
FE AT B8 5 OB (M EE41) Due to related parties (note 41) 5,956,321
FTEIRTT R E M E R (FiFE30) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 30) 27,305,522
BERKBES (FE33) Asset-backed securities (note 33) 205,551
HESE (HiE14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 125,590
BREE (FiE31) Senior notes (note 31) 1,016,301
43,622,794
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ZE-FTF+=A=+—H 31 December 2020

43.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments as at the end of each reporting period, other than those
with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are
as follows:

REE ~FE
Carrying amounts Fair values
= —F-0F —B-%F —TnF
+=ZA=+—-H +=-A=t+—-H +=ZA=t-B +=-A=1+—H
AE®T T AREFT AR®T R ARETT
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
CREE Financial assets
BATEGAERR Financial assets at FVTPL (note 25)
SRAE (FE25) 626,231 20,567 626,231 20,567
tRIEE Financial liabilities
ERTREMER(MF30) Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings (note 30) 42,285,907 27,305,522 42,319,093 27,522,347
BEZE (M3E31) Senior notes (note 31) 3,389,987 1,016,301 3,450,253 1,025,145
PEEF (3E32) Corporate bonds (note 32) 500,664 = 504,863 =
46,176,558 28,321,823 46,274,209 28,547,492

EEECEITHM  RERRTEHR BH
FE U R TE K R MR - FE MR BAESE 5 38 - BT
ABNFREREMMERTENSREE &
SRNFEREMEE - st A MBS KE
LEGTEANSREE - BRI 5 8 -
HEBBEREERMESFNATERELRE
BRE  RABREINAERZETEHRKR
EEE B BERARRAAREEELGR -
EERRMESIHEN T ANFIRILIEE
HARRRETEMTERAFLESABEZNS
BMEEZATE - RAFEFABRSHER
BEZATEAERRATFEBEASELESE
“RRE=H -

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank
balances trade and bills receivables, amounts due from related parties,
financial assets included in prepayments and other receivables, trade
and bills payables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities and asset-
backed securities are approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Management has estimated the fair values of the financial assets
at FVTPL by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The fair value measurement of the financial
assets at FVTPL is categorised within Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy.
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BEMIENWL2FERATFEE

FRERTEREMEBERREBAZEN A FEERE
RERTAREEREUGKK - EERREE
SHREBAN T AMNFERERBIARKIRES R
EfE - RZTEZZTFF+A=+—8 K
FE - AEE G HHFTERITREMER KL
BAZENTREORRILT TEK o

CEEFZAFEDRMSERE -

AEEAREEYEREREN DR MEEK
BEHEERTARFEFENHRERE
Fre nmMtEFEERNEBMBRERE
EZQER - NEREAY - 2AMHBEF S
e T ABENEBHBER  YEEHEMN
ANERHABE - HERSENBRES
BAHE - HEBRENERAESSEFE
TTRRET SR - DA EI R SRR 5 e g

RER > F—REE_BAFEFEZEI
EER  SREENERHEBRYEE ANS
F=HE -

RERR(EE)ERAT —T-SEER

43.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
senior notes have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
senior notes as at 31 December 2020 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of corporate bonds are based on quoted market prices.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the group financial
controller is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate
finance team reports directly to the group financial controller and the
board of directors. At each reporting date, the corporate finance team
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the group financial controller. The
valuation process and results are discussed with the board of directors
twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and liabilities.
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BEMIANAFERAFERE 43.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

V€ )) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
nFEER Fair value hierarchy
TRIRAEEEHITANATEFERE The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of
IS the Group's financial instruments:
BT EGTENEE Assets measured at fair value:
RAFEFABRSNEREE Financial assets at FVTPL

ERAUTREMENDFETE

Fair value measurement using

&R i L EXTBE EAFTEE
WE BAYE BAYE
(5—-%) (B=#) (B=#) st
AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARBT R
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB'000

N_E-TF+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2020
BOFEFAERZMERMEE  Finandal assets at fair value through
profit or loss - 626,231 - 626,231

RZE—NFFZA=+—H  Asat31 December 2019
BRATEFABENEMEE  Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - 17,529 3,038 20,567

BRATEAEERPE=ROIF CHRE The unlisted equity investment which fell into level 3 in the fair
BERBHEEENREREATABREHA value measurement hierarchy is investment held for trading and the
BARMZMHERITE ([HRZTHEENT significant unobservable input is discount for lack of marketability
ZE]) RZZE-_ZFEF+=-_A=+—8 "% ("DLOM"). There has been no valuation impact of the financial assets
RETHEENITZES (ZF—NF : B when DLOM changed as at 31 December 2020 (2019: When DLOM
MR EEE5%,(5%)  IRAFE changes by 5%/(5%), the valuation of the financial assets at FVTPL
AABRNCRMEEGEZS DRI ABARE changes by RMB(214,000)/RMB214,000).
(214,000)7T / AR¥214,0007T) © WS

MEEBETE -
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BEMIANAFERAFERE 43.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

& @ FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
NFEER (&) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
HRFEENTEGEE - Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
FFERTRAEMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

ERATEEMENDFETE

Fair value measurement using

&R i L EXTBE EBEAFTEER
WE BAYE BAHE
(E5—-%) (B=#) (B=#) st
AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARBTR
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RZBZZEF+-A=1—H As at 31 December 2020

STERITREMEK Interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings - 42,319,093 - 42,319,093
BERE Senior notes - 3,450,253 - 3,450,253
rEES Corporate bonds 504,863 = = 504,863

504,863 45,769,346 — 46,274,209

ERA TSRO R FERE

Fair value measurement using

ik ko) ERAHEE BATAEHR

RE BAZE BASR
(%) (5=#) (B=&) st
ARBTT ARBTT ARETTT ARETTT

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000
R-ZE—AF+-A=+—H  Asat 31 December 2019
FTERITREMER Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 27,522,347 = 27,522,347
BEEE Senior notes = 1,025,145 = 1,025,145
- 28,547,492 - 28,547,492
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(a) FIEE B2

AEEH R TSN RS 8 E e 2 EH T
30FMTE AR B BRIT R EMERER - K
SEYECERITES BT AL T XER
REBEERZEE %Efﬂﬁ*k&ﬁfm%?kaﬂ!éﬁ
MEMA

RZTE-_TF+-_A=+—0 WEMEH
fib B B MR T SRAT M H A S A
KR TE1% - B AR E B &R AT R
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44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
bank balances, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade
and bills payables and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations. The Group has other financial assets and liabilities such
as interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, other financial liabilities, amounts
due to related parties and amounts due from related parties. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity
risk. Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on
its risk management. To keep the Group’s exposure to these risks
to a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below:

(a)Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings set out in note 30. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages
its interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings and other
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2020, if the interest rate of bank borrowings had
increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables held constant,
profit before tax for the year of the Group would have decreased/
increased by approximately RMB5,825,000 (2019: RMB5,221,000).

(b)Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from the Group’s cash and bank balances and senior
notes. The currency in which they are denominated is US$. There is
no significant impact on foreign currency risk.
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MEBERBEEEERKRE @)

(b) SN EEREBE (&)

44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (conTINUED)

(b)Foreign currency risk (continued)

EnRBRT BRBE Al
fE & iyl IR #E
#m, () #m,/ () #m,/ (i)
% AR¥TR AR¥TR
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
US$ or HKS$ in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity
% RMB' 000 RMB' 000
“E-THF+ZA=+—H 31 December 2020
HARBHET TR If the RMB weakens against US$ -5% (18,616) (18,616)
AR TR - Ex Lk If the RMB weakens strengthens US$ +5% 18,616 18,616
fisd A R & 578 7T TV B& If the RMB weakens against HK$ -5% (53,414) (53,414)
AR TR - B Lk If the RMB weakens strengthens HK$ +5% 53,414 53,414
“E-NF+=ZA=1+—H 31 December 2019
AR H T TR If the RMB weakens against US$ -5% (41,916) (41,916)
i ARBETBE » o LI If the RMB weakens strengthens US$ +5% 41,916 41,916
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RAERR(EE)ERAT —T-TEFR

(c) Credit risk

The Group classifies financial instruments on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics, such as instrument type and credit risk ratings
for the purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and
calculation of impairment. To manage risk arising from trade and
bills receivables, the Group has policies in place to ensure that credit
terms are made only to counterparties with an appropriate credit
history and management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the
Group's counterparties. The credit period granted to the customers
is generally six months and the credit quality of these customers is
assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience
and other factors. The Group also has other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue receivables.
In addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
trade and bills receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.
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44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (conTINUED)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial assets
included in prepayments and other receivables and amounts due from
related parties as well as individual assessments on the recoverability
of other receivables and amounts due from related parties based
on historical settlement records and past experience. The Group
has classified financial assets included in prepayments and other
receivables and amounts due from related parties in Stage 1 and
continuously monitored their credit risk. The directors of the Company
believe that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding balance of financial assets included in prepayments and
other receivables and amounts due from related parties.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and
the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

As at 31 December 2020

128 A 1
BHEERE ERFENBENEERE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
F-REE FRER BoRE A% st
ARETR AR®ETn ARETT AR%®TR ARETR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B SN EIE I R E i * Trade and bills receivables* = = = 127,380 127,380
FABRMAHE - Re Rk Financial assets included in
HiERFENSREE prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
- R — Normal** 7,625,119 - - - 7,625,119
BATET ABRZ Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 626,231 - - - 626,231
JE W % 7 SRR Due from related parties
-IEF** — Normal** 2,700,144 - - - 2,700,144
Re RBTHES Cash and bank balances
- HAREH - Not yet past due 24,304,747 - - - 24,304,747
35,256,241 - - 127,380 35,383,621
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MOEEREEEEREE # 44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (conTINUED)
(c) GERBE: (&)
RERRRFRER ()
R=-ZE—-AF+=-A=+-—H

(c) Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

12 A8
BHEEER BEGEREREERRE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
£ ERE 15 B A% @5t
ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB'000
B SR B R EREE Trade and bills receivables* = = = 195,012 195,012
FABRMNFE - Re Rk Financial assets included in
HiERFENSREE prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
= TERIH - Normal** 3,460,945 - - - 3,460,945
BATEF ABRZN Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 20,567 = = = 20,567
JE W % 7 SRR Due from related parties
= ek — Normal** 5,560,849 - - - 5,560,849
Re RR1THEH Cash and bank balances
- HARBH - Not yet past due 6,962,481 - = - 6,962,481
16,004,842 - - 195,012 16,199,854

* BAKEEBBCRESENE S RKRFOR R E *
WEEME - ERAEHREEBERNEHNRT B R
RUFE22HFE - WS EETHEERR -

For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment, information based on the expected credit losses is disclosed in note 22
to the financial statements. There is no significant concentration of credit risk.

*xfinf FE W B Bk O RRIEL R e A\ TR R IE R EL A B R ** The credit quality of amounts due from related parties and the financial assets
H RENeREELEBNTEENEREY included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal”
IREREESRMEENEERBRABLEMN - BIESE when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
BEERHERAIES] - assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (conTINUED)

(d)Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings. Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing
basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
each reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted payments,
is as follows:

RERX Z@EANR ZE+=fEA —FUE Bt
ARMTR ARETR ARETR AR%®TR AR%T:R
Less than 3 3to0 12 Over 1
On demand months months year Total

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB' 000

—EBZEE4+ZA=+-H 31 December 2020

BORNTERERER Trade and bills payables 6,977,322 - - - 6,977,322
HAt TR Other payables 13,220,334 - - - 13,220,334
FE % 7 50R Due to related parties 5,809,050 = = - 5,809,050
MEAE Lease liabilities - 12,979 33,869 63,540 110,388
AT RRITREME Interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings - 3,297,309 18,628,177 25,215,915 47,141,401
BEEE Senior notes = 237,714 1,541,218 1,973,782 3,752,714
TEEFH Corporate bonds - 12,658 29,112 542,540 584,310

26,006,706 3,560,660 20,232,376 27,795,777 77,595,519
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MEEEREEEEREE &) 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (conTINUED)

(d)REELREE (&) (d)Liquidity risk (continued)

304

BREX =@EAKR =Z+=fEA —ENE @5t
AREBTT AREFTT ARETT ARETT AR®ET:R
Less than 3 3to 12 Over 1
On demand months months year Total
RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
“Z-hAEt+ZA=1-H 31 December 2019
BHRNTIERENER Trade and bills payables 5,102,436 - = - 5,102,436
HiENRE Other payables 4,898,470 - = - 4,898,470
JE 1 BB 7 5RIE Due to related parties 5,956,321 = = - 5956,321
HEEE Lease liabilities - 12,592 37,775 94,742 145,109
BEERES Asset-backed securities = 216,286 = = 216,286
TERITREMER Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 2,707,854 8,199,509 20,147,122 31,054,485
BEZE Senior notes - 307,771 758,413 - 1,066,184
15,957,227 3,244,503 8,995,697 20,241,864 48,439,291
(e) EXEHE (e) Capital management

AEEEAEENTRBERAREARER
BREVBFRENERLXRMESN  UAX
SHEBY ERREEZAL -

AEESRBELBERRNB(CER R HEE
BARGHE -  REBEFARABELRERE  ~5E
FEABRRN TFRROKE - RERREAR
HEITHA -

AEBRAEEABLE (AVEBFERA
BABBEBEBFRIMN) REZFER - K
SERNEBFEEEEIRNRARENERE
B HtENSRARESER - B EES
R GHERITEREMERAREGESRE
B REEFASEEY ESERERRR
REEE - EAEERREA AEGER -
REERPHERENEERGBLEMT :

HEZR(EE)ERAF

—ETFFR

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes, within net
debt, trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals, amounts
due to related parties, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits and restricted cash. Capital represents equity attributable
to owners of the parent. The gearing ratio as at the end of each
reporting period was as follows:
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MMBEREEEERBEE @) 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

(e) EXEHE (1)

POLICIES (conTINUED)

(e) Capital management (continued)

—ECEH —E-NF
ARET AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
B S EMNFIERENER Trade and bills payables 6,977,322 5,102,436
Efb S FIE N ERTE A Other payables and accruals 13,220,334 4,898,470
FEAST BA s 77 7IR Due to related parties 5,809,050 5,956,321
BEEE Senior notes 3,389,987 1,016,301
TEESH Corporate bonds 500,664 -
ST EERIT REMERK Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 42,285,907 27,305,522
BERKTES Asset-backed securities = 205,551
B IR E RIRITE R Less: Cash and bank balances (24,304,747) (6,962,481)
BB Net debt 47,878,517 37,522,120
BRAREE AEIEER Equity attributable to owners
of the parent 8,431,555 4,617,425
BB FEE Capital and net debt 56,310,072 42,139,545
BEBBHX Gearing ratio 85% 89%
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BEEERFEREZNIEEE

i) NG

REEHEAERFZEBRERNNE R RFE

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

45.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

#H3wT interests are set out below:
FERESE IREFERESR FERER
FEROK EEFR 2R
% ARETR ARBTT
Percentage of
equity interest  Loss for the year Accumulated
held by allocated to balances of
non-controlling  non-controlling  non-controlling
interests interests interests
% RMB’ 000 RMB'000
—E-EF+-HB=+-H 31 December 2020
DEEEEMEREERAR  Shanghai Jubo Real Estate Development
([LEEE]) Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Jubo") 17.5% (3,153) 1,251,823
MME AL ERE W EFE B R A Hangzhou Shinsun Hongda Real Estate
([uMeEEaLE]) Development Co., Ltd.
("Hangzhou Shinsun Hongda") 49% - 1,074,836
FERER SEEFERES FERER
REREAD L FRER 2t
% ARETT ARETT

Percentage of
equity interest

Loss for the year

Accumulated

held by allocated to balances of
non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
interests interests interests
% RMB' 000 RMB' 000
“2-hEF+=-A=1-H 31 December 2019
ZEMEREZEGRAA Taixing Xiangrui Real Estate Co., Ltd.
((REERmEE)) ("Taixing Shinsun Xiangrui”) 30% 68,959 133,244
FEMHEELFEEEMAR  Zhuji Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate
([FEREELR]) Co., Ltd. (“Zhuji Shinsun Hongyuan") 49% (2,190) 82,580
FERARHERBRAA Zhuji Shinsun Xianggi Real Estate Co., Ltd.
([FEEREREE]) (“Zhuji Shinsun Xianggqi") 47% 141,892 171,446

HEER(EE)BRAR —T_TFFR
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45.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-

company eliminations:

31 December 2020

EEBE  WMNEFESAE
ARET T AR¥ET T
Hangzhou
Shanghai Shinsun
Jubo Hongda
RMB’' 000 RMB’' 000
e Revenue — =
X 8% Total expenses (15,764) (25,534)
FAEBRE Loss for the year (15,764) (25,534)
FREEEREARE Total comprehensive loss for the year (15,764) (25,534)
AT - Attributable to:
ISYNCIEZZ=PN Owners of the parent (12,611) (25,534)
FEERR S Non-controlling interests (3,153) -
(15,764) 25,534
MEEE Current assets 14,510,030 4,210,752
B EE Non-current assets 14,553 56,656
RBafE Current liabilities (317,010)  (2,159,886)
EnBarE Non-current liabilities (7,054,296) =
7,153,277 2,107,522
AT - Attributable to:
HRREAA Owners of the parent 5,901,454 1,032,686
PR Non-controlling interests 1,251,823 1,074,836
7,153,277 2,107,522
RETEMARSREFE Net cash flows used in operating activities (69,706) (376,059)
REGHMAREREFHE Net cash flows used in investing activities (36) =
BERDMERENEFE Net cash flows generated from
financing activities 65,135 378,000
BeRRLEEMORD),/ EINFE Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents (4,607) 1,941
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SSEEERFEZEREZNIERE
MEAT (&)

45.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

—E-h&E+=-HA=+—8H 31 December 2019

308

ZHEEREX EEHEAELR REHEFE
ARETTT ARETTT ARET T
Taixing Zhuji Zhuji
Shinsun Shinsun Shinsun
Xiangrui Hongyuan Xiangqi
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Was Revenue 1,971,262 34,417 1,104,816
FX A% Total expenses (1,741,397) (38,886) (802,918)
FRmH A (EE) Profit/(loss) for the year 229,865 (4,469) 301,898
FRE2EWA S (EE) Total comprehensive income/(loss)
4% for the year 229,865 (4,469) 301,898
A& G - Attributable to:
SARERA Owners of the parent 160,906 (2,279) 160,006
FEIEAR R A Non-controlling interests 68,959 (2,190) 141,892
229,865 (4,469) 301,898
MEAE Current assets 4,343,867 174,187 695,200
EMENEE Non-current assets 53,286 1,108 21
BB Current liabilities (3,693,193) (6,764) (330,443)
ERMBEE Non-current liabilities (259,813) = =
444,147 168,531 364,778
AT &5 FEAf - Attributable to:
SARERA Owners of the parent 310,903 85,951 193,332
FEIE IR A Non-controlling interests 133,244 82,580 171,446
444 147 168,531 364,778
wEEE S (FTA) Net cash flows generated from/
HeREF58 (used in) operating activities 226,300 (7,726) (100,479)
EES (FTA),/ P18 Net cash flows (used in)/generated
RenEqE from investing activities (148,170) = 163,038
MEEEATA Net cash flows used in
HeREFA financing activities (198,038) = (74,000)
HehReEEY Net decrease in cash and
Tk FER cash equivalents (119,908) (7,726) (11,441)

RAERR(EE)ERAT —T-TEFR
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46. ¥ 46.COMMITMENTS
AEERSIRERHERE AT EREE - The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of each

reporting period:

i —TNF
ARET T ARET T
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
EETAVBRAT A - Contracted, but not provided for:
NEREED Property development activities 23,411,179 24,806,046
WiBE + 56 P A Acquisition of a land use right 3,605,764 2,388,549
27,016,943 27,194,595
4. EHBRSEE 47.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
RB|EERE I ARKEIEBRANEE © No information is received about conditions that existed after the end

of the reporting period.

48. < 1 5] Z BF Bk i & 48.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
R EHRBBAR RSB KE R Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
™ at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—EZEHF —F-NF
AR®T T AREFIT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB' 000
RBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
& —EHE AR Investments in subsidiaries = -
EMEN B ERRE Total non-current assets = -
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
B FIREEBY Cash and cash equivalents 19,516 =
NG Due from subsidiaries 4,248,403 =
MBNEELTE Total current assets 4,267,919 =
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
H A sRIE R ERTE A Other payables and accruals 14,942 =
mENBELE Total current liabilities 14,942 =

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD. 309



310

Bt %5 8RR B
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZE=FF+=A=1+—H 31 December 2020

8. AR REZHMBEMRRT (@)

48.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

—ECEF —E-NF
AR®Tx ARETIT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 4,252,977 =
EEATE TOTAL ASSETS LESS
R E B & CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,252,977 =
BETHE Net assets 4,252,977 =
IR EQUITY
[ Share capital 199,616 =
(i Reserves 4,053,361 =
[ #E 1B KR Total equity 4,252,977 =
RAmAEAREE T A summary of the Company'’s total equity is as follows:
€N R RE 2 EE B
ARBTRT AR%BTr ARETr AR%®Tx
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
R-ZZE—NFE+=-FA+=H Balance at 13 December 2019
(s z B ER) - (date of incorporation),
—E-AF+-A=+—H 31 December 2019 and
RZZFZZTF—-H—H 1 January 2020
pd - - - =
FAZERALE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (94,359) (94,359)
BITH D Issuance of new shares 199,616 4,147,720 - 4,252,977
RZZE-_TF+_-A Balance at 31 December 2020
=t+—H#&s 199,616 4,147,720 (94,359) 4,252,977

49. #it E B | 2R

RZE-_—F=ZA_+"BUEHKRREES
G I AE TR -

HEZR(EE)AERAE —F-TFFRH

49. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 26 March 2021.
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FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BET-A=t—-HI=FE

For the year ended 31 December

“ECEf “T-NEF —T-N\F e
2020 2019 2018 2017
ARET R ARETTT ARETT ARETL
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
g Revenue 46,638,413 35,519.538 14,215,302 6,293,295
HEMR Cost of sales (38,203,574) (27,039,427) (11,216,121) (5,459,461)
E | Gross profit 8,434,839 8,480,111 2,999,181 833,834
Eipr TN Finance income 75,773 151,883 71,376 16,892
H A Rz Other income and gains 108,621 95,375 36,789 131,031
HERD Y Selling and distribution expenses (1,240,318) (1,073,899) (752,944) (502,524)
THRX Administrative expenses (1,132,252) (1,125,445) (1,119,107) (521,753)
HfE% Other expenses (101,221) (199,371) (69,630) (46,152)
BENENDFERE Fair value gains on investment
properties 4,624 22,406 13,978 17,285
BTSN Finance costs (1,113,405) (777,570) (432,110) (220,316)
EETAIAR G RES Share of profits and losses of:
REDLE Joint ventures 2,026 (54,644) (30,492) 1,208
kNG Associates (19,770) 11,502 (30,929) (1,349)
BREARA /(FR) Profit/(loss) before tax 5,018,917 5,530,348 686,062 (291,844)
FiER (BX)/ #% Income tax (expense)/credit (1,965,546) (2,321,393) (258,122) 5,895
Frwil/(B8) Profit/(loss) for the year 3,053,371 3,208,955 427,940 (285,949)
ATEF S Attributable to:
ADAHERA Owners of the Company 2,646,006 2,312,283 325,047 (300,123)
IR Non-controlling interests 407,365 896,672 102,893 14,174
3,053,371 3,208,955 427,940 (285,949)
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets 6,182,230 5,572,070 4,177,467 2,574,290
REEE Current assets 153,557,352 125,055,622 117,890,290 73,591,120
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FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BET-A=t—-HI=FE

For the year ended 31 December

“ECEf “T-NEF —T-N\F “E—+F

2020 2019 2018 2017

ARET R ARETT ARETT ARETL

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000

BEAE Total assets 159,739,582 130,627,692 122,067,757 76,165,410
EnkEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

BERESs Total equity 16,037,036 5,975,116 2,880,859 1,459,232

ERBarE Non-current liabilities 24,265,963 17,267,219 13,697,323 14,037,765

REAE Current liabilities 119,436,583 107,385,357 105,489,575 60,668,413

AELH Total liabilities 143,702,546 124,652,576 119,186,898 74,706,178

EEREEAS Total equity and liabilities 159,739,582 130,627,692 122,067,757 76,165,410

312 HEER(EE)BRAR —T_TFFR



SHINSUN#*=E

®
MIX
Paper from responsible sources

F R B R RENRARFRNAER
wwwfsc.org FSC® C021898




	封面

	內封

	目錄
	公司簡介
	公司資料
	里程碑及獎項
	業績摘要
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層履歷
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	四年財務概要
	封底




